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Forward-looking statement

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take investment decisions. This report and
other statements - written and oral - that we periodically make contain forward-looking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans
and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’,
‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements
will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievements of results are subject to risks, uncertainties, and even inaccurate
assumptions. Should known or unknown risks or uncertainties materialize, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from
those anticipated, estimated, or projected. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forward-looking statements, whether as

a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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Building the ‘Bank of Choice’

From the city of Kolhapur, Maharashtra the
journey of our institution began seven decades
ago. The objective then was to secure economic
independence for a large cross-section of people
in pre-independent India.

During 2010-11, Ratnakar Bank's Board and
management decided to adopt a strategic
path to create scale and the ability to meet the
continuous and dynamic requirements of present
and potential customers.

Its three strong pillars of transparent governance,
able management and high quality capital have
helped the institution expand operations. It is
also emerging as a preferred financial partner
and ‘Bank of Choice’ to customers across the
economic and business spectrum.

Led by a team of highly experienced individuals
with strong credentials, Ratnakar Bankiis aspiring
to become one of India’s best-run private sector
banks.


Administrator
Typewritten Text

Administrator
Typewritten Text

Administrator
Typewritten Text


Katnakar KEank &3]

Corporate Overview

A

Building an institution has
many approaches.

One can resort to an accelerated approach in terms
of enhancing scale, capitalisation, management
depth and expansion of footprint.

Another way to build it is to realign all the above
constituents in a holistic manner to achieve balanced
long-term growth.

And the entire paradigm needs to be prudently
recalibrated in line with evolving circumstances.

At Ratnakar Bank, we have a simple way of defining
the second approach that we have adopted.

Building it

We are building an institution of banking excellence

by blending our traditional values with the modern
acceleration and acumen of new-age banking.

As a part of our corporate evolution, we have crossed
significant milestones, focusing on fundamentals:
enriching customer-centric products and services;
strengthening the balance sheet; raising capital;
expanding pan-India

presence; reinforcing

technology infrastructure; strengthening our
workforce and management depth; and evolving a

risk-focused business model.

Our technology infrastructure is in line with the
best of breed in India's banking sector and we are
enhancing our scale of operations with a consistent
focus on customer satisfaction and stakeholder
value. At the same time, we are leveraging our
traditional linkages to drive financial inclusion and
reduce social inequalities.

We remain deeply anchored to our legacy, as we
move ahead towards building the ‘Bank of Choice for
the new era.

¢ Y
§ 2
w

Bestowed with the honour
of being India’s Best Bank
(Growth) in the mid-sized
banks segment by Business
Today and KPMG and also
ranked 5th overall for the
year 2012

Awarded as winner of the
Best Core Banking Project,
India for the year 2012 at
the seventh Asian Banker
Technology Implementation
Awards
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Building it Right Our Mission

Our Mission

To develop a professionally governed and managed platform based on relationships,
knowledge, sector expertise and technology to:

Build a customer-centric Retail Banking Business.

ldentify and partner with SMEs and Emerging Local Corporates (ELC) with outstanding
business models, providing them a full range of financial services so as to enable them to
become world-class enterprises.

Deliver robust and cost-effective banking services that promote Financial Inclusion,
catalyze growth and reduce social inequalities.

Our Vision

Our goal is to be the '‘Bank of Choice' in our selected product, client and geographic
segments.
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Building Momentum for
Long-Term Growth

We are pursuing our growth model with passion
and prudence.

‘;
B
|

1985

Achieved a target of % 25 crore in deposits

1987

Retained its position of achieving highest
deposits among the private sector commercial
banks at a national level for five consecutive
years

1989

Commenced adopting the first stage of
information technology at its branches

1991
Declared 16% dividend for the first time

1992
Celebrated its Golden Jubilee (50 years)

1994

Supported the region's development by
investing an amount of ¥ 60 lakh in the
Konkan Railways project

1995

Ranked 4th in terms of deposits (according to
the Bhartiya Bank Sangh)

1996

Supported regional development by partnering
with Maharashtra Krishna Valley Development
Corporation through a significant investment

1998

> Commenced depository services

> Mr. Anil Patil, the then Chairman of the
Bank, received the 'Arthasri’ award for
excellence in the field of finance

1999

> Launched the Bank's first website

> Achieved a target of ¥ 300 crare in deposits
2010

> Inducted Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja as the
Managing Director & CEO in July 2010 to
transform the institution from an old private
sector bank to a new-age bank

& | Building it right



Building Momentum for Long-Term Growth

> Revamped the Board and management by 207
including accomplished professionals from the
banking, finance, agriculture and other related
fields

> Upgraded core banking system to Finacle, a
product from Infosys, which holds a leadership
position in the market

> Defined a new organisational structure
and created dedicated business verticals to
meet diverse customer needs across retail,
commercial, corporate and agri and financial
inclusion segments > Established call centre services to enhance the

customer service experience

> Revamped the IT infrastructure with significant
investments to ensure security and integrated
operations

2011
> Raised Tier-I capital of over¥ 700 crore, taking the 2 CelllifeyEies el
total capital base to around ¥ 1,100 crore, from > Added Corporate Internet Banking to the
HDFC, Gaja Capital, Norwest Venture Partners, internet banking suite
Samara Capital, Beacon Capital, Faering Capital,
TVS Shriram and Cartica Capital 2013

> Implemented Phase | of the Core Banking

> ICRA granted Ratnakar Bank's Certificate of
System —Finacle

Deposit programme an A+ rating - its highest
rating for short-term instruments > Raised Tier-| capital of over ¥ 376 crore taking the
total capital base to around % 1,600 crore, from
International Finance Corporation, Ascent Capital,
Aditya Birla Private Equity, Faering Capital, IDFC
SPICE Fund, ICICI's Emerging India Fund

> Launched ATM cards, pre-paid cards and
internet banking; obtained an authorised
dealer license to commence Foreign Exchange
and International Trade business; implemented

a comprehensive treasury dealing and > Opened the first branch in the state of Andhra
settlement system Pradesh at Hyderabad
> Revamped risk management  framework > Opened the first branch in Chennai, Tamil Nadu

and credit administration processes with
specialisation in SME, Retail and Agri Banking
and Financial Inclusion; introduced an internal
credit rating system > Partnered the Asian Development Bank (ADB)
to provide a Partial Guarantee Programme for
Micro Financial Institutions (MFIs) - a first in
India

> Opened a National Operating Centre (NOC) in
Mumbai

> Commercial banking division launched Ratna
Business, a schematic SME credit product,
expanding into new industry and trade segments

> Bestowed with the honour of being India's Best
Bank (Growth) in the mid-sized banks segment
by Business Today and KPMG and also ranked
5th overall for the year 2012

> Agri Banking and Financial Inclusion verticals
introduced Ratna Group Loans, a focused
credit product for small and marginal farmers,
artisans and women borrowers

> Awarded as winner of the Best Core Banking
Project, India for the year 2012 at the seventh
Asian Banker Technology Implementation

> Implemented Core Banking System (CBS)
across all rural and semi-urban branches,
thus ensuring 100% of the branches are
CBS enabled gt

> Entered into a strategic partnership for rapid
ATM deployment/management as well as
migration to state-of-the-art switch to support
multiple interfaces
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Financial and Operational Highlights
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Financial and Operational Highlights
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Capital Adequacy Ratio - CAR

(%)

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13

CAR 34.07 56.41 23.20 1711
Tier- 33.53 55.93 22.83 16.82
Tier-ll 0.54 0.48 0.37 0.29
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Message from the

Managing Director & CEO

Dear Stakeholders,

‘Building it right' is not a decorative word play at
Ratnakar Bank, it is a prudent business strategy.
A strategy to drive long-term growth by realigning
relevant capabilities and resources in a holistic
manner. Our Vision 2015 lays down the modalities of
such a strategy. As we enter the fourth vear of our
transformation journey, our right strategy’ is driving
our achievements.

Our efforts during the last financial year have continued
the build-out of a strong governance and business
architecture on the foundation of capital strength,
core infrastructure, risk management, compliance
framewark and human assets. We have also created
a significant management bandwidth to address
newer client and geographic opportunities, revamp
our products and services and create a new brand
positioning and visibility that truly reflect our customer
value proposition and promise. Our roadmap for the
future is based on our belief in the entrepreneurial
potential of the vast majority of India's population, and
our confidence in being able to support through right
banking solutions.

The optimism, however, comes with a caveat: building
scale and natural momentum for the long term is not
an easy road. The external economic environment
remains challenging with sluggish growth, firm

inflation, high fiscal and current account deficits,
depreciating currency, declining foreign exchange
reserves, weakening asset quality in the banking sector
and a lack of urgency in government policy initiatives.
The regulatory landscape is also constantly evolving.
However, in such a scenario, larger organisations
tend to have bigger challenges and actually create
an opportunity for smaller, more focused and nimble
players to come to the fore. ‘Building it right’ helps us
create an organisation that is able to respond to these
challenges and opportunities.

The world had entered 2013 with the promise of a
stronger US economy, a positive jolt to the moribund
Japanese economy, even though Eurozone continued
to be a matter of concern to bankers and global leaders.
However, events over the last few weeks have only
highlighted the fragility of such promises with stresses
appearing in the balance sheets of emerging markets
against the background of tapering of the US monetary
stimulus. The Indian policy response to this new risk
has been swift, but comes with the threat of prolonging
the bottoming of the Indian economy and it appears
that we will have to undergo these challenges for
some more time. On a slightly brighter note, the long-
term fundamentals of India are still intact and, in spite
of the current stresses, it remains one of the fastest
growing economies of the warld. India's growth story is
fuelled by the aspirations of its billion-plus population,
especially those at the middle and the lower end of
the social pyramid, and the Indian banking sector has
a critical role to play in this regard. With a significant
section of the population still remaining outside the
fold of mainstream banking, the opportunities for
growth are enormous. And this is the opportunity for
Ratnakar Bank — navigating the near-term problems
and vet building an organisation that can play a role for
the emerging India.

Despite economic roadblocks and an evolving regulatory
landscape, we recorded a strong performance in FY13,
The Bank's net interest income registered a growth
of 37.88%, increasing to ¥ 257.55 crore in FY13 from
¥ 186.79 crore in FY12. In addition, our net worth
increased by 40.95% to % 1,594.20 crore from ¥ 1,130.99
crore. The Bank's deposits grew by more than 75.98%,
touching ¥ 8340.52 crore from X 4,739.33 crore in FY12.

Our efforts during the
last financial year have
continued the build-out
of a strong governance
and business architecture
on the foundation of
capital strength, core
infrastructure, risk
management, compliance
framework and human
assets.

8 | Building it right



Message from the Managing Director & CEO

Our governance structure, extent of technology-driven
integration and prudent polices resulted in a decline of
Gross Non-performing Assets (GNPA) from 0.80% to
0.40% in FY12. Our Net Non-performing Assets (NPA)
also improved to 0.11% from 0.20% in the previous
fiscal. Our customer centricity is reflected by the
fact that today we have 130 pan-India branches and
184 ATMs catering to multiple customer requirements.
In addition, all our pan-India branches are integrated to
the Core Banking System (CBS) powered by Finacle.

The Bank's Net Total Income surged by 51.21% from
¥ 253.93 crore in FY12 to ¥ 383.99 crore in FY13. The
increase was driven by growth in net interest income
as well as other earnings. Despite a challenging
operating environment, our net profit increased from
¥ 65.73 crore to ¥ 92.47 crore. This growth in net profit
is significant, as it is against a backdrop of increasing
investments the Bank is doing in technology, branches
and infrastructure to steer Ratnakar Bank to the level
of an efficient, customer-focused and modernised
private sector bank of national repute.

Diversifying the revenue streams from multiple clients
and enhancing the granularity and stability of revenues
is one of our key focus areas. Towards this objective,
we are working closely to offer a wide range of services
to customers and today our enhanced offerings vary
from retail banking services to commercial banking to
corporate and institutional banking. Besides, our Agri-
banking and Financial Inclusions businesses form an
integral part of our revenue model and is driven by our
strong rural network.

The Bank's business and technology architecture is
geared to present a single face to clients, offering them
a suite of products across all product segments. One of
our key initiatives during the year was our partnership
with several large corporates wherein we leveraged our
extensive rural presence to provide banking services to
the farmers associated with these corporates as goods
suppliers. The corporates were able to strengthen their
supplier relationships and the Bank was able to get
new clients that ended up using the Bank for a variety
of products and services. Through this initiative we
were able to bring on board more than 6,000 farmers.

Our focus on upgrading people, processes —and
technology have enabled us to build scale and
capabilities to meet the continuous and evolving
requirements of our customers. These endeavours
received industry recognition and we were bestowed
with the hanour of being India's Best Bank (Growth)
and ranked 5th overall in the Mid-sized Banks segment
in the 2012 Business Today and KPMG study.

Our progress is driven by our people, who form an
integral part of our vision. We have conducted extensive
training programmes to upgrade the capabilities of our
team, and will continue to do so in future. We have
also launched the Management Associate Programme
to attract young talent from reputed management
colleges. The programme has been designed to
strengthen the next leadership pipeline for business
sustainability and growth.

India's banking sector is evolving and we foresee more
competition and a stringent regulatory landscape
in the coming vyears. The opportunities for growth,
however, are significant as per capita income is rising
across India's Tier-Il and Tier-lll cities and towns. We
are focused on addressing emerging sectors in the
economy, such as organized retail, logistics, agri-
business, cansumer and food services and education.

In line with our Vision 2015, we have to continue to
work on certain key focus areas:

> Consistent growth in business and earnings as per
business plan

> Steady improvement in productivity at all levels, with
special emphasis on branch level productivity and
sales performance

> Significant positive traction in CASA build up

> New brand positioning and visibility that truly reflect
our customer value proposition and promise

> High quality balance sheet and strong internal
systems and operational backbone

> Customer and

orientation

centricity strong  relationship

We are capitalising on new opportunities and investing in
growth, while exercising utmost prudence to counter the
challenges in the operating environment.

I am indeed grateful for the continued support of all our
stakeholders — customers, shareholders, employees and
the Reserve Bank of India, who have enabled us to come
this far. I am confident of your support in the years to
come, and of the fact that we will achieve our dream.

For the moment, let's continue the good work.

With best wishes

Vishwavir Ahuja
Managing Director & CEO

The Bank’s business and
technology architecture

is geared to present a
single face to clients,
offering them a suite of
products across all product
segments.

These endeavours received
industry recognition and
we were bestowed with
the honour of being India’s
Best Bank (Growth) and
ranked 5th overall in the
Mid-sized Banks segment
in the 2012 Business
Today and KPMG study.
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10-Year Financial Highlights

Equity Capital

Reserves &
Surplus

Networth

CRAR (%)*

Deposits

Advances (Net)

Investments (Net)

Gross NPA

Net NPA

Gross NPA to
Gross Advance(%)

Net NPA to
Net Advance (%)

Net Profit

Dividend (%)

Business per
Employee

No. of Employees

Earning per
share (EPS) (3)**

Book Value per
share (3)**

Return on
Assets (%)

* Proposed

FYos4 FYO5
18.39 19.38
35.26 25.82
50.76 4214
16.65 12.03
715.21 783.75
346.02 423.75
287.51 264.63
38.84 46.00
19.32 23.49
10.63 10.31
5.58 5.54
8.44 =)L
|
15.00 0.00
1.98 2.21
535 547
4.36 -4.88
]
26.61 21.75
1412 =1l 1z
[

FY06
28.48

25.71

50.90

10.77

874.18

490.83

276.64

39.29

12.79

7.59

2.61

0.59

0.00

251

544,

0.20

26.27

0.07

FYo7
116.56

82.68

196.03

34.34

876.39

530.52

315.83

38.05

10.20

6.81

1.92

3.01

0.00

254

553

0.81

27.83

0.31

FYO8
104.72

218.29

319.74

4915

1101.07

585.79

361.32

37.09

5.81

6.01

0.99

17.01

5.00

544

1.69

30.53

1.31

FY09
104.72

236.52

338.12

42.30

1307.05

801.11

404.48

17.28

5.45

0.68

30.53

10.00

565

2.91

32.29

1.96

FY10
104.72

248.26

345.03

34.07

1585.04

1170.44

507.22

27.64

11.35

2.33

0.97

11,11

6.00

391

704

1.82

33.33

1.05

(% in crore wherever applicable)

FY11
214.95

870.03

1074.55

56.41

2042.16

1905.17

892.48

21.51

6.89

0.36

12.33

2.00

4.35

907

0.96

49.99

0.53

FY12
214.95

928.25

1130.99

23.20

4739.33

413227

2333.83

33.11

8.39

0.80

0.20

65.73

3.00

6.69

1328

3.06

52.62

FY13
252.92

1353.82

1594.20

17.11

8340.52

6376.21

5571.42

25.90

6.88

0.40

0.11

S2.47

6.00%

~
[}
N

1859

4.19

63.03

1.09

** Share of ¥ 100/ - each was split into 10 shares of ¥ 10/- each with effect from August 20, 2008, EPS and Book value per share have been accordingly adjusted for the earlier years
*From FY0S, CRAR as per BASEL Il is given
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10-Year Financial Highlights Board of Directors

Board of Directors

Subhash Kutte Vishwavir Ahuja Bahubali Arwad Girish Godbole
Chairman Managing Director & CEO Director Director

Jairaj Purandare Kiran Patil Narayan Ramachandran P. Sudhir Rao
Director Director Director Director

/i J H'r o~
Vimal Bhandari D. Sivanandhan Ajay Michyari
Director Additional Director RBI - Additional Director
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Senior Management Team

Vishwavir Ahuja
Managing Director & CEO

Rajeev Ahuja Nitin Chopra R. Gurumurthy

Head - Strategy Head - Retail and Consumer Head - Corporate and Institutional Chief Risk Officer
Banking Banking

Shanta Vallury Suhas Sahakari Sandeep Thapliyal Andrew Gracias

Head - Distribution Head - Kolhapur Region Head - Commercial Banking Head - Financial Markets
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Senior Management Team

Surinder Chawla Aseem Gandhi Manoj Rawat Naresh Karia

Head - Branch Banking Head - Development Banking and Head - Agri Business Chief Financial Officer
Financial Inclusion

Tajinder Kumar Joginder Singh Rana Sanjay Sharma Satish Dhawan

Head - Human Resources Chief Operations Officer Head - Technology , Innovation Chief Infrastructure and
and Customer Fulfilment Administration Officer

Sanjit Chowdhry Bhaskar Niyogi Rajendra Patil

Head - Wholesale Credit Risk Senior Consultant - Risk Senior Vice President - Legal and
Secretarial

Annual Report 2012-13 13
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The Bank's ambition is based on the foundation of solid
strategies. The objective is to ensure adherence to the
growth path, while remaining relevant to its national
context and adopting a holistic approach to banking. The
Bank's aspiration is to be recognised as the one operating
on a professional and expertise oriented platform.

- 14 | Building it right



ldentifying growth
opportunities

A critical part of its strategy is the ability to identify
the right growth opportunities and to develop and
implement capabilities that can establish the Bank
as a leader in those sectors. A core aspect of this
strategy is to work with emerging Indian businesses
spanning SMEs, emerging local corporates (ELCs) and
others in urban and rural markets. In addition, the
Bank has made the development of its Agriculture
and Financial Inclusion businesses a key objective
in the medium term. It intends to leverage the
inherent entrepreneurial instinct of India, and align
it to the aspirations of its partners to create newer
opportunities and bespoke solutions.

The Bank is partnering large organisations in specific
areas, such as rural and agri markets, to create
newer opportunities. It has established several
innovative partnerships that are helping it acquire
more clients in existing and newer geographies.
The initiatives with various agri processors to use
their existing social infrastructure with farmers and
adding a banking platform to it, is already reaping
rich dividends. Similarly, the Bank's partnership with
renowned micro finance institutions is also ensuring
that it complements the strength of its partners
in providing products and services. Together with
this, it is also ensuring reach to customers through

doorstep banking, which is relevant to a large section
of rural and industrial customers. Underpinning all
of these growth initiatives is a strong operating and
technology platform,awell-capitalised balance sheet
and highly skilled and passionate human resources.

—

Expanding agri portfolio

The Bankadded 15,000 new farmer accounts through
its 30 rural branches during the last financial vear.
It meets the widespread credit needs of farmers with
the launch of Kisan Credit Card Scheme under which
both short-term and long-term credits are provided
for a variety of agriculture and allied activities. In
addition, the Bank also launched a Warehouse
Receipt Financing Programme, which enables the
farmers to store their produce in warehouses to
obtain better realisations and manage short-term
liquidity requirements.

Visible growth (% In crore)
2010 2013
Deposits 1,585 8341
Loans 1,170 6376
Agriloan 110 826
Farmer account holders (in Nos.) 8,500 35,000
Micro banking customers (in Nos.) - 54,800

Annual Report 2012-13 15




Katnakar Eank &2

right ...

No matter how foolproof a strategy is, its objectives can only
be achieved by an unwavering focus on the development of
key enablers and capabilities. The Bank is consistent in its
ambition to focus on creating a culture of customer centricity
in the organisation. This extends to not just devising a set
of products that are directed by customer requirements, but
also aligning its processes, technology and people mindset
to this.

- 16 | Building it right



Technology-led
customer centricity

A key success factor for any bank is the ability to

offer high quality products and services to clients ﬂ
on a regular and profitable basis. Technology plays a

key role in ensuring the provision of such services in Implementing a state-of-the-art Core Banking
a highly compliant environment and at lower costs.  System and a National Operating Centre

With a view to getting a highly scalable and efficient
operating platform, the Bank has made significant
investments in technology —right from implementing
Finacle, a state-of-the-art CBS solution, to a first-
of-its-kind virtualisation strategy, to Ganaseva, a
low-cost technology, which provides simple cost-
effective services to vast rural markets.

The Bank completely overhauled its existing
technology and made rapid strides in integrating
all its branches to Finacle, a modern Core Banking
System (CBS) developed and implemented by
Infosys. This system has enabled the Bank to
materially upgrade its customer service and product
capabilities and, at the same time, strengthened the
The Bank has been consistently recognised for its  control requirements of banking transactions. The
focus — be it the Asian Banker award for excellence  Bank has also nearly doubled the size of its existing
in Core Banking System Implementation, to the ‘National Operating Centre' to 400 seats and has
PC Quest magazine recognising its virtualisation set up a Regional Processing Centre in Kolhapur
strategy. to provide cost-effective processing services to its
rural business. The Bank's business momentum
is, to a very large extent, the result of its revamped
technology and process infrastructure.

Connecting to the customer

2010 2013

Customer base Over 2.9 Over 4.5
lakh lakh
ATM network 19 184
Branch network 88 125

ATM / Debit card transactions Over Over 34
80,000 lakh

Transactions in branches Around 60  Qver 110
lakh lakh
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As banks are institutions of public trust, it is quite important
that governance principles of managing them meet the
highest standards and are designed to balance stakeholder
interests, ensuring that they remain financially healthy and
prudent. The way a bank is perceived, in a large measure, is
a function of its governance principles and practices.
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Implementing a
prudent governance
framework

We had identified the need to build a strong
framework for governance very early and undertook
significant steps to establish these principles firmly.
These principles are reflected in the diversity and
experience of the Board and the way it engages
on issues of strategic importance; the quality of
professionals inducted having relevant experience;
the implementation of modern technology and risk
measurement platforms that provide the basis of
continuous reinforcement of these principles, and
the quality and experience of its advisory partners
in auditing, legal advisory and technology front. The
Bank's governance framework aspires to balance
the expectations of all stakeholders and, at the
same time, build a robust operating environment for
the future.

Good governance
leading to a stronger
balance sheet

The Bank attracted more
than ¥ 1,100 crore of
capital through private
funding by high quality
investors,  recognising
the need to scale up and
strengthen the balance
sheet. The result is a
cumulative capital base
of almost % 1,600 crore.
In addition, the Bank has
implemented strong risk
management processes,
resulting in a more
prudent risk profile.

Escalating strength R In crore)
2010 2013

Asset base 2,086 12,963

Capital base 349 1,594
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In the final
analysis,
organisations
are a sum total
of people and for
any meaningful
institution to

be developed
and sustained,

it is important
that the Bank's
strategy be
driven by a right
set of people.
These people
should embody a
passion to learn,
perform and
excel.
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Driving passion and
performance

The Bank has continued to add top quality talent to
its leadership bringing on board highly accomplished
individuals from the financial services industry.
Following the expansion of management bandwidth,
the Bank has considerable person-years of banking
experience to scale up the organisation significantly.
At the same time, a clear roadmap on aligning
people’s aspirations with that of the Bank has been
set in motion, to ensure that there is belief and
ownership of the mission and strategy of the Bank.
The Bank is doing this across the existing workforce
as well as the new hires, and ensuring a cohesive,
homogenous people culture.

Through its training interventions, the Bank is
driving @ commitment to transform at every level,
and impart the necessary skills and expertise.
The Bank is doing this by deriving the benefits of
diversity in management, a professional approach,
an empowered workforce driven by passion,
commitment and ownership for the institution and
its objectives.

These initiatives are not only driving its strategy,
but also enabling the Bank to emerge as a preferred
employer.

Strengthening human assets

Leveraging experience
and expertise

During the last vear,
the Bank conducted
extensive employee
training  programmes
for nearly 5500 person
days, on various fronts
to enhance customer
experience at all
branches. These training
programmes  covered
aptitude and ownership
related aspects, as well
as skill enhancement
and process orientation.

2010 2013

Employee base

704 1859
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At Ratnakar Bank, ‘building it right’ implies inculcating a
culture of ownership to co-create value for all stakeholders.
Towards this end, the Bank is focusing on aligning itself to
create value for its customers, shareholders, employees and
the society at large.
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Driving value through
ownership

The Bank's transformation is based on a high quality ﬂ
capital base, a strong employee and management

cadre and evolved governance systems. Its value -
creation system is based on leveraging these, Driving employee
together with a focus on products and processes, to  ownership through
ensure a balanced approach towards all stakeholder ESOPs

aspirations. With a view to align the
aspirations of employees
with  the mission and
objectives of the Bank, the
Bank has offered ESOPs
to most of its employees.
The ESOPs provides an
avenue to its employees to
participate meaningfully in

Value is not a uni-dimensional aspect of building
it right. It needs to encompass the right blend of
societal impact together with reward for capital
providers as well as employees. The Bank co-creates
stakeholder value on the foundation of a dynamic
vision, robust professional governance, enduring
customer relationships, advanced technology
infrastructure and top-tier capital.

the growth of the Bank.
Value creation
2010 2013
Total employees having ESOPs (%) = 61%
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Corporate Overview

Products and Services

Retail Banking

Savings Account

Current Account

> Ratna Vyaapar
Current Account

> Exceed Express

> Exceed Extra

> Exceed Elite

Key Features

> Choose your Account
Number

> Unified Price Structure

> Auto Sweep Facility

Loans

> Loan against Property

> Home Loan

> Personal Loan

> Car Loan

> Loan against Gold

> Education Loan

Fixed Deposits

> Ratnakar Tax Savings
Term Deposit Scheme

> Flexi Fixed Deposit
(FFD)

> Kalpavruksha Nirantar
Deposit

> Monthly Interest
Payable Deposit
Scheme

> Recurring Deposit

Life Insurance

Corporate Agent:

HDFC Life

> Savings & Investment
Plan

> Protection Plan

> Children’s Plan

> Retirement Plan

> Traditional Plan

General Insurance
Corporate Agent :

Bajaj Allianz

> Health Products

> Property Insurance
> Motor Insurance

> SME Insurance

> Travel Insurance

Investment Services

> Customer Risk
Profiling

> Asset Allocation

> Product Selection

> Portfolio Review

> Financial Need
Analysis

Locker Services
Convenience Banking
Bill Pay

Mabile Banking
SMS Banking
Internet Banking
Payment Gateway

>
>
>
>
>
> Debit Card

Commercial
Banking

Assessed Credit

> (Cash Credit

> Short-Term Loan

> Term Loan

> Working Capital
Demand Loan

> Trade Finance

> Structured Finance

> Forex & Fixed Income

Commercial Vehicle &
Construction Equipment
Finance

Programme Credit
> Ratna Business
> Supply Chain
Management
> Dealer /
Distribution Finance
> \/endor Finance

Corporate and
Institutional
Banking

vV V VvV V

v

Cash Credit

Term Loans

Trade Finance
Transactions Banking
& Cash Management
Structured Finance
Forex & Fixed Income
Products

Corporate Salary
Accounts & Employee
Banking

Supply Chain
Financing Solutions

Agri Banking
and Financial
Inclusion

Retail Agri

VvV V V V V V V Vv V

>
>
>
>
>

Crop Loan

Poultry Loan

Cattle Loan

Allied Activities
Plantation Crops
Land Development
Floriculture
Horticulture
Irrigation facility (Dug
well, Sprinkler, Drip)
Tractor Loan

Agri Clinics

Agri Business Centres
PACS

Farmers clubs

Corporate Agri & Agri
Value Chain

>

Retail Customers
through corporates
> Dairy

> Sugarcane

> Coffee / Tea

> Fresh produce
> Food processing

Dealers / sellers of
> Fertilizers

> Pesticides

> Seeds

> Feed

> Implements

> Seed Growers
> Other Inputs

Commodity & Pledge

Finance

> Loan against pledge
of commodities

> (Cold Storages

> Tie-up with collateral
managers

> Tie-ups with Central
Warehousing
Corporation &
State Warehousing
Corporation

Microfinance Banking

> Aadhaar linked
savings accounts

> Direct Benefit
Transfer

> Micro-Insurance

> Micro payments /
remittances

> Micro Pension

> Micro loans / SHG
finance

> Micro Housing Loans

Micro Enterprise

Finance

> Term Loans

> Drop down overdrafts

> Loan against CGTMSE
guarantee

> Fixed Asset Loan

Affordable Finance
Institutions

> Term Loan

> (Cash Credit

> Cash Management
Services
> Structured Finance

Treasury &
Markets

> Foreign Exchange
Risk Management

> Foreign Exchange
Options

> Currency & Interest
Rate Derivatives

> Investment / Debt
Advisory
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Economic Overview

Global Economic Outlook

Global growth turned weaker in FY12. It is expected
to stay sluggish in FY13, as advanced economies
(AEs) are moving towards fiscal adjustments to
drive growth. This, in turn, is likely to delay cyclical
recovery in emerging markets and developing
economies (EMDEs). In its World Economic Outlook,
the International Monetary Fund (IMF) has forecast
global growth to stay sluggish at 3.3% in FY13,
before improving to 4.0% in FY14. While downside
tail risks have reduced in early 2013 because of the
supportive policy actions in the Eurozone and the
measures to tackle the US fiscal cliff, risks to global
recovery increased consequent to China's economic
slowdown.

-
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Indian Economic Outlook

On the domestic front, growth rates slowed
down much more than anticipated, with both
manufacturing and services activities hamstrung by
supply bottlenecks and sluggish external demand.
Most lead indicators suggest a slow recovery through
FY14. Inflation eased significantly in the fourth
quarter of FY13. However, upside pressures remain,
both at wholesale and retail levels, stemming from
elevated food inflation and ongoing administered
fuel price revisions. The main risks emanate from the
still high twin deficits. These are accentuated by the
vulnerability to a sudden stop and reversal of capital
flows. Moreover, inhibited investment sentiment
and tightening supply constraints, particularly in
the food and infrastructure sectors also add to the
concerns.

All banks, including

us, require a cautious
approach to growth and
customer selection. This
environment will require
the Bank to focus on cost
containment and factors
that enhance productivity
to remain competitive.

4.8%

The fiscal deficit is likely
to drift lower to 4.8% of
GDP in FY14.

78.1%

The credit deposit
ratio for all scheduled
commercial banks
stood at 78.1%
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Further, local headwinds, such as firm inflation,
rising interest rates and policy impediments to
investment only exacerbated the impact of a shaky
global environment on domestic growth. Hence,
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth decreased to
5% in FY13 from 6.2% a year ago and 9.3% in FY11.
There were some course corrections through policy
responses, both from the government and the RBI.
However, their impact may be visible only with a lag.
In particular, the government has embraced a path of
fiscal consolidation. It kept the fiscal deficit target for
FY13 below the initial level of 5.1% of GDP. The fiscal
deficit is likely to drift lower to 4.8% of GDP in FY14.

During FY14, economic activity is expected to show
only a modest improvement over the last vear,
with a pick-up anticipated only in the second half
of the year. Conditional upon a normal monsoon,
agricultural growth could return to trend levels.

Such factors are likely to further impact the credit
environment adversely. All banks, including us,
require a cautious approach to growth and customer
selection. This environment will require the Bank to
focus on cost containment and factors that enhance
productivity to remain competitive.

Banking Sector Overview

The commercial banks, not including regional rural
banks, had approximately ¥ 64.5 lakh crore of
deposits and approximately ¥ 50.8 lakh crore of loans
and advances. Aggregate deposits for all scheduled
commercial banks had registered an annual growth
rate of 14.9% while the loans and advances for all
scheduled commercial banks had increased by 18.1%.
The credit deposit ratio for all scheduled commercial
banks stood at 78.1% (Source: Report on Trend and
Progress of Banking in India 2011-12).

According to information available from RBI's Weekly
Statistical Supplement, scheduled commercial banks
had approximately ¥ 70.9 lakh crore of deposits and
proximately ¥ 54.2 lakh crore of loans and advances
as of June 28, 2013, registering a year-on-year
growth of 13.8% and 13.7% respectively. The credit-
deposit ratio stood at 76.4 as of on June 28, 2013.

Challenges
Asset quality concerns

These concerns were looming large over the banking
industry during the past couple of years. High
interest servicing cost, weak economic GDP growth
and elevated inflation (though subsidising now) led
to the increase in the asset slippages. However,
there were signs of moderation in the net non-
performing assets during fourth quarter of the FY13
owing to government pushing proactive measures
to spur growth trajectory.

Net NPA trend (%) for the banking* industry
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(Source: Angel Broking Research Report, 2013) * all listed banks except Lakshmi Vilas bank

Slowdown in credit demand

The economic slowdown affected the demand
for credit by the domestic industries. The bank
credit witnessed a growth of 11.1% during FY13*
as compared to the growth of 11.8% during FY12

(Source: CARE Ratings).

*ason March 19,2013

Increasing competition

With the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) poised to grant
new banking licenses, the competition is going to
intensify further. This will lead to competition to
retain and grow market share. The banks will need
fresh strategies to attract customers and retain
their customer base. This will also result in higher
cost of operations and resources.

The bank credit

11.1%

witnessed a growth of
11.1% during FY13*

*as on March 19,2013
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Growth drivers A snapshot of infrastructure investment
Technological advancement CAGR 14.6% . A
(o))
Banks invested in technology to automate processes Q 8 % % §
and introduced new channels like automated- > o 3 >
ey ™~

teller machines (ATMs) as well as internet and
mabile banking over last several years. The future
technological innovations will lead to change in banks'
operating models and reducing cost-income ratio.
There is a visible shift in the platform the customers
use to execute transactions. The testimony of the fact
is reflected through following facts:

> The number of mobile banking transactions has
almost doubled to 5.6 million in January 2013 from
2.8 million in January 2012

> The number of ATMs has also increased to 95686
in FY13 from 74505 in FY12

Rising middle class

Middle class is the driving force behind growth in
India due toincreasing disposable income. This pie of
population is expected to touch 53.3 million by 2015-
16 from 31.4 million in 2010-11. With increasing
population, the demand for banking will also escalate
as depicted below.

A snapshot of India’s rising middle class

~
=
0

2010-11 2015-16 2025-26

W Indian middle class households (in million)
B Individuals (in million)
W Percentage of total population

(Source: National Council for Applied Economic Research)

Infrastructure financing

Owing to relative under-development in comparison
to India's infrastructure requirements, there is
immense potential to develop infrastructure.
Infrastructure growth is vital to the country's
GDP growth. The investment requirement in the
infrastructure sector is projected to grow at a
compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of 14.6% from
FY08 to FY17 as depicted below. The banks will play
vital role in bridging the infrastructure gap of the
country through facilitating infrastructure financing.

528316

INR crore

FYos FYOS FY10 FY1 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17
XI PLAN XII PLAN
7.18 7.51 7.94 837 9.00 95 99 103 10.7

(Source: KPMG Report, 2013)

Government support

The RBI slashed repo rate and cash reserve ratio by
75 and 25 basis points till June 2013 respectively
to ease credit and liquidity conditions in India.
Government has also undertaken positive initiatives
to support the banking industry in the Budget 2013-
T4

> Provided capital infusion of % 140 billion to all
public sector banks in FY14

> Allowed an additional tax deduction of ¥ 100000
on interest paid towards home loans upto ¥ 25
lakh availed in FY14 by first-time home buyers

> Permitted banks to sell insurance products of
multiple companies

These measures will push the banking industry's
future growth.

Rural India opportunity

Rural population forms around 69% of India's
inhabitants, contributing almost half of the country's
GDP. The dynamics of rural economy is changing fast
with improving earnings by the rural households.
However, there still exists demand-supply gap
for banking services in rural India. There is only
one village out of six in India, having access to the
banking services (Source: RBI Vision Documents
on Payment Systems for 2012-2015). Focussing
on rural penetration will augment the banking
industry's growth.

Financial inclusion

About 41% of India's households don't access banking
facilities owing to financial illiteracy, lack of collateral,
low income level and so on (as per census 2011). In
the recent years, government increased its focus
on providing banking services to the untapped
population. The government is encouraging banks to
open no frills account and offer low-cost products.
This will open new avenues for the banking industry.

Infrastructure growth is
vital to the country's GDP
growth. The investment
requirement in the
infrastructure sector is
projected to grow at a
compound annual growth
rate (CAGR) of 14.6% from
FY 2007-08 to FY 2016-17
as depicted below. The
banks will play vital role in
bridging the infrastructure
gap of the country through
facilitating infrastructure
financing.
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Operational Review

Bank's operations

Taking forward the transformation exercise that the
Bank embarked on in 2010, it has made significant
progress in terms of building the organisational
capabilities to deliver a ‘New Age’ Bank to its
customers, employees and other stakeholders. The
Bank has a well-defined business strategy, high-
qualitytalentandcustomersegmentfocused product
offerings with enhanced credit processes bringing in
operational controls and a significant automation
of its processes. During the year, the Bank covered
significant distance in the transformation journey
and made progress in various areas of operations.
Some of the areas where considerable work has
happened during the year are discussed below.

Business Focus

The Bank has made significant progress on the
business front by adopting and offering specialised
services in the Carporate and Institutional Banking,
Commercial Banking, Retail, Agriculture, Financial
Inclusion and Financial Markets verticals. Yet, it has
retained a branch-centric business and delivery
model. The Bank has further resourced these
verticals with the right talent to significantly grow
the business. The activities and developments under
different verticals are discussed below:

Corporate and Institutional
Banking (CIB)

The Corporate and Institutional Business Group
continued its expansion during the year. With
coverage teams in Mumbai, Delhi, Bengaluru and
Chennai, the group added several top corporate
relationships during the vyear. Coverage also
commenced in a focused way of the Government
sector and public sector entities. During the year,
the Bank was empanelled with several PSUs. It also
engaged with Municipal corporations to collect local
taxes. In addition to growing the funded balance
sheet, the Bank has been deepening relationships
with its corporate clients by building a non-funded
business driven by trade finance and bank guarantee
products.

Commercial Banking

In FY13, Commercial Banking business grew by
over 35%. The various components of the business,
including Midsized Caorporates, Small and Medium
Enterprises and Business Banking performed well
with focus on building a high-quality asset book. The
business built some marquee relationships during
the year, where there would be significant cross-sell
opportunities in the years to come.

The vear also saw Commercial Banking business
looking to create an appropriate organisation
structure, which was optimal and with significant
stress on getting high-quality talent across various
levels.

On the whole, the basic foundations and building
blocks of the business have been laid and the
focus going forward would be to build on the same
and keep evaluating/reviewing the business on an
ongoing basis, for any changes that may be required
to stay abreast with market realities.

Retail Banking

The Bank expanded its Retail Banking operations
significantly during the year with the launch of new
branches, Automated Teller Machines (ATMs) and
many new products and services that helped the
Bank's growth agenda. The core objective of the Retall
banking business has been to develop a customer-
focused framework of service at a reasonable cost.
The Bank has also started leveraging its new Core
Banking System (Finacle), which was implemented
in December 2012. Key developments during the
year are listed below:

35%

In FY13 Commercial
Banking business grew
by over 35%
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Branch banking

The Bank added 24 new branches during FY13, taking
the total branch network to 125 from 101 (including
service branch) at the close of FY12. Importantly, the
Bank expanded its footprint into new territories of
National Capital Region, Tamil Nadu, Andhra Pradesh
— by setting up branches in New Delhi, Gurgaon,
NOIDA, Chennai and Hyderabad. This will help it
harness the potential of such important banking
centres as well as create a hub to reach other parts of
these economically developed states of the country.

> The Bank expanded in other Tier-Il and below'
locations in states like Rajasthan, Maharashtra,
Andhra Pradesh, Madhya Pradesh and Haryana.

\"4

All the new branches are being set up to new
standards with an on-site ATM and Locker facility.

\"4

In addition, 17 branches were re-furbished to the
new standards, which enhanced their look and
appeal and provided better convenience to the
customers.

v

A new National Sales Channel was set up to focus
on bringing new customers to the franchise.

v

Deposits grew by 75.99% during the year with a
growth of 135% in new customer acquisition.

Electronic banking and ATMs

> The Bank expanded its ATM network from 59 to
184 with monthly transactions crossing 4 lakh.
Some of the ATMs are prominently placed to
enhance the Bank's brand visibility. The Bank's
ATMs are now seen in shopping malls, high
streets and high traffic junctions across cities
where the Bank operates. Some of the ATMs have
been strategically placed in rural centres and are
delivering very high transactions.

> The Bank enhanced ATM presence in its traditional
home markets of Kolhapur and Sangli by setting
up 30 new ATMs.

> The Bank was the first in the country to enhance
debit card suite and deliver ATM Card PIN
(password) through SMS in a secure way and on
a real-time basis. This convenience has helped
many customers to withdraw cash on ATMs even
in case they forget their PIN.

> The Bank enhanced ATM screens to make them
more user-friendly and also allowed lead capture
in case a customer of another bank transacts at
the Bank's ATM.

> The Bank enhanced the retail internet banking
suite to include direct tax payments and straight
through Real-Time Gross Settlement (RTGS)
and National Electronic Funds Transfer (NEFT)
transactions. At the same time, the Bank
launched Corporate Internet Banking that allows
for handling of bulk transactions.

> The Bank introduced a Mobile Banking platform in
March 2013 as an enhancement over the simple
SMS-based banking that it was offering so far. This
brings the Bank at par with other larger Banking
institutions offering e-banking channels.

> The Bank continued to develop the pre-paid co-
branded card offersand added Zaggle and Bitgifting
toits alliances on the Visa platform. Zaggle, aimed
at the youth, allows purchase of movie tickets,
eatables and others across major multiplexes in
the country. The Bitgifting card allows groups to
come together on a web-platform to create a gift
card for the recipient.

R
Importantly, the Bank
expanded its footprint into
new territories of National
Capital Region, Tamil

Nadu, Andhra Pradesh - by
setting up branches in New
Delhi, Gurgaon, NOIDA,

Chennai and Hyderabad

RS
The Bank was the first in
the country to enhance
debit card suite and deliver
ATM Card PIN (password)
through SMS in a secure
way and on a real-time
basis. This convenience
has helped many
customers to withdraw
cash on ATMs even in case
they forget their PIN.
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Retail banking products

> The Bank enhanced interest rate on savings
accounts to 5.5% to enable its customers to take
advantage of changed regulations, which helped
the Bank grow its savings account book.

> The Bank launched a Premium Current Account
product in the market with unique features
aimed at transaction efficiency at low costs.
These accounts helped the Bank to grow its Retall
Current Account book.

> During the vear, the Bank launched pan-
organisational retail lending products. Its lending
product portfolio included home loans, loans
against property, car loans and educational loans
in simple and easy-to-understand formats. These
products helped the Bank to grow this important
loan category by 32% during the year.

Investment and insurance products

> The Bank is a corporate agent for sourcing
life insurance policies for HDFC Standard Life
Insurance Company Limited and for general
insurance policies for Bajaj Allianz General
Insurance Company Limited, which helps the Bank
to meet its customers' insurance needs.

the opportunities and potential of this segment,

> The Bank distributes Mutual Funds and has tied up ~ Agri business is going to develop as one of the
with six high-quality Mutual Funds in the country. ~ Important businesses for the Bank in the medium
With this, the Bank offers new asset classes to its ~ term. It has been modelled to address the different O
customers who have distinct investment needs. The  target markets in a focussed manner and generate 65 /O
Bank is promoting Systematic Investment Plans —economic value for the Bank, farmers and other
(SIPs) in the smaller centres. stakeholders by: The retail branches

agri business portfolio

> These products add to the Bank's fee income 1.Providing focussed attention on the banking i teased by 65% during

stream and helps offer comprehensive products requirements of farmers in their areas of operation  fyq3
to the customers. with focus on direct farmer funding,
Branding 2. Developing innovative products, market-specific

schemes and value proposition for the Agri

> During the year, the Bank developed new branding ‘
business segment.

guidelines, upgrading the presentation of the
brand in the branches, signages as well as branch 3 Increasing outreach through expansion of institutional

marketing material. The upgraded branding  framework and scale by way of direct farmer lending
makes the Bank's brand standout in the midst and de\/elopment Ongr‘_\/alue chain.

of competition. This has been implemented in

new branches and incrementally across the older % FOcusing on key corporate and institutional
branches of the Bank as well relationships in agriculture business.

. . The Bank is leveraging on the strength of its existing
Agr' Business branch netwaork and new branches are being rolled
The Bank has identified Agri business as one of the  out to expand and grow its Agri business portfolio.

key areas for growth and a driver for expansion of = Besides historical branches, which have rich Agri
branch network in Semi urban and Rural India. Given  business potential, new
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branches have been identified, which offer large
agri business potential in retail agri and commodity
business.

During FY13, outstanding agri assets for the Bank
stood at ¥ 826.46 crore. The retail branches agri
business portfolio increased by 65% during FY13.
During the year, the Bank acquired 15000 new farmer
accounts. The Bank launched a revised Kisan Credit
Card scheme in FY13 to address the comprehensive
credit needs of farmers under a single window. Under
this scheme, farmers are being provided Smart Debit
Cards on 'Rupay’ platform.

The Bank launched Warehouse Receipt Financing
program in FY13, wherein credit facilities are being
extended to farmers, processors and grader sorters
for stocking their own produce in the Warehouses in
anticipation of better price realisation later and to
meet immediate liquidity requirements. The Bank
entered into institutional tie-ups with many agro-
corporate houses to enable funding to large number
of farmers.

The Bank also offered credit support for water
conservation in irrigation management system,
community-based lift irrigation system for small
farmers and reclamation of saline land to ensure
better management of natural resources.

Financial Inclusion

FY13 was an important year in the Bank's growth
trajectory from the Financial Inclusion perspective.
The Bank expanded its coverage to over 1000 villages,
reaching out to 75000 households and starting its
presence in Madhya Pradesh.

With the implementation of Finacle, the state-of-
the-art Core Banking System (CBS), launch of a
dedicated technology solution for Financial Inclusion
customers, centralisation of operations, expansion
of micro-banking products and services to over 50
Urban/Semi-Urban/Rural branches, the financial
year concluded by laying strong foundation for an
expanential growth over the next three years.

During the last financial vyear, the Bank
established partnerships with three new Business
Correspondent’s (BC) for reaching the last mile. In
addition tothe continued focus on smalland marginal
farmers and women entrepreneurs, a significant
thrust was given to Banking the underbanked/
unbanked micro-enterprises spread over 5000 pan-

India Micro Small & Medium Enterprises clusters.
The Bank has been pro-active in introducing new
product and revenue business lines for this segment.
In its initiative, it opened dedicated MSME branches
in FY13.

With the growth in the Microfinance Sector, the Bank
strengthened its position as one of the top Banking
partners to the country's high-quality MFlIs. The
growth was backed by in-depth analysis, rigorous
monitoring and governance practices laid by the
Bank.

The Bank has also made advances in the area of on-
field technologies deployed at the village level. All
transactions enabled in the villages either through a
BC or by the Bank employees are executed through a
mobile phone based transaction platform.

Priority sector advances

The Bank's focus on priority sector advances is a
consequence of the larger commitment towards
developing a sustainable financial inclusion
strategy. This strategy aims to create value across
the rural/semi urban areas directed at micro
enterprises, agriculture and related supply chains,
and households. The Bank believes that there is an
immense opportunity to provide financial access to
over 60% of the population, which is either under or
unbanked. The Bank is strategically committed and
uniquely positioned to finance people at the base
of the social pyramid in a commercially sustainable
manner. The Bank's dedicated vertical called
Agriculture and Financial Inclusion takes care of this
business. This vertical is responsible for harnessing
the opportunity from the Bank's large network of
rural and semi-urban branches. The Bank's Priority
Sector Advances are mainly driven by this business
group. These consist of pre and post-harvest credit,
crop loans, agri-equipment loans, agri-infrastructure
schemes and livestock. Besides, it also drives lending
to small, medium and micro enterprises.

The Bank fully met its Priority Sector Lending
Targets for FY13 and exceeded crop loan targets for
Maharashtra at ¥ 36.55 crore, as against the target
of ¥ 33.53 crore.

The Bank's Priority Sector Advances surged from
¥834.03 crore to¥ 1,705.16 crore in FY13, registering
a growth of 104.45%. This works out to 40.73% of
the Adjusted Net Bank Credit (ANBC), against the
mandated target of 40% Continuing the previous

w=

The Bank’s Priority Sector
Advances are mainly driven
by this business group.
These consist of pre and
post-harvest credit, crop
loans, agri-equipment
loans, agri-infrastructure
schemes and livestock.
Besides, it also drives
lending to small, medium
and micro enterprises
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year's growth trend, the Bank's total Agriculture
Advances grew by 99.05% over the previous vear. It
rose to ¥ 826.46 crore, comprising 19.74% of ANBC,
as on March 31, 2013, against a mandated target
of 18%.

exchange business, the Bank has made appropriate
investments in the hiring of new professional talent
across the country, as well as in setting up the
requisite infrastructure.

"

Overall, the Bank’s strong
financial performance
and stringent liquidity
discipline have helped it
fund its growth optimally.
It has also helped it build
on its good track record

Financial Overview

During FY13, the Bank continued to focus on
resource diversification, advances growth, new

Outstanding Credit to Scheduled Castes/Schedule
Tribes out of the total Priority Sector Credit is ¥53.73
crore, spread over 114509 accounts. Actual recovery

in such accounts was ¥ 31.1 crore, representing 96%
of the demand.

Treasury and Financial Markets

The Treasury group significantly increased its scale
and scope during the last financial year. The core
parts of treasury, viz. sales, trading and balance sheet
management functions were strengthened further.
The focus of the group continued to be management
of liquidity and balance sheet. It also aimed to
effectively manage the Bank's Statutory Liguidity
Reserve and Cash Reserve Ratio requirements and
deploy the Bank's liquidity in high-quality earning
securities.

Securities  trading  and

management

The group made rapid strides in corporate bond
market and actively participated in various issues
of both Public Sector Undertakings and Private
Sector Corporates. The Bank further strengthened
and diversified its liquidity profile through Foreign
Currency Borrowing from various inter-bank
participants and enhanced borrowing through
refinance from various Financial Institutions.

Further, ICRA reaffirmed the Bank's A1+ rating for its
¥ 750 crore Certificate of Deposit programme.

liquidity

Foreign exchange and derivatives

The Bank had a very good year on the foreign
exchange business front. In line with the increase
in the number of branches and customers, the
merchant foreign exchange business volume also
enhanced significantly. The Bank also commenced
Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) trading and introduced
new foreign exchange derivative products, which
has increased the offering of treasury products for
the hedging needs of the clients. The Bank is looking
to further introduce new foreign exchange as well
as the interest rate derivative products so as to
complete the suite of treasury offerings. The Bank
has increased the counterparty foreign exchange
limits with various Banks and Financial Institutions.
Keeping in mind the envisaged growth in the foreign

client acquisition, Current and Savings Account
deposit (CASA) mobilisation and credit recoveries.
Besides, it is also focusing on customer centricity
and implementing various important technology
initiatives.

The Bank is focussing on increasing business across
its branches to enhance productivity. The Bank has
progressed substantially on all parameters of this
strategy, improving funding profile, asset quality and
profitability over the last one year.

The Bank's all-round performance in these areas
have resulted in increase in revenues as well as
profitability.

Deposits and borrowings

The Bank's deposits increased from % 4,739.33 crore,
as on March 31, 2012, to ¥ 8340.52 crore, as on
March 31,2013, registering a growth of 75.99%. While
the RBI softened palicy rates, the economy's high
liquidity deficit prevented the deposit rates from
decreasing as much, particularly till the end of third
quarter of FY13. Hence, the customer behaviour was
in favour of term deposits. The increase in savings
deposit rate from 4% to 5.5% in November 2011
helped the Bank to garner 37.60% more savings
deposits since the increase in the rate. Concerted
efforts at increasing the CASA Balances have helped
to increase the Bank's CASA deposit balances by
61.32% during FY13. However, CASA percentage
reduced from 21.51%In FY12t0 19.72% in FY13 owing
to relatively higher increase in term deposits.

The Bank's certificate of deposits programme
increased from % 375 crore to ¥ 750 crore during
the year. Alongside, the Bank's deposit mobilisation
efforts were also widened significantly during the
year. The Bank's clients include:

> Individuals

> Small businesses

with depositors and

lenders alike.
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> Partnerships

> Corporates

> Financial institutions

> Mutual funds

> Insurance companies

> Government/Public sector entities

> Local bodies, Trusts and Associations
> Banks

The Bank has also been able to use its asset
refinancing capabilities very well.

Overall, the Bank's strong financial performance and
stringent liquidity discipline have helped it fund its
growth optimally. It has also helped it build on its
good track record with depositors and lenders alike.

Advances

Net advances surged by 54.30%, from ¥ 4,132.27 crore
iNnFY12t0%6,376.21 crorein FY13. Therise was driven
by an all-round increase in the Bank's advances in all
business verticals. The Bank has started several new
client relationships and is serving its client base with
the introduction of more and more products and
services. The Bank is now providing rupee as well
as foreign currency trade finance facilities to clients,
both fund and non-fund based. The Bank offers
products to suit the needs of large corporates, micro,
small and medium enterprises, agricultural and allied
sectars as well as retail customers.

Revenue and profit growth

The Bank's Net Total Income surged by 51.22% from
¥ 253.93 crore in FY12 to ¥ 383.99 crore in FY13.
The increase was driven by growth in net interest
income as well as other earnings. During this
period, the net profit increased from ¥ 65.73 crore to
% 92.47 crore. Operating expenses increased from
¥ 139.10 crore FY12 to ¥ 227.30 crore in FY13,
mainly due to increase in employee costs, premises
costs, depreciation, technology and communication
expenses. These increases are in line with the Bank's
growth plans and reflect the investment phase that
the Bankisin. As elaborated elsewhere in this report,
the Bank has invested significantly in new branches,
operations, information technology systems and

infrastructure. These investments have to be done
for reaching certain size of a bank and accordingly,
the benefits will be seen as the Bank grows in size.

The growth of the business led to increase in netinterest
income. Diversifying the revenue streams from clients
and enhancing the granularity and stability of revenues
is the Bank's key focus area. To this end, the Business
Groups work closely with each other, so as to offer wide
range of services to the customers. The Bank is seeking
to be a comprehensive service provider to its clients and
to this end it is upgrading its products and technology
capabilities.

The Bank has earned significantly higher fee and
other revenues during FY13. To this end, the Bank
has been offering to its customers trade finance
as well as non-fund based products, direct banking
channel products, foreign exchange and remittance
services, demat services, insurance and mutual
funds sales.

Key Ratio Analysis
Profitability ratios

Returnonassets:Thereturnonassets has decreased
from 1.38%in FY12 to 1.09% in FY13.

Asset quality ratios
Gross NPA ratio: During the FY13, gross NPA reduced
to 0.40% from 0.80% in FY12.

Net NPA ratio: The bank recorded Net NPA of 0.11%in
FY13 as compared to 0.20% in the last financial year.

These results were achieved through judicious
management of credit as well as aggressive and
focused efforts on NPA management and recovery.
The Provision Coverage Ratio (PCR) for the Bank
remained very healthy at 83.51% providing the
necessary cushion in the present economic scenario.

Per share ratios

Earnings per share (EPS): The Bank's earning capacity
increased with its EPS touching ¥ 4.19 per share in
FY13 from % 3.06 per share in FY12.

Book value per share: Book value per share registered
a growth of 19.79%, from ¥ 52.62 in FY12 to ¥ 63.03
nFY13.

These ratios reflect increased shareholder's value in
return for their investment.

51.22%

The Bank's Net Total
Income surged by
51.22% from ¥ 253.93
crorein FY12 to

3 383.99 crore in FY13.

19.79%

Book value per share
registered a growth of
19.79%, from ¥ 52.62 in
FY12t0 % 63.03in FY13
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Risk Management
Risk management strategy

The Bank's risk management strategy is based on
a clear understanding of various risks, disciplined
approach to risk assessment and measurement,
and detailed procedures and controls for effective
manitoring.

Risk is managed through a framework of policies
approved by the Board of Directors and supported
by an independent risk function that ensures that
the Bank operates within its risk appetite. The
risk management function attempts to anticipate
vulnerabilities at the transaction level or at the
portfolio level, as appropriate, through quantitative
and qualitative examination of the embedded
risks. The Bank continues to focus on refining and
improving its risk measurement systems, not only
to ensure compliance with regulatory requirements,
but also to ensure better risk-adjusted return and
optimal capital utilisation, keeping in view the
business objectives. With this in mind, the Bank has
also implemented Risk-based Pricing.

During the vear, the Bank's credit policies have been
revised;, documentation has been made more risk
robust; credit administration processes have been
redesigned and specialisation of risk function has been
instituted. The reporting and information systems
have been strengthened to provide meaningful and
timely information to control individual and portfalio-
level risks. Greater focus is being provided to special-
mention accounts and credit recoveries, which have
already shown results in the form of increased
recoveries and reduced NPAs.

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors at the apex level sets the overall
risk appetite and philosophy for the Bank, which is
disseminated through the Bank by way of policies,
processes and procedures. The Bank's risk management
processes are guided by well-defined policies appropriate
for various risk categories, viz. credit risk, market risk,
operational risk and liquidity risk.

The Risk Management Committee (RMC), which
is a sub-committee of the Board, prescribes risk
management policies, processes, systems and

monitors entire gamut of risks faced by the Bank.
It is supported by Asset Liability Management
Committee (ALCO), Management Credit Committee
(MCC), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC) and Product Approval Committee (PAC).
ALCO is responsible for managing Market Risk
(including interest rates risk, currency risk, credit
risk and equity risk), Liquidity Risk, Interest Rate
Risk in Banking Book, Currency Risk, Funding policy,
Pricing of deposits and advances. MCC is responsible
for credit approvals, credit risk, concentration risk,
implementation of credit policy and framework.
ORMC takes care of operational and internal control
risk. The PAC takes care of various risks associated
with new product launches.

Risk management policy

The Bank's risk management policy provides a
summary of Bank's principles regarding risk taking
and risk management. The principles are based
on best practices. The Bank has developed an
elaborate risk strategy in terms of policy guidelines,
for managing and monitoring various risks. To
provide ready reference and guidance to various
functionaries dealing with risk management function,
the Bank has in place Asset Liability Management
Policy, Commercial Credit Policy, Investment
Policy, Derivatives Policy, Customer Suitability and
Appropriateness Policy, Recovery Policy, Stress
Testing Policy, KYC & AML Policy, Risk Based Internal
Audit Policy, and others, duly approved by the Board.

Risk management: implementation
and monitoring system

The identification, measurement, mitigation and
monitoringof potential risks inallactivities and products
are done through detailed analysis. It is then vetted by
operational level risk committees. Portfolio-level risk
is assessed with the help of various portfolio analysis
reports on credit, market, liquidity and interest rate
risk and also risk profiling on the basis of parameters
prescribed by RBI. The same are reviewed by Board /
RMC / Risk committees / Senior management on an
ongoing basis.

Some of the risks that the Bank is exposed to are
identified, measured and managed as detailed below:

"

The identification,
measurement, mitigation
and monitoring of
potential risks in all
activities and products
are done through detailed
analysis. It is then vetted
by operational level risk
committees.

531

Addition of 531
employees reflects
the Bank's growth
objectives
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the probability of losses associated with reduction in credit quality of borrowers or
counterparties. InaBank's portfolio, losses may arise due to outright default or due ta inability or unwillingness
of a customer or counterparty to meet commitments in relation to lending, trading settlements, or any other
financial transaction. Alternatively, losses could occur due to reduction in portfolio value due to deterioration
in credit quality.

Credit Risk is the most important risk category for the Bank. The Bank assesses credit risk at customer level,
product level, business-segment level, geography level, industry level and also at Bank-wide level. Credit risk
Is assessed before a credit facility is approved or disbursed. After a credit facility is sanctioned and disbursed,
follow-up and reviews are conducted at periodic intervals. There are regular credit portfolio reviews where all
perspectives of credit risk are reviewed and reported and necessary strategies and action points are decided
for managing the risk.

Market Risk

Market Risk is defined as the risk of losses in on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet positions arising
from movements in market prices. It is the risk of adverse deviation of the mark to market value of the
trading portfolio, due to market movements, during the period required to liquidate the transactions. The
Bank has identified risk factors at product/ portfolio level and assigned limits. The market risk is monitored
and managed on a continuous basis.

Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people
and systems or from external events. This may arise on account of frauds, human errors, technology failure,
or business disruption due to disaster. The Bank has documented policies and procedures for carrying out
operational processes and controls to avoid operational errors and frauds. The Bank has devised business
continuity plans for taking care of contingency situations and system/communication outages. The Internal
Audit and Vigilance and Compliance functions along with various external audits serve as a check for the
proper functioning of the aperations of the Bank.

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Bank is unable to meet its obligations as they become due, because of
the difficulty in liquidating assets (market liquidity risk) or in obtaining adequate funding (funding liquidity
risk). The Treasury money market desk is primarily responsible for managing day to day funding liquidity for
the Bank. The desk tracks various market variables on a continuous basis. The Bank maintains a liquidity
buffer on an on-going basis according to the assessment of prevailing liquidity conditions. The Bank has a
Contingency Funding Plan to take care of crisis situations such as a liquidity crunch faced by the Bank.
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Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book (IRRBB)

This is defined as the risk to interest earnings of the Bank due to changes in the prevailing rates of interest
and also due to mismatches in the duration of assets and liabilities. The Bank measures IRRBB using various
statistical measures. Through a Funds Transfer Pricing mechanism assets and liabilities are optimally priced
leaving the interest rate risk in the banking book for the Treasury to manage.

Reputation Risk

Reputationriskis definedas the riskarising from negative perception on the part of customers, counterparties,
shareholders, investors, debt-holders, market analysts, other relevant stake-holders or regulators that
may adversely affect the Bank's ability to maintain existing, or establish new business relationships and
continued access to funding. New products are approved by Product Approval Committee (PAC), which is
a committee of senior executives with representation from Finance, Legal, Compliance, Risk, Operations,
Business, Internal Audit & Vigilance. This ensures that all products are vetted for any potential franchise or
reputational risk before they are offered to the customers.

Compliance Risk

Compliance risk leads that the Bank to suffer material financial loss or damage to reputation as a result of
failure to comply with laws, regulations, rules, self-regulatory organization standards and codes of conduct
applicable to its activities. The Bank has an independent Compliance function which takes care of the
regulatory requirements to be fulfilled by the Bank in its day-to-day functioning.

New Capltal I-\dequacy Framework 'n compthhan;e w;tr] P\Hfar—l\ gluitdedhr;)esl under‘Btase\ I:
(NCAF) i e. Basel Il norms, the Bank has formulated Policy on Interna

Capital Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP).
The Bank has implemented Basel Il Guidelines

with effect from March 31, 2009. It is following a
standardised approach for Credit Risk, Standardised
Duration Approach for Market Risk and Basic
Indicator Approach for Operational Risk, while
computing Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR). It computes
CAR on parallel basis under Basel | and Basel Il, as
per the RBI guidelines.

The Bank has implemented an Internal Credit
Rating System, which is equipped to provide data
on ‘'migration of rating’, calculation of Probability of
Default (PD), Loss Given Default (LGD), Exposure at
Default (EAD) and Expected Loss (EL) and others
to facilitate eventual transition to Internal Rating
Based Approach (IRBA) for capital computation
towards credit risk.

The policy defines the process to assess capital
adequacy in relation to various risks the Bank is
exposed to. The Bank prepares ICAAP Document,
which includes capital adequacy assessment and
projections of capital requirement for the ensuing
years, along with the plans and strategies to meet
capital requirement.

The Bank has adhered to disclosure norms
as stipulated in the RBI guidelines to meet
Pillar-Ill requirements of Basel Il norms. The Bank
has framed Disclosure Policy and has adhered to the
policy guidelines.

The Bank views the implementation of Basel ll norms
as a strategic, forward looking process to adopt the
best practices in risk management with a focus on
creating value.
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Basel Ill norms

The RBI issued final guidelines implementation of
Basel Ill Capital Regulations in India on 2 May 2012
(Basel Il Guidelines) and the guidelines became
operational in a phased manner from April 1, 2013.
These guidelines are for ensuring that the Banks
and the Banking system become more resilient, i.e.
to improve the banking sector's ability to absorb
shocks arising from financial and economic stress,
thus reducing the risk of spill over from the financial
sector to the real economy. Under Basel lll guidelines,
not only the amount of capital but the quality of
capital of the Banks has been enhanced.

The Bank believes that its current robust capital
adequacy position, high level of common equity
capital, adequate headroom currently available to
raise capital, demonstrated track record for raising
capital and adequate flexibility in its balance sheet
structure and business model, will enable it to
comply with the Basel lll norms.

Operations and Technology

The Bank has operationalised its first National
Operating Centre (NOC) at Mumbai and Regional
Processing Centre (RPC) at Kolhapur to centralise
back-end operations across the Bank. Additionally,
all Foreign Exchange and Trade Finance operations
have been centralised with a Hub and Spoke model
for Wholesale Operations. Image-based Workflow
Tracker has been implemented in Retail and Trade
to reduce Turnaround Time (TAT), Error Reduction,
Customer Service, Productivity, MIS and Risk
management.

The Bank upgraded its CBS to Finacle, a product of
Infosys Limited, which holds a leadership position
in the market. This system will enable the Bank
enhance customer relationships, launch new
products and services, and should reduce operational
costs by increasing productivity.

The Bank implemented a dedicated system for
Financial Inclusion business named Ganaseva,
a product of Atyati Technologies. The Bank also
deployed desktop and application virtualisation at all
its branches. Technology infrastructure was further
enhanced to ensure high level of security.

The Bank's Centralised Retail Liabilities Operations
at NOC obtained 1SO 9001:2008 Quality Management
certification. It introduced robust Standard Operating
Procedures to maintain high client service standards
and competitive TAT standards.

Direct Banking Channels have been introduced
with features that enhance customer service and
transaction processing. A variety of products have
been made available through ATMs, Internet banking,
Debit Cards, Prepaid Cards and Mabile Banking.

Customer service

During the transition and growth phase of FY13
amidst the increasing competition and rising client
demands, the Bank had committed itself to deliver
high-quality service and create customer value.
To achieve a breakthrough in service delivery and
client satisfaction, the Bank took cognizance of the
interrelated behaviour and needs of its three key
constituents: clients, employees and investors and
framed customer-centric strategies with extensive
focus on meeting customer expectations.

The Bank realigned its service framework and
deployed a workforce of Regional Service Delivery
Managers, along with a dedicated Branch Customer
Service Team with the prime objective of providing
its customers best-in-class service experience. The
Bank introduced value-added methods to create
an array of products and services, seek customer
feedback and reward exemplary performances.
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The Bank upgraded its
CBS to Finacle, a product
of Infosys Limited, which
holds a leadership position
in the market. This
system will enable the
Bank enhance customer
relationships, launch new
products and services, and
should reduce operational
costs by increasing
productivity.
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Key initiatives included improved learning and
innovation efforts through effective knowledge
transfer and setting up of Standardised Processes,
Operating Procedures, Advanced Core Banking
Solutions and Processing Centres to facilitate
seamless customer service across all functions
of the Bank.

Human resources

The Bank recognises that employee development
initiates any real, successful & permanent
transformation in an organisation. This, simply
put, is adding new capabilities and developing
competencies across the Board to support the Bank's
strategy to become a New Age Bank. Employees are
regularly updated with the current business and
organisational realities and they undergo several
Transformational and Product Training programs.
The Bank has successfully conducted more than
5500 man-days of training in the last one year.
The Bank used innovative learning approaches
like in-house trainers, web enabled and e-learning
solutions to optimise costs and employee time and
enhance learning comfort.

The Bank has also launched Management Associate
Program to attract young talent from reputed
Management colleges. The program has been
designed to build in-house leadership pipeline and
includes giving accelerated learning opportunities
and face time with the leadership team of the Bank,
thus providing enough visibility to demonstrate their
potential.

The Bank's employee base increased from 1,328 as
on March 31, 2012 to 1,859 as on March 31, 2013.
Addition of 531 employees reflects the Bank's
growth objectives and its advancements towards
becoming an employer of choice.

Internal audit and controls

The Bank has an Internal Audit and Vigilance
department to independently evaluate the adequacy
of operational contrals. It also ensures that the
business units adhere to internal processes and
procedures as well as to regulatory and legal
requirements. To ensure independence, the audit
department directly reports to the Audit Committee
of the Board. To mitigate operational risks, the

Bank has put in place extensive internal controls,
including restricted access to the Bank's computer
systems, appropriate segregation of front and
back-office operations and strong audit trails. The
Audit Committee of the Board also reviews the
performance of the audit and compliance functions
and oversees the effectiveness of controls and
compliance with regulatory guidelines. Moreover,
in line with the RBI's guidelines, the Bank follows a
Risk-based Internal Audit approach, wherein each
branch is risk assessed, on the basis of which the
frequency of audit is determined and audited. The
methodology, the risk assessment matrices and
the overall audit plan is reviewed and approved by
the Audit Committee of the Board. Certain activities
of the Bank also get covered under the system
of concurrent audit. As part of internal audit, the
Bank also conducts Revenue Audits, short/surprise
inspection, Information Security Audit. The results of
these inspections/audits are also reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Board.

The Bank's Vigilance Department, which reports
to Chief Vigilance Officer, is actively involved in
‘preventive’ measures, which are essential for
avoiding recurrence of frauds in the Bank. This
department also handles wilful negligence and / or
reckless operational decisions which can potentially
lead to losses for the Bank.
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Key initiatives included
improved learning and
innovation efforts through
effective knowledge
transfer and setting up of
Standardised Processes,
Operating Procedures,
Advance Core Banking
Solutions and Processing
Centres to facilitate
seamless customer service
across all functions of the
Bank
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Directors’ Report

Dear Members,

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventieth Annual Report of The Ratnakar Bank Limited (the Bank),
along with the audited statement of accounts for the year ended March 31, 2013,

Financial performance
The financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2013 (FY13) is summarised in the following table:

Tin crore
Particulars FY12 Change
Advances (Net) 6,376.21 4132.27 54.30%
Deposits 8340.52 4,739.33 75.99%
Net interest income 257.55 186.79 37.88%
Other income 126.44 6713 88.35%
Net total income 383.99 253.93 51.22%
Operating expenses 227.30 139.10 63.41%
Provisions and contingencies 64.22 495,10 30.79%
Net profit 92.47 65.73 40.68%
Gross NPA ratio 0.40% 0.80% -
Net NPA ratio 0.11% 0.20% -
Capital Adequacy Ratio 17.11% 23.20% -
Business per employee 7.92 £.69 18.39%
Business per branch 118.84 88.96 33.59%
Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 24.00 16.50
Transfer to Capital Reserve 2.04 1.44
Transfer to Revenue and Other Reserves 4850 40.50
Transfer to Investment Reserve = 0.15
Dividend for the year (proposed), including tax thereon 17.77 7.48

The Bank posted a net total income of ¥ 383.99 crare and net profit of ¥ 92.47 crore for FY13, as against a net total income of
% 253.93 crore and net profit of ¥ 65.73 crore for FY12.
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Dividend

Considering the overall performance during FY13 and the need to
maintain a healthy capital adequacy ratio as well as to support the
Bank’s future growth, the Board of Directors have recommended,
subject to approval of the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, a dividend of 60 paisa (6%) per equity share for FY13, as
against 30 paisa (3%) per equity share for FY12. This dividend shall
be subject to tax on dividend to be paid by the Bank.

Awards

The success of the Bank's transformation journey is now being
acknowledged by external constituencies. The Bank has been
rated as India's Best Bank (Growth) and ranked 5th overall in the
Mid—sized segment in the 2012 Business Today-KPMG study.
The Bank has also won the prestigious Asian Banker Technology
Implementation Award for Best Core Banking Project in India
for 2012.

Ratings
The Bank's Certificate of Deposits (CD) programme has been rated

A1+ by ICRA Limited. Instruments rated in this category carry the
lowest short term credit risk.

Capital raising and Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)

The Bank is well capitalised with a Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
of 17.11%, as on March 31, 2013. During the year under review,
the Bank raised equity capital to the tune of % 376 crore excluding
shares issued on exercise of equity stock options to employees.
This has helped the Bank to attain a high CAR. The shares were
subscribed to by high-quality institutional and private equity
investors. The Bank is well positioned to meet the Reserve Bank
of India's (RBI)'s new Capital Adequacy guidelines, known as
‘Basel lll Guidelines'.

Net worth

The Bank's net worth, as on March 31, 2013, was % 1,594.20 crore.
It comprised paid-up equity capital of ¥ 252.92 crore and reserves
of ¥ 1,341.28 crore (excluding Revaluation Reserve, Investment
Reserve and Intangible assets).

Know Your Customer (KYC)/Anti-Money Laundering (AML)
measures

The Bank complies with the RBI's KYC/AML guidelines. The Bank's
KYC/ AML Policy is prepared in accordance with the Prevention
of Money Laundering Act 2002 and RBI/IBA (RBI/Indian Banks'
Assaciation) guidelines. Various regulatory reporting requirements,
as set out by the Financial Intelligence Unit of the Government of
India, are complied with by the Bank. The Bank has a transaction
monitoring process in place that isimplemented under a KYC/AML

team. Further, the Bank's employees are being imparted training
on KYC/AML aspects on a regular basis. Executives of the Bank
also attend periodic workshops/seminars organised by Financial
Intelligence Unit (FIU), RBI, IBA and NIBM (National Institute of
Bank Management) to enhance their awareness in these aspects.

Employees Stock Option Plan (ESOP)

The underlying philosophy of Ratnakar Bank Employee Stock
Option Plan (ESOP) is to enable the present and future employees
to share the value that they help to create for the Bank over a
period of time. The ESOP has been designed and implemented in
such a way that an equity component in the compensation goes
a long way in aligning the objectives of an individual with those of
the Bank. During the year, the ESOP was broad-based to include
long-serving employees and make them partners in the Bank's
growth.

Mare details of the ESOP are given in the notes to accounts in the
attached financial statements.

Directors

RBI has nominated its General Manager, Mr. Ajay Michyari, as
RBI Additional Director on the Board of Bank, in place of its earlier
nominee Mr. Subrata Das, with effect from November 1, 2012
to October 10, 2013 to. The Board wishes to place on record its
sincere appreciation of the contribution of Mr. Das to the Bank
during his tenure as Director of the Bank.

The Board of Directors, at its meeting held on December 18,
2012, appointed Mr. D. Sivanandhan, former Director General of
Police (DGP) of Maharashtra, as an Additional Director, with effect
from December 18, 2012. Mr. D. Sivanandhan will hold office as
Additional Director till the date of forthcoming Annual General
Meeting and is eligible for appointment. A detailed profile of
Mr. D. Sivanandhan is given in the Notice of forthcoming Annual
General Meeting for the consideration of the members.

Mr.S. G. Kutte was appointed as Part-time Chairmanin accordance
with the RBI's approval for a period of three years, with effect from
June30,2010,onaremuneration of¥12lakh p.a. Subsequently, with
the approval of RBI, the remuneration of Mr. Kutte was revised to
% 13.8 lakh p.a. with effect from July 1, 2012 for the remainder
of the tenure of his office. Mr. Kutte has completed his term as
Chairman on June 29, 2013.

Mr. Kutte's contribution was of great service to the Bank. The
immense goodwill that he enjoys with all quarters of the society
and various stakeholders and his pragmatic approach, has helped
to fetch credible support from these constituencies in ensuring a
smooth transition in management and business strategy while
ensuring that the traditional franchise and heritage of the Bank
continues to be nurtured, thereby assisting the Managing Director
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& Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) to take effective charge of his role
and responsibilities. Mr. Kutte has also guided the path of certain
strategic initiatives associated with enhancing the Bank's financial
inclusion footprintin the Kolhapur region and in the Bank's broader
serving area. In view of the above, the Board, at its meeting held
on April 30, 2013, unanimously approved the reappointment of Mr.
Kutte as Part-time Chairman for a further period of one year, with
effect from June 30, 2013. A modest revision in his remuneration,
as set out in the notice of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
scheduled on August 30, 2013, was made, subject to approval of
RBI and members.

Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja was appointed as the Managing Director &
CEO for a period of three years, with effect from June 30, 2010, on
terms and conditions as set out in the approval granted by RBI. A
modest revision was made in his remuneration, as proposed by
the Board during FY12 and FY13 which was also approved by RBI
and by the members at their meeting, held on August 30, 2011
and August 29, 2012, respectively. The term of Mr. Ahuja as the
Managing Director & CEO ended on June 29, 2013.

The Board wish to place on record the consistent qualitative and
quantitative business growth of the Bank, under stewardship of
Mr. Ahuja and the immense efforts put in by him to transform the
Bank, making it capable in all aspects for a strong future. In view of
aforesaid, reappointment of Mr. Ahuja for a further period of three
years with effect from June 30, 2013 with modest revision, as
set out in the notice of the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
scheduled on August 30, 2013, was unanimously approved by the
Board subject to approval of RBI and members.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, and
the Articles of Association of the Bank, Mr. Narayan Ramachandran
and Mr. Kiran Patil would retire by rotation at the forthcoming
AGM and being eligible for reappointment; offer themselves for
reappointment at the Annual General Meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends appointment/reappointment
of all the above Directors at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Corporate governance
The Bank’s philosophy

The Bank's philosophy on corporate governance isaimed at supporting
the top management to efficiently conduct its business and meet
its obligations towards its stakeholders. The Bank is committed to
transparent and merit-based organisation and ensures fairness,
transparency and responsiveness in all transactions.

Board of Directors

Constitution

The Board of Directors is constituted in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking Regulation

Act, 1949 and the Articles of Association of the Bank. The Board
consists of eminent persons with considerable professional
expertise in banking, finance and other related fields. Their
eminence, experience and professional credentials helped them
participate in strategy formulation and direction setting for the
Bank, thus adding value to its growth objectives.

The Board comprises nine Non-executive Directors, one Director
appointed as Additional Director by the RBI and one Executive
Director (i.e. Managing Director & CEO).

Committee of Directors

The Board functions either as a full Board or through various
Committees to oversee specific operational areas. The Board
has constituted 10 Committees of Directors to take decisions or
advise the Board on certain operational areas in the best interests
of the Bank. These Committees monitor activities falling within
their term of reference.

The names of the Directors, Committees of Directors as on March
31, 2013, and attendance of Directors at Board/Committee
meetings during the year under review are given in Annexure |
and Il.

Code of Conduct

Forafinancial institution trustis the most important asset. To this
end, the Bank strives to ensure that its actions are in accordance
with the highest standards of personal and professional integrity
and highest level of ethical conduct. The Bank has adopted a code
of conduct which all employees have to adhere to and have to
conduct duties according to the Code of Conduct and avoid even
the appearance of improper behaviour. Some of the areas which
are covered by the code of conduct are fairness of employment
practices, protection of intellectual property, integrity, customer
confidentiality, conflict of interest.

Whistle Blower Policy

Feedback by employees/associates is increasingly becoming
popular to ensure better governance standards and transparency
in the running of the organisations. RBI has also framed a separate
Protected Disclosure Scheme, wherein employees, customers, and
stakeholders of any bank can lodge a complaint with RBI on the
functioning of a bank.

In line with these, the Bank has developed a scheme titled
"Ratnakar Bank Employees Protected Disclosure Scheme”. During
the year under review, the Bank has replaced the aforesaid
policy with more comprehensive "Whistle Blower Policy”. This
policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place/
suspected to have taken place involving, but not limited to:

42 | Building it right



Directors’ Report

= abuse of authority or Misappropriation or misuse of the Bank
funds/assets;

= Dbreach of contract / employee Code of Conduct or Rules,
violation of law /regulation;

» manipulation of the Bank data/records and pilferation of
confidential/proprietary information;

» financial or compliance irregularities, including fraud, or
suspected fraud;

= criminal offence having repercussions on the Bank or its
reputation;

» other unethical, imprudent deed/behaviour.

The policy also affords protection to whistle blower raising a
genuine concern to prevent harassment or victimisation.

Corporate social responsibility

The Bank strives to proactively encourage inclusive growth and
development, thereby participating towards building a sustainable
future.

To support Concern India Foundation (a registered, non-profit,
public charitable trust working towards the objective of Helping
People Help Themselves) as a part of its fund-raising initiatives,
the Bank participated in the Corporate Challenge in Standard
Chartered Mumbai Marathon (SCMM) 2013. The Bank registered
team members and contributed on behalf of the team towards
this cause.

The Bank also continued to support Psychoanalytic Therapy
& Research Centre (PTRC), a public charitable trust that works
towards supporting emotionally disturbed children and adults. The
Bank stood by this organisation, which is functioning significantly
to provide care and training to improve mental health of patients.

The Bank collaborated with Sakhya, an external agency, to drive
awareness against Gender Diversity at workplace. The mission of
Sakhya is to establish gender equality and justice in society. They
work on women empowerment and self-reliance to bring social
changes to make it a more favourable warkplace for women.
Several employees of the Bank also participated in the drive.

The Bank has also continued its Payroll Giving programme, under
which an employee can contribute a small amount towards the
betterment of the community. It also provided financial aid to
various organisations and individuals working in the field of social,
religious, medical and sporting activities.

Disclosures

Other than the transactions entered into normal course of
business, the Bank has not entered into any materially significant
transactions, which could have a potential conflict of interest with
its Promoters, Directors, Management and their relatives.

Statutory Disclosure
Particulars of employees

As required by the provisions of Section 217(2A) of the Companies
Act, 1956 and rules framed thereunder, the names and other
particulars of the employees are set out in the Annexure Il to the
Directors’ Report.

Conservation of energy and technology absorption

The particulars to be disclosed under Section 217 of the Companies
Act, 1956, relating to conservation of energy and technology
absorption are not applicable to the Bank. The Bank is constantly
pursuingits goal of upgrading technology to deliver quality services
to its customers in a cost-effective manner.

Directors’ responsibility statement

The Board of Directars hereby declares and confirms that:

i Theapplicable accounting standards have been followed in the
preparation of the annual accounts for FY13 and there have
been no material departures;

il. Accountingpolicies have been selected and applied consistently
and reasonably, and prudent judgements and estimates have
been made to give a true and fair view of the Bank's state of
affairs and of its profit for FY13;

ii. Properand sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance
of adequate accounting records, in accordance with the
provision of the Companies Act, 1956, for safeguarding the
assets of the Bank and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

iv. The annual accounts have been prepared on a ‘going concern’
basis.

Comments on the Auditors’ Report
There are no observations / qualifications in the Auditors' report.

Auditors

The Statutory Auditors of the Bank, M/s. S, R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP,
Chartered Accountants, will retire at the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting and are eligible for re-appointment. As
recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has proposed
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the reappointment of M/s. S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP as Statutory
Auditors of the Bank. The reappointment is subject to approval
of RBI. M/s. S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP have confirmed that their
re-appointment, if made, will be in compliance within the limits
laid down under provisions of Sections 224 and 226 of the
Companies Act, 1956. The members are requested to consider
their reappointment.

The constitution of Statutory Auditors, S. R. Batliboi & Co., a
partnership firm, has been changed to S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
with effect from April 1, 2013 consequent to their conversion from
a partnership firm into a limited liability partnership under the
Limited Liability Partnership Act, 2008,

Prospects

Despite the headwinds faced by the economy and the banking
industry, the Directors expect a sustained level of growth of
business of the Bank in the coming year, while it continues with
various transformation initiatives through the vear.

Acknowledgment

The Board is grateful to the Government of India, RBI, IBA, other
regulatory autharities, rating agency, financial institutions, banks
and correspondents in India and abroad for their valuable and
unflinching support as well as co-operation and guidance to the
Bank from time to time.

The shareholders have been the key partners in the Bank's
progress. The Board of Directors appreciates their support and is

grateful for the confidence that they have placed in the Board of
Directors and the Bank's management.

The Bank's customers have always supported the Bank in all
its endeavours. The Bank would like to take this opportunity to
express sincere thanks to its valued clients and customers for
their continued patronage in a year when the Bank has seen a
substantial transformation.

The Bank has undertaken a number of initiatives on the
technology and business front in the recent years. Successful
translation of these initiatives into business and earnings growth
has been primarily due to the employees of the Bank, who have
embraced the philosophy of change to help the Bank emerge as
a modern and customer-centric institution. We are grateful to
the employees for their continued commitment and dedication
towards the Bank. The Board appreciates the healthy relationship
with the Officer's Association and Employee Union, which has
facilitated the growth and development of Bank and has created a
positive work environment.

For and on behalf of the Board
S. G. Kutte
Chairman

Place : Kolhapur
Date: July 26,2013
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Annexure |

Sr.No. Committee Members Date of Meetings Total
01. Audit Committee (ACB) Mr. Vimal Bhandari - C.C. April 25,2012, June 20, 2012, 7
Mr. Jairaj Purandare - Alternate Chairman August 29, 2012, October 16, 2012,
Mr.5.G. Kutte December 18,2012, January 29,
Mr. B.D. Arwade 2013, March 21,2013
Mr. Kiran Patil
Mr. Ajay Michyari
02. Share  Transfer & Allotment and Mr. Girish Godbole - C.C. April 26,2012, June 20, 2012, 5
Shareholder's  Redressal ~ Committee  Mr. 5. G. Kutte October 16, 2012,December 18,
(STASRC) Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja 2012, March 21,2013
Mr. B. D. Arwade
Mr. Jairaj Purandare
03. Board Investment Committee (BIC) Mr. Kiran Patil - C.C. April 26, 2012, August 28, 2012, 4
Mr. Narayan Ramachandran October 16,2012 January 29, 2013
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja
Mr. P. Sudhir Rao
0d, Anti-fraud Committee (AFC) Mr. D. Sivanandhan - C.C. January 29, 2013 1
Mr. Girish Godbole
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja
Mr. B. D. Arwade
05. Customer Service Committee (CSC) Mr. S. G. Kutte - C.C. June 20, 2012, August 25, 2012, 4
Mr. B. D. Arwade December 18,2012, March 21,2013
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja
Mr. Girish Godbole
Mr. D. Sivanandhan
06. Nomination Committee (NC) Mr. Narayan Ramachandran - C.C. June 20, 2012, December 18,2012 2
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja
Mr. S.G. Kutte
Mr. D. Sivanandhan
Mr. P. Sudhir Rao
07. Risk Management Committee (RMC) Mr. P. Sudhir Rao - C.C. June 20, 2012, August 29, 2012, 5
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja October 16, 2012, December 18,
Mr. Vimal Bhandari 2012, March 21,2013
Mr. Kiran Patil
Mr. Narayan Ramachandran
08. Board Credit Committee (BCC) Mr. Jairaj Purandare - C.C, April 25, 2012, July &, 2012, October 6
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja 16, 2012, December 18, 2012,
Mr. 5. G. Kutte January 29, 2013, March 21,2013
Mr. Kiran Patil
Mr. VVimal Bhandari
09. Human Resource and Remuneration Mr. P. Sudhir Rao - C.C. April 26, 2012, June 19, 2012, 7
Committee (HR & RC) Mr.S. G. Kutte August 29, 2012, October 16, 2012,
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja December 18, 2012, January 29,
Mr. \/imal Bhandari 2013, March 21,2013
Mr. Jairaj Purandare
10. Capital Raising Committee (CRC) Mr. Narayan Ramachandran - C.C. July 25, 2012, August 29, 2012, 9

Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja
Mr. S, G. Kutte
Mr. P. Sudhir Rao

October 16, 2012, November 22,
2012, December 18,2012, December
20,2012, January 29,2013, February
04,2013, March 26, 2013

C.C.: Committee Chairman
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Annexure Il

Sr. Name of Director Category of B A S B A C N S R B H C A No. of
No. Director 0 C T | F S C R M C R R G Other
D B A C C C ¢t C c & C M  Directorship
S R
R C
C
Number of meetings held in FY13 7 7 5 4 1 2 1 5 7 1
1 Mr. S. G. Kutte Chairman 7 7 5 - 1 4 2 - - 6 7 9 Y None
2 Mr. Vishwavir MD & CEO 7 - 5 4 1 4 2 1 L 5 7 7 Y None
Ahuja
3. Mr.B. D. Arwade  Ind.Non-Exe 6 4 - - 4 2 - - - - - Y None
4 Mr. Kiran Patil Ind. Non-Exe 5 5 - 3 1 - - - 3 L - Y L
5 Mr. Girish Godbole Ind. Non-Exe 6 - 5 - - 4 - 1 - - - - Y 3
6 Mr. Narayan Ind. Non-Exe 5 - - 4 - - 1 - 4 - - 7 Y 10
Ramachandran
7 Mr. Vimal Ind. Non-Exe 5 5 - - - - - - 4 4 6 - Y 10
Bhandari
8 Mr. Jairg) Ind. Non -Exe 7 7 - - - - - 1 - 6 7 Y 2
Purandare
9 Mr. P. SudhirRao  Ind. Non-Exe 6 - - 3 - - 2 - 4 - 6 8 Y 14
10 Mr. D. Ind. Non - Exe 1 - - - - - - - - - - NA 5
Sivanandhan (a)
11 Mr. S N Minche 2 - - 1 - - - - - - - N.A  None
(b)
12 Mr. Subrata Das RBI Nominee 3 3 - - - - - - - - - - Y None
(c)
13 Mr. Ajay Michyari ~ RBI Nominee 3 2 - - - - - - - - - N.A° None

(d)

(a) Mr. D. Sivanandhan was appointed as Additional Director with effect from December 18, 2012

(b) Mr. S.N. Minche retired with effect from June 21, 2012,

(c) Mr. Subrata Das ceased to be Director with effect from November 01, 2012

(d) Mr. Ajay Michyari was appointed as Additional Director by RBI with effect from November 01, 2012.

* Constitution of the Share Transfer and Allotment Committee (STC) was amended and the Shareholders Redressal Committee (SRC)
was merged with the STC. Consequently, the STC was renamed as Share Transfer & Allotment and Shareholders’ Redressal Committee
(STASRC) with effect from March 21, 2013.
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Annexure lll

Statement pursuant to Section 217 (2A) of the Companies Act, 1956 (forming part of the Directors' Report):

Sr.  Name, Qualification and Designation Date of Remuneration Experience Last Employed
No. Age (in years) Commencement Received (in3) (No of Yrs) Name of the
of Employment Company

1 Vishwavir Ahuja Managing Director & 30-Jun-10 8,300,850 31 Bank of
B.Com, MBA, MS (USA), (53)  CEO America

2 Rajeev Ahuja, Head - Strategy 1-Jun-10 8,708,012 27 Citibank N.A.,
B.Com, MBA, (49) India

3 Shanta Vallury Gandhi, Head - Branch Banking 15-Sep-10 6,382,516 23 American
MA, MMM, (46) & Distribution Express

4 Sunil Gulati, Chief Risk Officer 4-0ct-10 7,438,108 29 Yes Bank
BTech, PGDM, (51) Limited

5 Tajinder Kumar Head - Human 5-0Oct-11 6,440,252 23 Deutsche Bank
MSC (HRM), LLB, (44) Resources AG

6 Joginder Singh Rana, Chief Operations Officer ~ 1-Feb-12 7,376,506 23 Citibank N A,
CA, ICWA, CS, CFE (USA), (47) India

7 Andrew Gracias, Head - Financial 1-Jun-12 5,148,990 17 UBS

B. Com, CA, (40)*

Markets

* Indicates employed for part of the year.

Notes:

1.

Remuneration as above includes salary, taxable allowances, LTA, Value of perquisites incurred by the Bank as per the Income

Tax Rules, 1962 and Company's Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund. In addition, employees also draw Annual
Performance Linked Variable Compensation.

The nature of employment is Permanent.

3. None of the employees mentioned above are related to any Director of the Bank.

For and on behalf of the Board
S. G. Kutte
Chairman

Place : Kolhapur
Date: July 26,2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members of The Ratnakar Bank Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

1,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements
of The RatnakarBank Limited (“the Bank"), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2013, the Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

2,

Management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of
the Bank in accordance with accounting principles generally
acceptedin India, including the Accounting Standards referred
to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of the Companies Act,
1956 (‘the Act’) read with guidelines issued by the Reserve
Bank of India insofar as they are applicable to the Bank
and in conformity with Forms A and B (revised) of the Third
Schedule to the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 as applicable.
This responsibility includes the design, implementation and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

6. Inouropinionand tothe bestof ourinformation and according

(i)

(iii)

to the explanations given to us, the financial statements
give the information required by the Banking Regulation Act,
1949 as well as the Companies Act, 1956, in the manner so
required for the banking companies and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India:

in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the
Bank as at March 31, 2013;

in the case of the Profit and Loss Account of the profit for the
year ended on that date; and

in the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of cash flows for the
year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter

7.

We draw attention to note 5 of schedule 17 to the financial
statements, which describes deferment of pension liability
relating to existing employees of the Bank arising out of the
opening of the Il Pension Option, to the extent of ¥ 6.57 crore
pursuant to the exemption granted by the Reserve Bank
of India to the Bank from application of the provisions of
Revised Accounting Standard (AS) 15, Employee Benefits vide
its letter DBOD.No.BP.BC 15896/21.04.018/2010-11 to the
Bank dated April 8, 2011 regarding Re-opening of Pension
Option to Employees and Enhancement in Gratuity Limits —
Prudential Regulatory Treatment. Our opinion is not qualified
in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Matters

8.

The Balance Sheet and the Profit and Loss Account have
been drawn up in accordance with the provisions of Section
29 of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 read with Section 211
of the Companies Act, 1956.
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10.

11.

We report that:

(@)

we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and have found
them to be satisfactory.

the transactions of the Bank, which have come to our
notice, have been within the powers of the Bank.

the financial accounting systems of the Bank are
centralised and therefore, accounting returns for the
purpose of preparing financial statements are not
required to be submitted by the branches; we have
visited 17 branches for the purpose of our audit.

In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account
and Cash Flow Statement comply with the Accounting
Standards referred to in sub-section (3C) of section 211 of
the Companies Act, 1956.

We further report that:

(i)

the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Account and
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report, are in
agreement with the books of account.

(ii)

(ifi)

in our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law have been kept by the Bank so far as appears from
our examination of those books.

on the basis of the written representation received
from the directors and taken on record by the Board
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2013 from being appointed as a director in
terms of clause (g) of subsection (1) of section 274 of the
Companies Act, 1956.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 301003k

per Surekha Gracias

Partner

Membership No. 105488

Place : Mumbai
Date:June 19, 2013
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Balance Sheet as on March 31,2013

(% in '000s)

Schedule No. m 31-Mar-12
Capital & Liabilities
Capital 1 252 92 47 214 94 74
Reserves & Surplus (P&L) 2 1353 .82 14 928 24,71
Deposits 3 8340 51 86 4739,32 .99
Borrowings 4 2737 34 91 1198,55 17
Other Liabilities & Provisions 5 278,74 83 124 24,89
Total 12963 ,36 ,21 7205 ,32 ,50
Assets
Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India 6 290 84 05 263,30 ,28
Balances with Banks and Money at Call
and Short Notice 7 397 74 27 322 31 60
Investments 8 5571 42 05 2333 83 47
Advances 9 6376 21,20 4132 ,26 94
Fixed Assets 10 O4 26 24 58 .89 51
Other Assets 11 232 88 40 94,20,70
Total 12963 ,36 ,21 7205 ,32 ,50
Contingent Liabilities 12 6348 ,16 81 574,90 33
Bills for Collection 1,49 11 16,86 39
Significant Accounting Palicies 17
Notes To Accounts 18
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Balance Sheet
As per our report of even date attached
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 301003E
Surekha Gracias Subhash Kutte Vishwavir Ahuja
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105488

Vimal Bhandari Jairaj Purandare
Director Director

Place : Mumbai Naresh Karia Virta Jain
Date :June 19, 2013 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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Balance Sheet Statement of Profit and Loss

Statement Of PI’Ofit and LOSS for the year ended March 31, 2013

(% in '000s)
Particulars Schedule No. m 31-Mar-12
I Income
Interest Earned 13 879,32 09 465,08 35
Other Income 14 126 43 31 67 13,27
Total 1005 ,75 ,90 532 ,21,62
Il Expenditure
Interest Expended 15 621,77 34 278,29 12
Operating Expenses 16 227 29 B1 139,09 67
Provisions and Contingencies 64,22 07 49,09 ,90
Total 913,29 ,02 466 ,48 ,69
Il Profit/Loss
Net Profit /( Loss) for the year 92 46 88 65,72 .93
Profit Brought forward 5,89 39 87
Total 92 52,77 66,12 ,80
IV Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 24,00 ,00 16 50,00
Transfer to Capital Reserve 2 04 36 1.44,09
Transfer to Revenue & Other Reserves 48 50,00 40 50,00
Transfer to Investment Reserve = 15,03
Proposed Dividend 15,18 ,71 6 44 84
Tax on Dividend 2,57 97 1,02 .95
Balance carried over to Balance Sheet 21,79 5,39
Total 92 ,52,77 66,12 ,80
EPS Basic ) 4,19 3.06
EPS Diluted () 4,16 3.04
Significant Accounting Palicies 17
Notes To Accounts 18
The Schedules referred to above form an integral part of the Profit and Loss Account
As per our report of even date attached
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 301003E
Surekha Gracias Subhash Kutte Vishwavir Ahuja
Partner Chairman Managing Director & CEO
Membership No. 105488
Vimal Bhandari Jairaj Purandare
Director Director
Place : Mumbai Naresh Karia Virta Jain
Date :June 19,2013 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
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CaS h F lOW State m e nt for the year ended March 31, 2013
(3 in '000s)

Sr. Particulars m 2011-12
I Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net Profit for the Year (before taxes) 134,08 ,06 96,16 38

Adjustments for:-

Add : Loss / (Profit) on Sale of Fixed Assets (Net) (1,60,19) (2,09 83)

Add : Back: Non-Cash Expenditure

Depreciation 13 24 32 7,78 87

Cash Flow before Changes in Working Capital 145,72 19 101,85 42

Adjustments for working capital changes:-

Deposits 3601 ,18 87 2697 17 31

Borrowings 1538,79 74 1190 ,86 ,00

Other Liabilities and Provisions 154 49 94 29,38 94

Deposlts placed having original maturity greater than 3 months (1,09 43) 83 41 49

Investments (3237 58 58) (1441 ,35 11)

Advances (2243 94 ,26) (2227 10 ,22)

Other Assets (138 44 69) (47,02 ,26)

Direct Taxes paid (41 84 ,19) (368 42 60) (39,16 47) 246,19 68

Cash generated from Operating Activities (222,70 41) 348,05 ,10
Il Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Addition to Other Fixed Assets (51,96 97) (23 41 32)

Addition to Capital Work in Progress 2,20,23 (81 ,90)

Sale of Fixed Assets 2,72 42 3,00 82

Cash generated from Investing Activities (47 04 ,32) (21,22 40)
Il Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds of share issue 388,35 83 =

Additions to Revenue Reserves 52 52

Proposed Dividend (15,18 ,71) (6 44 B4)

Tax on proposed dividend (2,57 ,91) (1,02 ,95)

Cash generated from financing Activities 371.11,73 (747,79
IV Increase/Decrease during the Year 101,37 00 319 34 91
V  Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 574 52 37 255 17 46
VI Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 67589 37 574 52 37

As per our report of even date attached
For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regn. No. 301003k

Surekha Gracias

Vishwavir Ahuja
Managing Director & CEO

Subhash Kutte
Partner Chairman
Membership No. 105488

Jairaj Purandare

Director

Vimal Bhandari
Director

Virta Jain
Company Secretary

Naresh Karia
Chief Financial Officer

Place : Mumbai
Date:June 19, 2013
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Cash Flow Statement Schedules
SCh ed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013
Schedule 1 - Capital (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
Authorised Capital
£40,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/- each 400,00 ,00 400,00 ,00
(previous year 40,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/- each)
Issued
25,29,24,711 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/- each 252 92 47 220,11,70
(previous year 22,01,17,000 Ordinary Shares of % 10/- each)
Subscribed & Paid-up
25,29,24,711 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10/- each 252 92 47 214 94,74
(previous year 21,49,47,396 Ordinary Shares of  10/- each)
Total 252,92 47 214 94,74
Schedule 2 - Reserves & Surplus (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1.  Statutory Reserve
(i) Opening Balance 55,65 ,00 39,15 ,00
(i) Addition during the vear 24 00 00 16,50 ,00
(iii)  Deduction during the year = =
Total 79,65 ,00 55,65 ,00
2. Capital Reserve
(i) Opening Balance 8,20 13 6,76 04
(i) Addition during the vear 2 04 36 1,44 09
(i) Deduction during the vear = =
Total 10,24 ,49 8,20,13
3. Revaluation Reserve
(i) Opening Balance 112,28 1,15 ,91
(i) Addition during the vear - -
(i) Deduction during the vear (Depreciation on revalued portion credited to P&L A/c.) 345 3,63
Total 1,08 83 112,28
4,  Share Premium
(i Opening Balance 788 471 34 788 41 34
(i) Addition during the year 350,38,10 =
(iii)  Deduction during the year = =
Total 1138,79 44 788 .41 34
5.1 Revenue & Other Reserves
() Opening Balance 73 63,00 33,13 ,00
(i) Addition during the year 49,02 52 40 50,00
(i) Deduction during the year - -
Total 122 65,52 73,63 ,00
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Schedule 2 - Reserves & Surplus (contd.) (% in '000s)

Particulars m 31-Mar-12

5.2 Investment Reserve

(i) Opening Balance 1,17 07 1,02,05
(i) Addition during the year = 15,02
(iii)  Deduction during the year - -
Total 1,17 ,07 1,17 07
6. Balance in Profit & Loss Account 21,79 5,39
Total (1 to 6) 1353 ,82 ,14 928 ,24,71
Schedule 3 - Deposits (% in '000s)

Particulars m 31-Mar-12

A. 1. Demand Deposits

i) From Banks 18,24 97 4,47 .18
i) From Others 1091 64 48 582 50 06
Total 1109 ,89 ,45 586 97 .24
2. Savings Bank Deposits 534 46 66 432 31 81

3. Term Deposits
i) From Banks 977 91 81 832 62,69
i) From Others 5718 23 94 2887 41,25
Total 6696 ,15,75 3720 ,03 94
Total (1 to 3) 8340,51,86 4739 ,32,99
B. i. Deposits of Branches in India 8340 51 86 4739 32 99
ii. Deposits of Branches outside India - 3
Total 8340,51,86 4739,32 ,99
Schedule 4 - Borrowings (% in '000s)

Particulars m 31-Mar-12

1. Borrowings in India

(i) Reserve Bank of India 702 30,00 315,00,00
(i) Other Banks 100,00 ,00 100,00 00
(i)  Other Institutions and Agencies 1812,18,03 770 26 67
(iv) Subordinated debts - -
Total 2614 ,48 03 1185 ,26 ,67
2. Borrowings outside India 122 86,88 13,28 50
Total (1 +2) 2737 34 91 1198 ,55,17

Secured Borrowings included in 1 & 2 Above are ¥ 699 ,59 ,00 thousands (previous year ¥ 74 96,70 thousands)
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Schedule 5 - Other Liabilities and Provisions (3 in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Bills Payable 25 29 53 11,6912
2. Inter Office Adjustments (Net) - -
3. Interest Accrued 80 59,96 52 96 80
4. Others (Including Provisions) * 172 85 34 59 58 97
Total (1 to 4) 278,74 83 124,24 89
* Includes Provision against Standard Assets 26 35 90 16,34 .90
Schedule 6 - Cash and Balances with Reserve Bank of India (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. (CashinHand 54,63 81 32 61,36
2. Balance with Reserve Bank of India

(i) InCurrent Account 236,20 24 230 68 92

(i) In other Accounts - -
Total (1 +2) 290 ,84 05 263,30,28
Schedule 7 - Balance with Banks & Money at call and short notice (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Inlindia
(i) Balances with Banks

a) In Current Accounts 76 37 .25 39,74 65

b)  In other Deposit Accounts 137 68,95 11.,60,71
(i) Money at Call and Short Notice

a)  With Banks 75,00 ,00 50,00 ,00

b)  With Other Institutions 90,00 ,00 219 96 31
Total (i+ii) 379,06 ,20 321,31,67
2. Outside India
(i) In Current Accounts 18,68 ,07 1,49 93
(i) In Other Deposits Accounts = =
(iii) Money at Call and Short Notice = =
Total (i+ii+iii) 18,68 ,07 1,49 93
Total (1 + 2) 397,74 27 322,81 ,60
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Schedule 8 - Investments (Zin '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Investments in India (Gross) 5571 63,17 2336 ,12 50
Less — Provision for depreciation & non-performing investment 2112 2,29 03
Total 5571 42 05 2333 83 47
Break Up
(i)  Government Securities 3262 62,10 1430 80 48
(i) Other Approved Securities = =
(i) Shares 471,95 471,95
(iv) Debentures and Bonds 1203 ,15 65 422 63 43
(v)  Subsidiaries and / or Joint Venture - -
(vi) Others * 1100 ,92 35 475 67 61
Total 5571 42 05 2333 .83 47
* Details of Others (vi)
(i NABARD / SIDBI / NHB Deposit 55 37 35 69,11 49
(i) Commercial paper & Certificate of deposits 495 21,33 292 .80 12
(i) Mutual Funds 110,00 00 105,00 ,00
(iv) Venture Capital Fund 9 95 47 8,76 00
(v) Pass Through Certificates 406 63,20 =
(vi) Security Receipts 23,75 ,00 -
Total 1100,92 ,35 475,67 61
2. Investments Outside India
(i) Government Securities (Including Local Authorities) = =
(i) Subsidiaries and / or Joint \Venture abroad - -
(i) Other Investments - -
Total - -
Total (1 + 2) 5571 42 ,05 2333 ,83 47
Schedule 9 - Advances (Zin '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
A.
(i) Bills Purchased and Discounted 234 22 34 356 65,09
(i) Cash Credits, Overdrafts & Loans Repayable on Demand 1195 ,00 36 827 05,39
(i) Term Loans 4946 98 50 2948 56 46
Total 6376 ,21 ,20 4132 ,26 .94
B.
(i) Secured by Tangible Assets (Includes advances against Book Debts) 5719 89,75 3692 25 23
(i) Cover by Bank/Government Guarantees 12 48,80 -
(i) Unsecured 643 82 65 440,01 ,71
Total 6376 ,21 ,20 4132 ,26 ,94
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Schedule 9 - Advances (contd.) (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
C.1 Advances in India
(i) Priority Sector 1315,07,73 843 98,69
(i) Public Sector - 40,3812
(i) Banks - -
(iv)  Others 5061 ,13 47 3247 90 13
Total 6376 ,21 ,20 4132 ,26 94
C.2 Advances Outside India
(i) Due from Banks - -
(i)  Due from Others
a) Bills Purchases and Discounted = =
b) Syndicated Loans - -
c) Others - -
Total - -
Total (C1 + C2) 6376 ,21 ,20 4132 ,26 94
Schedule 10 - Fixed Assets (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Premises
(i) At cost at March 31 of the preceding year 705,92 7 45,72
(ii) Additions During the Year 3,97 02 =
(i) Deductions During the Year 56 96 39,80
(iv)  Depreciation to date 90,70 84,27
Total 9,55 ,28 6,21 ,65
2. Other Fixed Assets
(i) At cost at March 31 of the preceding year 73 55 94 52 .27 33
(ii) Additions During the Year 47 99 95 23 41 .32
(i) Deductions During the Year 1,08,01 212,71
(iv) Depreciation to date 45 90 66 33,22 05
Total 74 57 ,22 40,33 .89
3. Leased Assets
(i) Atcostat March 31 of the preceding year
(ia) Lease equalisation - Opening balance 1,35,09 1,35 ,09
(i) Additions During the Year - -
(iii)  Less: Provision held 1,35,09 1,35 ,09
(iv) Depreciation to date = =
Total - -
4, Capital Work in Progress 10,13 ,74 12 33,97
Total (1 to 4) 94,26 24 58,89 ,51
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Schedule 11 - Other Assets (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Inter-Office Adjustment (Net) = 2,27 00
2. Interest Accrued 123 90 67 51 64,28
3. TaxPaid in Advance/Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provision) 9 65 56 202,80
4. Stationery and Stamps 116 46 4Ll 85
5. Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (Refer Note 3.6 of Sch. 18) 9,28,73 9,16 36
6. Others 88,86 98 28,65 41
Total (1 to 6) 232,88 40 94,20,70
Schedule 12 - Contingent Liabilities (% in'000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts 54 55 54, 55
2. Liability for Partly Paid Investment 2,13 58 4,23 45
3. Liability on Account of Outstanding forward Exchange contracts 4277 L7 73 10,29 42
4. Guarantees given on behalf of constituents

(i) InIndia 639,18 ,23 368 46 89

(i) Outside India 995,80 60 1,19 88

Acceptances, Endorsements and other Obligations 285,15 52 69 99 37
6. Other items for which the Bank is contingently liable

a) Income tax & other matters (under appeal) 7 .81 .40 7 48 Bh

b) Others 140 05,20 112 68,23
Total (1 to 6) 6348,16 ,81 574 90,33
Schedule 13 - Interest Earned (% in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Interest / Discount on Advances / bills 616 52 87 347 40 34
2. Income on Investments 255,76 26 109,38 98
3. Interest on balance with RBI and Other Inter bank funds 6,73 .85 7,74 39
4, Others 29 11 54 64
Total (1 to 4) 879,32 ,09 465 ,08 35
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Schedule 14 - Other Income (3 in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Commission, Exchange and Brokerage 17 14 57 7 83 65
2. Profit on sale of Investments (Net) 27 39,26 4 31 62
3. Profit / (Loss) on sale of land, building and other assets (Net) 160,19 2,09 83
4. Profit on exchange transactions (Net) 866,75 19 24
5. Miscellaneous Income 71 .63 04 52 68,93
Total (1 to 5) 126 ,43 81 67 13,27
Schedule 15 - Interest Expended (T in '000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Interest on Deposits 484,02 93 245 82,78
2. Interest on Reserve Bank of India / Inter-Bank Barrowings 123 96 36 25,79 06
3. Others 13,78 05 667,28
Total (1 to 3) 621,77 34 278,29 12
Schedule 16 — Operating Expenses (% in'000s)
Particulars m 31-Mar-12
1. Payments to and provisions for employees 125,06 29 84,14 97
2. Rent, taxes and lighting 32 43,25 17,33 60
3. Printing and stationery 1,65,99 1,26 .13
4. Advertisement and publicity 32,38 35 22
5. Depreciation on banks property 13 24 32 7,78 87
6. Director's fees, Allowances and expenses 27 65 21 64
7. Auditors fees and expenses (Including branch auditor's fees and expenses) 44 90 16 .99
8. Law Charges 57 56 24,80
9. Postage, Telegrams, Telephones, etc. 2 .55,00 1,30,97
10. Repairs and maintenance 2 40 86 1,78 32
11. Insurance 5,09 24 3,32 44
12.  Other Expenditure 43 21 67 2117 .72
Total (1 to 12) 227 ,29 61 139,09 ,67
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Schedule 17 - Significant accounting policies and notes
forming part of the financial statements

Basis of preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention and on the accrual basis of
accounting, unless otherwise stated, and comply with statutory
requirements prescribed under the Third Schedule (Form A
and Form B) of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, circulars and
guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India ('RBI') from time
to time, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the Accounting
Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India (ICAI) and notified by the Companies (Accounting Standard)
Rules, 2006 to the extent applicable and current practices generally
prevalent within the banking industry in India.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India (GAAP')
requires the management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses and disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date
of the financial statements. The estimates and assumptions
used in the accompanying financial statements are based upon
management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances
as of the date of the financial statements. Actual results may
differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying
financial statements. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Significant Accounting Policies
1. Advances

Advances are stated net of provisions made in respect of non-
performing advances. Advances are classified as Performing
and Non-Performing Assets (NPA') based on the relevant
RBI guidelines. Provisions in respect of non-performing and
restructured advances are made based on management's
assessment of the degree of impairment of the advances
subject to the minimum provisioning levels prescribed under
RBI guidelines with regard to the Prudential Norms onIncome
Recognition, Asset Classification & Provisioning prescribed
from time to time. In case of restructured accounts provision
is made for erosion/diminution in fair value of restructured
loans, in accordance with RBI guidelines. The Bank also
maintains provision on standard assets to cover potential
credit losses which are inherent in any loan portfolio in
accordance with RBI guidelines in this regard. Provision made
against standard assets is included in ‘Other Liabilities and
Provisions'. Amounts recovered against debts written off in

earlier years and provisions no longer considered necessary
based on the current status of the borrower are recognised
in the profit and loss account.

Investments

Classification and valuation of Bank's Investments is carried
out in accordance with RBI guidelines and Fixed Income
Money Market and Derivatives Association (‘FIMMDA')
guidelines.

a) Classification

Investments are classified into ‘Held for Trading' (HFT'),
'Available for Sale' (AFS') and ‘Held to Maturity' (HTM)
categories at the time of purchase. Investments, which
the Bank intends to hold till maturity are classified
as HTM investments. Investments that are held
principally for resale within a short period, including
short sale, are classified as HFT investments. All other
investments are classified as AFS investments. The
Bank follows settlement date method for accounting of
its investments. For the purpose of disclosure in the
financial statements, the Investments are classified
under six groups viz. Government Securities, Other
Approved Securities, Shares, Debentures and Bonds,
Subsidiaries / Joint Ventures and Others.

Investments are classified as performing or non-
performing as per RBI guidelines.

b) Valuation

Investments classified as HTM are carried at acquisition
cost. Any premium paid on acquisition, over the face
value, is amortised aver the remaining period of maturity
by applying constant yield method. Where in the opinion
of the management, a diminution, other than temporary
in the value of investments classified under HTM has
taken place, suitable provisions are made.

Investments classified as AFS and HFT are marked-
to-market on a periodic basis as per relevant RBI
guidelines. The securities are valued scrip-wise and
depreciation / appreciation is aggregated for each
category. Net appreciation in each category, if any, is
ignored, while net depreciation is provided for. The book
value of individual securities is not changed consequent
to the periodic valuation of investments.

Treasury bills, commercial papers and certificates of
deposit being discounted instruments are valued at
carrying cost including the pro rata discount accreted
for the holding period.
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c

d)

For deriving market value of dated Central and State
Government securities and unquoted fixed income
securities (other than Central and State Government
securities), vields/rates declared by the FIMMDA in
consultation with Primary Dealers Association of India
(‘PDAI) are used. Quoted equity shares are valued at
National Stock Exchange closing rates applicable as
at year end. Unquoted equity shares are valued at the
break-up value, if the latest Balance Sheet is available
(which should not be more than one year prior to the
date of valuation) or at ¥ 1 as per the RBI guidelines.
Quoted Mutual Fund units are valued as per Stock
Exchange quotations and un-quoted Mutual Fund units
are valued at last available re-purchase price or Net
Asset Value (where re-purchase price is not available).
Security receipts are valued as per the Net Asset Value
provided by the issuing Asset Reconstruction Company
from time to time .

Transfer between categories

Transfer of investments between categories is
accounted in accordance with the extant RBI guidelines:

a) Transfer from AFS/HFT to HTM is made at the
lower of book value or market value at the time
of transfer.

b) Transfer from HTM to AFS/HFT is made at
acquisition price/book value if originally placed in
HTM at par or at a discount and at amortised cost
if originally placed in HTM at a premium.

c) Transfer from AFS to HFT category or vice-
versa is made at book value and the provision
for the accumulated depreciation, if any, held is
transferred to the provisions for depreciation
against the HFT securities or vice-versa.

Repurchase transactions

Repurchase (repo’) and reverse repurchase (reverse
repo’) transactions are accounted for as borrowing
and lending transactions. Accordingly, a security given
as collateral under an agreement to repurchase them,
continue to be held under the investment account of
the Bank and the Bank would continue to accrue the
coupon/discount on the security during the repo period.
Also, the Bank continues to value the securities sold
under repo as per the investment classification of the
security. The difference between the clean price of the
first leg and clean price of the second leg is recognized

as interest income/expense over the period of the
transaction in the profit and loss account.

e) Broken period interest, brokerage etc.

Broken period interest and costs such as brokerage paid
at the time of acquisition of the security are charged to
the Profit and Loss account.

Foreign currency and Rupee Derivative transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded
at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transactions.
Exchange differences arising on foreign currency transactions
settled during the vyear are recognised in the profit and
loss account.

Income and Expenditure items are translated at the rates of
exchange prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the balance sheet date at rates of exchange
notified by the Foreign Exchange Dealers' Association of
India (‘FEDAI') and the resultant exchange differences are
recognized in the Profit and Loss account.

In accordance with RBI Circular No. DBOD No.
BP.BC.76/21.04.018/2005-06 dated April 5, 2006 and
Accounting Standard -11, the effect of change in foreign
exchange rates, foreign exchange trading positions including
spot and forward contracts are revalued at each month
end at the prevailing market rates notified by FEDAI The
resulting gains and losses are recorded in the profit and loss
account. The notional values of these contracts are recorded
as contingent liability at the closing exchange rates.

Foreign currency contracts are marked to market at rates
notified by FEDAI except in case of swaps entered into for
hedging an on-balance sheet foreign currency exposure.
The profit or loss on revaluation is recorded in the Profit
and Loss account and is included in "Other assets” or “Other
liabilities" respectively. The notional value of these contracts
are recorded as a Contingent liability.

Foreign currency contracts, designated as Hedges, are not
marked to market and are accounted for on an accrual basis
pursuant to the principles of hedge accounting as per RBI
guidelines.

Swap cost arising on account of foreign currency swap
contracts to convert rupee assets/liabilities into foreign
currency assets/liabilities or vice versa is charged to profit
and loss account as interest cost by amortising over the
tenor of the swap.
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Foreign currency options are marked to market using market
values after considering the premium received or paid. The
profit or loss on revaluation is recorded in the profit and
loss account and corresponding asset or liability is shown
under “Other assets” or “Other liabilities”, as the case may
be. Premium received and premium paid is recognized in
the profit and loss account upon expiry or exercise of the
options. The notional value of these options is recorded as a
Contingent liability.

Rupee derivative transactions comprise interest rate swaps.
These swaps are marked to market using appropriate
interest rates. The profit or loss on revaluation is recorded in
the Profit and Loss account and is included in "Other assets"
or "Other liabilities”. The notional value of these swaps is
recorded as Contingent Liability.

Rupee Interest Rate Swaps, which are designated as
Hedges where the underlying is not marked to market, are
accounted on accrual basis pursuant to the principles of
hedge accounting as per RBI guidelines.

Provisioning of overdue customer receivable on interest rate
and foreign exchange derivative transactions, if any, is made
as per RBI guidelines.

With respect to credit exposures to counterparties arising on
account of the interest rate and foreign exchange derivative
transactions, which are computed as per the current marked
to market value of the contract, a provision is made as is
applicable to the loan assets in the 'standard’ category.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation

Fixed Assets are accounted for at cost less accumulated
depreciation. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and
incidental expenses related to the acquisition and installation
of the asset. Premises acquired up to March 31, 1998 have
been revalued by the management and are stated at such
revalued figure. The appreciation on revaluation is credited
to '‘Premises Revaluation Reserve’ Account. On disposal of
revalued premises, the amount standing to the credit of
the Premises Revaluation Reserve is transferred to Capital
Reserve. Depreciation attributable to the enhanced value is
transferred from Premises Revaluation Reserve to the credit
of depreciation in the profit and loss Account.

Depreciation is provided as per straight-line method from
the date of addition over the estimated useful life of the
asset.  Depreciation on assets sold during the year is
charged to the profit and loss account up to the date of
sale. If the management's estimate of the useful life of a
fixed asset at the time of acquisition of the asset or of the

remaining useful life on a subsequent review is shorter,
then the depreciation is provided at a higher rate based on
management's estimate of the useful life/remaining useful
life. The depreciation rates applied on fixed assets, which are
not lower than the rates prescribed in Schedule XV of the
Companies Act, 1956, are as follows:

Category Depreciation rate
Premises 2%
Desktop computers and printers, 33.33%
Laptops

VSATs, Telecom equipment, cabling, 20%

other computer hardware and
related equipment, LAN/Mainframe
servers and printers , scanners

Purchased and developed Software 20%
Vehicles 20%
Office equipment, Locker cabinets, 15%
Strong room

ATMs 14.29%
Furniture, fittings and work of art 10%
ltems costing less than ¥5,000 100%

Improvements and installations of capital nature on the
leasehold property are depreciated over the primary lease
term.

The Bank assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether
there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
such indication exists, the Bank estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Profit
and Loss account. If at the Balance Sheet date there is an
indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no
longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the
asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a
maximum of depreciable historical cost.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Bank’s contribution towards Provident fund, being a defined
contribution scheme, is accounted for on an accrual basis
and recognized in the Profit and Loss account. Liability
for Gratuity and Pension, being defined benefit retirement
schemes, are determined based on an actuarial valuation as
at the balance sheet date as per the Projected Unit Credit
Method as computed by an independent actuary.
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Consequent to the re-opening of pension option pursuant
to the agreement between Indian Bank Association and
United Forum of Bank Unions, RBI had permitted the Bank
to amortise the enhanced expenditure resulting there
from over five years starting from financial year ended on
March 31, 2011 except for pension cost pertaining to the
retired/separated employees which was to be charged off
entirely in the year ending on March 31, 2011.

Accordingly, pension cost pertaining to the retired/separated
employees had been charged to the Profit and Loss account
in the year ended on March 31,2011, Pension cost pertaining
to the existing employees is being amortised over three
financial years (as against five financial years permitted by
RBI) from financial year ended on March 31, 2011 to financial
year ended on March 31, 2013 at % 6.57 crore per financial
year.

The Bank provides for leave encashment liability of its
employees who are eligible for encashment of accumulated
leave, which is a long-term benefit scheme, based on
actuarial valuation of the leave encashment liability at the
balance sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary.

Provision for compensated absences has been made on the
basis of actuarial valuation as at the Balance Sheet date. The
actuarial valuation is carried out as per the projected unit
credit method.

The Bank has applied the intrinsic value method to arrive at
the compensation cost of ESOP granted to the employees
of the Bank. Intrinsic value is the amount by which the
value of the underlying shares as determined by an
independent valuer exceeds the exercise price of the options.
Compensation cost so determined is amortized over the
vesting period of the option granted.

Revenue Recognition

Interest income is recognised in the profit and loss account
on accrual basis, except in the case of interest on non-
performing assets, which is recognised as income on
realisation.

Recoveries in respect of past due loan accounts classified as
sub-standard are appropriated towards overdue principal
and thereafter towards interest and charges

Commission, Exchange, Brokerage and Locker Rent is
accounted for as income on realisation basis except for
commission earned in excess of ¥ 1,00000 for issue of
guarantees is amortised on a straight-line basis.

Income on discounted instruments is recognised over the
tenure of the instrument on a constant yield basis.

Dividend is accounted on an accrual basis when the right to
receive the dividend is established.

Loan processing fee is accounted for upfront when it becomes due.

All other fees are accounted for as and when theybecome due.

Accounting for leases
Operating leases

Leases where the lessor effectively retains substantially all
the risks and benefits of ownership over the lease term are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease rentals are
recognised as an expense on straight-line basis over the
lease period.

The Bank has not undertaken any Finance leases.

Taxation

Income tax comprises the current tax (i.e. amount of tax
for the period, determined in accordance with the Income
Tax Act, 1961 and the rules framed there under) and the
net change in the deferred tax asset or liability for the year
(reflecting the tax effects of timing differences between
accounting income and taxable income for the year).

Provision for current income-tax is recognized in accordance
with the provisions of Indian Income Tax Act, 1961 and is
made annually based on the tax liability after taking credit
for tax allowances and exemptions.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding
deferred tax liability or asset is recognised using the tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are recognised
only to the extent there is reasonable certainty that the
assets can be realized in future. However, where there
is unabsorbed depreciation or carried forward loss under
taxation laws, deferred tax assets are recognised only if
there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date
and appropriately adjusted to reflect the amount that is
reasonably/virtually certain to be realized.

Provisions and contingencies

The Bank creates a provision when there is present
obligation as a result of a past event that probably requires
an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the abligation. A disclosure for a
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contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require
an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation
or a present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made.

Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer
probable that an outflow of resources would be required to
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Contingent assets are not recognized in the financials.
However, contingent assets are assessed continually and
if it is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the asset and related income are recognized in the
period in which the change occurs.

10.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed in
accordance with Accounting Standard-20 — Earnings per share.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution
that could occur if contracts to issue equity shares were
exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings
per equity share is computed using the weighted average
number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares
outstanding during the year, except where the results are
anti-dilutive.

Schedule 18 — Notes to financial statements for the year
ended March 31,2013

1.

Investments

In terms of guidelines of Reserve Bank of India, amortisation
of premium of ¥ 1.77 crore (previous year ¥ 1.60 crore)
relating to investments in ‘Held to Maturity' category has
been netted off against 'Income on Investments' under
Schedule - 13. During financial year ended March 31, 2013,
there has been no sale / transfer from HTM categories in
excess of 5% of the book value of investments held in HTM
category at the beginning of the year.

Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP")

The shareholders of the Bank had approved granting of
stock options to employees under one or more Employee
Stock Option Plans (ESOP') on August 25, 2010, enabling
the Board and / or the Human Resource & Remuneration
Committee to grant such number of stock options of the
Bank not exceeding 10% of the aggregate number of issued

Stock option activity under the scheme during the

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year

Forfeited during the year

Exercised during the year

Expired during the year

Outstanding at the end of the year

Options exercisable at the end of the year

and paid up equity shares of the Bank. The ESOP is equity
settled where the employees will receive one equity share
per option. The stock options granted to employees vest
over a period of three years, generally, in equal proportion
each year. Vested Options can be exercised within a period
of three years from the date of vesting or within a period of
one year from the date on which the shares of the Bank get
listed on a recognized stock exchange, whichever is later.

Under Intrinsic Value method, since exercise price of the
stock options granted under the ESOP is more than the
underlying value of the shares, it has not resulted in any
charge to the statement of Profit and Loss for the vear. If
the Bank had adopted the Black-Scholes model based fair
valuation, compensation cost for the year ended March 31,
2013 would have increased by % 5.64 crore (previous year
% 6.48 crare) and the profit before tax would have been lower
correspondingly. Accordingly, on a proforma basis, basic
and diluted earnings per share would have been ¥ 4.02 and
T 3.98, respectively.

1,27,56,300 7992500
56,859,800 48,23,800
1,92,601 60,000
2807,711 =
1.54,45,788 1,27,56,300
41,07,783 26,64,067
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Options granted during the year carry an exercise price of ¥ 46.50 and ¥ 52.00. During the year corresponding value of the shares
for these grants at the time of respective grant was % 43.95 and % 49.76 respectively.

The fair value of options granted during the vear has been estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model with the following assumptions:

Stock option activity under the scheme during the m 2011-12

Average dividend yield 1.10% 1.12%
Expected volatility 26.72% 42.25%
Risk free interest rates 7.85% - 8.25% 8.18% - 8.80%
Expected life of options (across each tranche) 1.50-3.00 2.58 -3.41
Expected forfeiture Nil Nil

Expected volatility is a measure of the amount by which the equity share price is expected to fluctuate during a period. The measure
of volatility used in Black-Scholes option pricing model is the annualized standard deviation of the continuously compounded rates
of return on the share over a period of time. Expected volatility has been computed by considering the historical data on daily
volatility in the closing equity share price on NSE of similar listed banks over the last three years.

3. Disclosures as per Accounting Standards
3.1 Disclosures under AS -15 on employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plans

Employer's contribution recognized and charged off for the year to defined contribution plans are as under:

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Provident Fund 2.78 1.57
Pension Scheme (employees joining after 01.04.2010) 0.02 0.02

Defined Benefit Plans

The following table sets out the status of the defined benefit Pension and Gratuity Plan as required under Accounting
Standard 15.

Change in the present value of the defined benefit abligation

R in crore)

Particulars 201112
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
Opening defined benefit obligation at April 1 51.43 10.88 50.61 10.98
Current Service cost 3.04 1.06 223 =
Interest cost 4.20 0.92 3.79 0.91
Actuarial losses/ (gains) 8.83 1.37 8.46 1.78
Past Service Cost (Amortised) - - - -
Liability Transfer in = = 0.22 =
Benefits paid (10.19) (1.35) (13.88) (2.79)
Closing defined benefit obligation at March 31 57.31 12.88 51.43 10.88
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Change in the plan assets

(Zin crore)
Particulars 201112
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
Opening fair value of plan assets at April 1 40.41 10.88 21.75 8.83
Expected return on plan assets 4.80 0.94 3.64 0.71
Contributions 20.50 1.00 30.64 416
Transfer from other Trust = = 0.22 =
Benefit paid (10.19) (1.35) (13.88) (2.79)
Actuarial gains / (loss) on plan assets (1.10) (0.02) (1.96) (0.03)
Closing fair value of plan assets at March 31 S54.42 11.45 40.41 10.88
Reconciliation of Present value of the obligations and fair value of the plan assets
(% in crore)
Pension Gratuity
Present value of funded obligation at March 31 57.31 12.88 51.43 10.88
Fair value of plan assets at March 31 54.42 11.45 40.41 10.88
Deficit / (Surplus) 2.89 1.43 11.02 -
Unrecognised past service cost = = 6.57 =
Net Liability / (Asset) 2.89 1.43 4.45 =
Net cost recognized in the Profit & Loss Account
(% in crore)
Pension Gratuity
Current Service cost 3.04 1.06 2.23 =
Interest cost 4.20 0.92 3.79 0.91
Expected return on plan assets (4.80) (0.94) (3.64) (0.77)
Past Service Cost (Vested Benefit) Recognised 6.57 - 6.57 -
Net Actuarial losses / (gains) recognised during the 9.93 1.39 10.42 1.82
year
Total cost of defined benefit plans included in 18.94 2.43 19.37 2.02

Schedule 16 Payments to and provisions for
employees
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Reconciliation of Expected return and actual return on planned assets

(% in crore)
2011-12
Particulars
Pension Gratuity Pension Gratuity
Expected return on plan assets 4.80 0.94 3.64 0.71
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets (1.10) (0.02) (1.96) (0.03)
Actual return on plan assets 3.70 0.92 1.68 0.68
Reconciliation of opening and closing net liability / (asset) recognised in balance sheet
(% in crore)
Particulars
Pension Gratuity
Opening net liability as at April 1 445 = 15.72 214
Expenses as recognised in Profit & Loss Account 18.94 2.43 19.37 2.02
Employers contribution (20.50) (1.00) (30.64) (4.16)
Net liability / (asset) recognised in balance sheet 2.89 1.43 4.45 =
A breakup of Investments under Plan Assets of Gratuity fund and Pension fund as on 31.03.2013 is as follows:
Category of Assets
Pension (%) Gratuity (%) Pension (%) Gratuity (%)
Central Government securities 7.54 10.29 6.98 10.84
State Government securities 21.61 24.91 16.17 20.23
Corporate Bonds 5.86 16.20 17.58 28.08
Special Deposit Schemes = 18.45 = 19.41
Funds with LIC 13.55 = 31.43 =
Fixed deposits and bank balances 51.44 30.15 27.84 21.44
Total 100.00 100.00 100.00 100.00

Key Actuarial Assumptions

Pension and Gratuity Plans

Particulars

Discount rate 8.25% 8.50%
Expected rate of return on Plan Asset 8.70% 8.60%
Salary Escalation 5.00% 5.00%
Attrition rate 2.00% 2.00%

3.2 Segment Reporting (AS-17): Information about business segments

In terms of the AS-17 Segment Reporting issued by ICAl and RBI circular Ref. DBOD.No. BP.BC.81/21.04.018/2006-07 dated
April 18,2007 read with DBOD.BP.BC No.14/21.04.018/2012-13 dated July 2, 2012 and amendments thereto, the following
business segments have been disclosed:

=  Corporate/Wholesale Banking: Includes lending, deposits and other banking services provided to corporate customers
of the Bank.
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»  Retail Banking: Includes lending, deposits and other banking services provided to retail customers of the Bank through
branch network or other approved delivery channels.

»  Treasury: Includes investments, all financial market activities undertaken on behalf of the Bank's customers, proprietary
trading, maintenance of reserve requirements and resource mobilization from other Banks and Financial Institutions.
Inter-segment earnings of Balance Sheet Management function are included in the Treasury segment.

=  Other Banking Operations: Includes para banking activities like Bancassurance etc.

Segment revenues include earnings from external customers and earnings from other segments on account of funds
transferred at negotiated rates, which are determined by the management. Segment results includes segment revenues as
reduced by interest expense, charge from other segments on account of funds transferred at negotiated rates and operating
expenses and provisions either directly identified or allocated to each segment.

The following table sets forth the business segment results:

(Zin crore)
Particulars 2011-12
Corporate/ Retail | Treasury Other ICIcIN  Corporate/ Retail | Treasury Other Total
Wholesale | Banking Banking Wholesale | Banking Banking
Banking Operations Banking Operations
Gross Revenue 73032 380.51 737.32 291 1,851.06 379.47 268.66 366.48 225  1016.86
Unallocated Revenue 1.89 2.30
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 847.19 486.95
Total Revenue 1,005.76 532.21
Segment Results 118.78 1758 95.37 251 236.14 80.59 13.45 60.41 1.77 158.52
Unallocated expenses 102.06 62.36
Income Tax expense (including 41.61 30.43
deferred tax)
Net Profit 92.47 65.73
Segment Assets 5641.31 881.14  6,154.56 - 12677.01 352574 60880  2901.46 - 7036.00
Unallocated Assets 286.35 169.33
Total Assets 12,963.36 7.205.33
Segment Liabilities 2850.77 333057 5099.08 006 11,280.48 197847 227699  1767.32 008 602286
Unallocated Liabilities 1,682.88 1,182.47
Total Liabilities 12,963.36 7,205.33

Notes:

1. The business of the Bank does not extend outside India and it does not have any assets outside India or earnings
emanating from outside India. Accordingly, the Bank has reported operations in the domestic segment only.

2. Income, expenses, assets and liabilities have been either specifically identified to individual segment or allocated to
segments on a reasonable basis or are classified as unallocated.

3. Unallocated items include fixed Assets, related depreciation expenses, realized gains/losses on their sale, income tax
expense, deferred income tax assets/liabilities, advance tax, cash in hand, bills payable, share capital and reserves and
operating expenses which cannot be identified or allocated to segments.
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3.3. Related Party Transactions (AS -18)

As per AS 18 "Related Party Disclosures” prescribed by the Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules 2006, the Bank's related

parties for the year ended March 31, 2013 are disclosed below:

Key Management Personnel (KMP')
Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja, Managing Director & CEO

In financial years 2012-13 and 2011-12, there was only one related party in the said category, hence the Bank has not
disclosed the details of transactions in accordance with circular issued by RBI on March 29, 2003 “Guidance on compliance

with the accounting standards by banks".

3.4 Operational Leases (AS - 19)

Disclosure as per Accounting Standard-19 on Leases as per Companies (Accounting Standard) Rules, 2006.

The company has taken certain premises on operating lease. The agreements entered into provide for renewal and rent
escalation. Particular of future minimum lease payments in respect of the same are as mentioned below:

(% in crore)
Not later than one vear 2427 17.52
Later than one year and not later than five years 74.62 7333
Later than five years 26.37 11.01
Total 125.26 101.86
Lease payment recognized in Profit & Loss Account for the year 26.71 14.31

3.5 Earnings Per Share (AS -20)
Particulars m 2011-12
Basic
Weighted Average Number of equity shares 22,06,31857 21,49,47,396
Net Profit after tax available for equity share holders (%) 92,46,87,896 65,72,93,409
Basic Earnings Per Share (F VZ 10/-) 419 3.06
Diluted
Weighted Average Number of equity shares (including dilutive potential equity 22,24,88488 21,61,21,203
shares)
Net Profit after tax available for equity share holders (%) 92,46,87,896 65,72,93,409
Diluted Earnings Per Share (F V% 10/-) 416 3.04
The dilutive impact is due to options granted to employees of the Bank.
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3.6 Taxes on Income (AS -22)
Major components of Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities as on March 31, 2013 are as under:-
(%in crore)
Deferred Tax Assets/(Liabilities)

Particulars

Provision for non-performing assets 10.01 4.97
Employee benefits 3.38 3.46
Others 1.06 4.27
Fixed Assets depreciation (5.16) (3.54)
Total 9.29 9.16

3.7 Fixed Assets

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the movement in software acquired by the Bank, as included in fixed

assets
(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
At cost at the beginning of the vear 9.61 4.41
Additions during the vear 22.23 5.51
Deductions during the year 0.30 0.31
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31 (5.97) (3.14)
Closing balance as at March 31 2557 6.47
Depreciation charge for the year 2.83 1.14

4. Small & Micro Industries

Based on information available with the Bank, during the year, there were no amounts outstanding for more than the specified
period, to the parties covered under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

5. Disclosure of complaints / unimplemented awards of Banking Ombudsman for the year 2012-13

A) Customer Complaints m 2011-12

a)  No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

b)  No. of complaints received during the year 584 19
c)  No. of complaints redressed during the year 569 19
d)  No. of complaints pending at the end of the year 15 =
B) Awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman m 2011-12
a)  No. of unimplemented awards at the beginning of the year Nil Nil
b)  No. of awards passed by the Banking Ombudsman during the year Nil Nil
c)  No. of awards implemented during the year Nil Nil
d)  No. of unimplemented awards at the end of the year Nil Nil
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In terms of RBI guidelines, the following additional disclosures have been made
6. Capital Adequacy

i) The Bank has complied with Capital Adequacy Norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The details are as under:

7. Investments

Particulars m 2011-12
i) CRAR (%) (Basel - 1) 16.42% 22.69%
i) CRAR -Tier I capital (%) (Basel - 1) 16.13% 22.33%
i) CRAR -Tier Il capital (%) (Basel - 1) 0.29% 0.36%
iv)  CRAR (%) (Basel - II) 17.11% 23.20%
v)  CRAR -Tier | capital (%) (Basel - Il) 16.82% 22.83%
vi)  CRAR -Tier Il capital (%) (Basel - Il) 0.29% 0.37%
vii)  Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-Il capital (% in crore) - -
i)  Movement of Investments
% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(1) Value of Investments
(i)  Gross Value of Investments
(a) In India 5,571.63 2,336.12
(b) Outside India = =
(i) Provisions for Depreciation (including provision for NPI)
(a) In India 0.21 2.29
(b) Outside India - -
(i) Net Value of Investments
(a) In India 5 571.42 2 33383
(b) Outside India - -
(2)  Movement of provisions held towards depreciation of investments (including
provision for NPIs)
(il Opening balance 2.29 2.59
(i) Add: Provisions made during the year 5.50 5.24
(i) Less: Write-off / write back of excess / provisions (including provision for 7.58 5.54
NPIs) during the year
(iv) Closing balance 0.21 2.29

ii) Repo / Reverse Repo Transactions

During the year, the Bank has not under taken Repo / Reverse Repo transactions other than Repo / Reverse Repo transactions

under the Liquidity Adjustment Facility (LAF) with Reserve Bank of India.
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iii) Issuer Composition of Non-SLR investments
Issuer composition as at March 31, 2013 of non-SLR investments

(% in crore)
i Below .

) Private Unrated Unlisted

No Particulars Investment i s
Placement Securities Securities

Grade

1 psuU 179.47 82.60 = = =
2 Fls 90.37 35.00 - - -
3 Banks 458,94 - - - -
4 Private Corporates 150.10 150.10 = = 50.10
5  Subsidiaries/ Joint ventures - - - - -
6 Others 1 .433.06* 1,290.68 = = 4.62
7 Provisions held towards depreciation (0.21) - - - -
Total 2 ,311.73* 1,558.38 - - 56.72

* included Government securities of ¥ 2.93 crore which does not qualify as SLR securities.

Issuer compaosition as at March 31, 2012 of non-SLR investments

(% in crore)
) Below .

No Particulars Amount Private Investment Unr?t.ed Unh.s'fed
Placement Grade Securities Securities

1 PSU 19.93 9.93 = = =
2 Fls 9.50 8.50 = = =
3 Banks 304.11 1.30 = = =
4 Private Corporates 493.91 26.38 = 0.10 26.14
5  Subsidiaries/ Joint ventures = = = = =
6  Others 77.87 = = = =
7 Provisions held towards depreciation (2.29) - - - -
Total 903.03 46.11 - 0.10 26.14

iv) Non Performing Non-SLR investment

(Zin crore)

No Particulars m 2011-12
1 Opening Balance 2.29 2.29
2 Additions during the year = =
3 Reductions during the year 2.29 =
4 Closing Balance = 2.29
5  Total provisions held = 2.29
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Forward Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swaps / Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
i) The notional principal of swap agreements 25.00 NIL
i) Losses which would be incurred if counterparties failed to fulfill their obligations 0.00 NIL

under the agreements

i) Collateral required by the Bank upon entering into swaps NIL NIL
iv) Concentration of credit risk arising from the swaps NIL NIL
v)  The fair value of the swap book 0.01 NIL

The nature and terms of Interest Rate Swaps (IRS) as on March 31, 2013 are set out below:

Nature Nos.

IRS 1 25

Notional Principal (% crore)

Benchmark Terms

NSE MIBOR Rec Fixed and Pay Floating

Bank has not undertaken any Exchange Traded Interest Rate Derivatives during the year.

Risk Exposure in Derivatives
Qualitative disclosures

Derivatives are financial instruments whose characteristics
are derived from an underlying asset, or from interest and
exchange rates or indices. The Bank is currently dealing
in Interest Rate and Foreign Exchange (FX) Derivatives
for balance sheet management and proprietary trading/
market making. The Bank also offers derivative products to
its customers for hedging their interest rate and FX risk.

These transactions expose the Bank to various risks,
primarily credit, market and operational risk. The Bank has
adopted the following mechanism for managing risks arising
out of the derivative transactions.

a) The structure and organization for management of risk
in derivatives trading.

The Bank has separate Treasury Front Office, Treasury
Middle Office, Market Risk and Treasury Back Office
functions. The derivative transactions are originated by
Treasury Front Office, which ensures compliance with
the trade origination requirements as per the Bank's
policy and the RBI guidelines. Treasury Middle Office
and Market Risk Group are responsible for identifying,
measurement, monitoring, and analysis of derivative
related risks. Treasury Back Office undertakes activities
such as confirmations, settlements, documentation
and accounting. The Treasury activities are subject to a
concurrent audit.

b)

c

The scope and nature of risk measurement, risk
reporting and risk monitoring systems.

Derivative transactions are governed by the Bank's
Derivative Policy, Commercial Credit Policy, Market Risk
Policy and Client Suitability and Appropriateness Palicy
as well as by the extant RBI guidelines.

Various risk limits are set up taking into account market
volatility, business strategy and management experience.
Risk limits are in place for risk parameters viz. PVO1,
Value at Risk, Stop Loss, and Stress Scenario Limits. All
exposures are monitored against these limits on a daily
basis and breaches, if any, are reported promptly.

The Bank measures counterparty risk using current
exposure method. Counterparty limits are approved as
per the Bank's Credit Policies. The sanction terms may
include the requirement to post upfront collateral, or
post collateral should the mark to market (MTM) exceed
a specified threshold; on a case to case basis. The Bank
retains the right to terminate transactions as a risk
mitigation measure, in case the client does not adhere
to the agreed terms.

All counterparty exposures are monitored against
these limits on a daily basis and breaches, if any, are
reported promptly.

Policies for hedging and/ or mitigating risk and
strategies and processes for monitoring the continuing
effectiveness of hedges / mitigants.
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The Bank has a Board approved Hedge and Hedge Derivatives other than FX forward transactions are
effectiveness Policy, which govern the use of derivative covered under International Swaps and Derivatives
for hedging purpose. However, the Bank has not entered Association (ISDA) master agreements with respective
into any hedge transaction as of March 31, 2013. counterparties.

d) Accounting policy for recording hedge and non-hedge The Bank follows the option premium accounting
transactions, recognition of income, premiums and framewaork prescribed by FEDAI circular. Premium on
discounts, valuation of outstanding contracts. option transaction is recognised as income/ expense on

expiry or early termination of the transaction. MTM gain/
loss, is recorded under ‘Other Income’. The amounts
received/paid on cancellation of option contracts are
recognised as realised gains/ losses on options.

The Bank has undertaken derivative transactions
for market making and trading purposes. The Bank
revalues its trading positions on a daily basis and
records the same in the books of accounts. The

receivable and payable on marking the contracts to Charges  receivable/payable  on  cancellation/
market are shown under “Other Assets” and “Other termination of foreign exchange Forward contracts and
Liabilities" in the balance sheet. swaps are recognised as income/ expense on the date

of cancellation/ termination under ‘Other Income'.

Quantitative disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives as at March 31,2013

SN'I('). Particular Interest Currency derivatives Interest
rate rate
Forward Currency Currency | derivatives Forward Currency Currency | derivatives
(i) Derivatives (Notional
Principal Amount)

a) For hedging 118.274# NIL NIL NIL 6.45% NIL NIL NIL

b) For trading 3,464.82 4L77.26 NIL 25.00 2.54 NIL NIL NIL
(i) Marked to Market

Positions [1]

(Zin crore)

a) Asset(+ 29.62 2.44 NIL 0.01 0.01 NIL NIL NIL
b) Liability (-) 25.82 2.44 NIL NIL 0.00 NIL NIL NIL
(i) Credit Exposure [2] 98.92 3.41 NIL 0.14 0.06 NIL NIL NIL

(iv)  Likely impact of one
percentage change
in interest rate

(100*PV0O1)
a) on hedging 0.32# NIL NIL NIL 0.03# NIL NIL NIL
derivatives
b) on trading 0.37 NIL NIL 0.01 0.00 NIL NIL NIL
derivatives
(v)  Maximum and
Minimum of

100*PVO1 observed
during the year

a) on hedging Max - 0.32# NIL NIL NIL  Max-0.064 NIL NIL NIL
Min - 0.01# Min- 0.03#

b) on trading Max - 0.88 NIL NIL Max - 0.03 Max - 0.00 NIL NIL NIL
Min - 0.03 Min- 0.01 Min-0.00

# represents funding swaps undertaken by the Bank.
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(1) Asper recommendatory provisions of AS-31, Financial Instrument: Presentation, mark to market position is reported on gross
basis.

(2)  The Bank has computed maximum and minimum of PVO1 for the year based on balances at the end of every month.

(3) Mark to Market position for interest rate derivative does not include Interest accrued on the swap.

(4)  The Notional principal of Forward Exchange Contract does not include notional for Tom and Spot Foreign Exchange Contract.

(5)  The notional principal amounts of derivatives reflect the volume of transactions outstanding at balance sheet date and do not
represent the amount of risk.

9. Restructured / Rescheduled / Renegotiated - Investments during the year is Nil (Previous year : Nil)

10. Asset Quality
i) Non - Performing Asset

(Zin crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(i) Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 0.11% 0.20%
(i) Provisioning Coverage Ratio (PCR) (%) 83.51% 79.90%
(i) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance 33.11 21.51
(b) Additions during the year 40.85 18.13
(c) Reductions during the year 43,06 6.53
(d) Closing balance 25.90 33.11
(iv) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance 8.39 6.89
(b) Additions during the year 35.10 6.20
(c) Reductions during the year 36.61 4.70
(d) Closing balance 6.88 8.39
(v)  Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on standard assets)
(@) Opening balance 2472 14.62
(b) Provisions made during the year 10.35 12.08
(c) Write-off / write back of excess provisions during the year (16.05) (1.98)
(d) Closing balance 19.02 24.72
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

iii) Details of financial assets sold to Securitisation / Reconstruction Company for Asset Reconstruction

(Zin crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(i) No. of accounts i NIL
(i) Aggregate value (net of provisions ) of accounts sold to SC / RC 29.86 NIL
(i) Aggregate consideration 25.00 NIL
(iv) Additional consideration realized in respect of accounts transferred inearlier vears 0.00 NIL
(v) Aggregate loss over net book value 4.86 NIL

iv) Details of non-performing financial assets purchased / sold

During the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012, there were no non-performing financial assets that were
purchased by the Bank.

During the years ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 there were no non-performing financial assets sold, excluding
those sold to SC / RC.

11. Business Ratios

(i) Interestincome as % to Working funds 10.04% 9.78%
(i) Non-Interest income as % to Working funds 1.44% 1.41%
(iii)  Operating profit as % to Working funds 1.79% 2.41%
(iv) Return on Assets 1.06% 1.38%
(v) Business (Deposit+Advance) per employee (% in crore)* 7.39 6.07
(vi) Profit per employee (% in crore) 0.05 0.05

Working funds represents the average of total assets as reported in Monthly DSB Returns to RBI under Section 27 of the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949.

* excludes inter-bank deposits

12. Maturity Pattern

Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities is given below

(% in crore)

Particulars Loans & | Investments Deposits Borrowings Foreign Foreign
Advances (INR) (INR) (INR) currency currency

(INR) Assets Liabilities

1day 154.05 110.00 59.58 = 23.89 =
2 to 7 days 123.11 49.97 563.91 1,350.59 2.49 =
8to 14 days 55.68 = 244.71 = 3.59 =
15 to 28 days 179.97 24.86 408.98 100.00 17.90 =
29 days to 3 months 606.83 1,145.76 2 ,355.54 100.00 31.33 70.85
Over 3 months to 6 months 339.94 871.32 870.50 201.50 2883 52.02
Over 6 months to 1 year 666.31 242 14 1,639.21 300.20 19.29 =
Over 1 vear to 3 years 2 ,066.22 724.03 2 14852 399.97 41.07 =
Over 3 years to 5 years 1.322.44 824.76 30.39 145.26 = =
Over 5 years 711.95 1,578.58 19.18 16.96 6.92 =
Total 6,226.50 5,571.42 8,340.52 2 ,614.48 175.31 122.87
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

(% in crore)
March 31, 2012

Particulars Loans & | Investments Deposits Borrowings Foreign Foreign

Advances (INR) (INR) (INR) currency currency

(INR) Assets Liabilities

1 day 88.57 105.00 45.26 = 1.50 =

2to 7 days 77.20 191.89 339.61 389.97 = =

8to 14 days 95.91 19.94 478.25 50.00 = =

15 to 28 days 112.16 24.83 296.85 = = =

29 days to 3 months 544,99 536.65 806.38 176.00 13.29 13.29

Over 3 months to 6 months 263.10 87.24 440.38 89.48 = =

Over 6 months to 1 year 570.13 31.58 966.10 140.49 = =

Over 1 vear to 3 years 1,260.58 227.71 1,321.00 161.98 = =

Over 3 years to 5 years 400.95 223.76 3714 157.34 = =

Over 5 years 705.39 885.23 8.36 20.00 = =

Total 4,118.98 2,333.83 4,739.33 1,185.26 14.79 13.29

13. Lending to Sensitive Sector

i)  Exposure to Real Estate Sector

(% in crore)

1) Direct exposure

(@) Residential Mortgages - 67.32 49.22
Out of which Individual housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector 33.76 32.99
advances

(b) Commercial Real Estate 334.96 103.97

(c) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and other securitized = =
exposures

I Residential Mortgages = =
i.  Commercial Real Estate = -
2) Indirect Exposure

Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) 165.27 100.00
and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)
Total Exposure to Real Estate Sector 567.55 253.19
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

ii) Exposure to Capital Market

(Zin crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(i) Direct investments made in equity shares, convertible bonds, convertible 0.10 0.14
debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual funds the corpus of which is
not exclusively invested in corporate debt;
(i) Advances against shares/bonds/debentures or other securities or on 0.46 1.05
clean basis to individuals for investment in shares (including IPOs/ESOPs),
convertible bonds, convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented
mutual funds
(i) Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible bonds or 39.69 35.65

convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual funds are taken as
primary security
(iv)  Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured by the collateral = =
security of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures or units of
equity oriented mutual funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares
/ convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity oriented mutual
funds 'does not fully cover the advances
(v)  Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on 100.00 =
behalf of stockbrokers and market makers;
(vi)  Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of shares / bonds / - -
debentures or other securities or on clean basis for meeting promoter's
contribution to the equity of new companies in anticipation of raising resources
(vii)  Bridge loans to companies against expected equity flows/issues = =
(viii)  Underwriting commitments taken up by the Banks in respect of primary issue = =
of shares or convertible bonds or convertible debentures ar units of equity
oriented mutual funds;
(ix)  Financing to stockbrokers for margin trading = =
(x) All exposures to Venture Capital Funds (both registered and unregistered) will 9.95 8.76
be deemed to be on par with equity and hence will be reckoned for compliance
with the capital market expasure ceilings (both direct and indirect)

Total Exposure to Capital Market 150.20 45.60

iii) Risk Category wise Country Exposure

% in crore)

HIE I Gae R Exposure (net) as at Provision held as at
March 31, 2013 March 31, 2013 March 31, 2012 March 31, 2012

Insignificant 19.07 = 1.50 =
Low = = = -
Moderate = = - >
High = = = -
Very High = = = =
Restricted = = = -
Off-credit = = = =

Total 19.07 - 1.50 -
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

14. Details of Single / Group Borrower limit exceeded by the Bank
During the year ended March 31, 2013 and March 31, 2012 the Bank has not exceeded the exposure ceiling fixed by RBI to Individual
/ Group borrowers.

15. Amount of Provisions made for Income-tax during the year

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(i) Provision for Income tax / Wealth tax 41.21 37.62
(i) Provision for deferred tax 0.40 (7.18)
16. Unsecured Advances against Intangible Collaterals
(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Advances against intangible securities such as charge over the rights, licenses, NIL NIL
authority etc.
Estimated Value of intangible collateral such as charge over the rights, licenses, authority NIL NIL
etc.
17. Penalties imposed by RBI
During the year no penalty has been imposed by RBI on the Bank.
18. Disclosure of Fees / Remuneration Received in respect of Bancassurance Business
(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
i) Fee / Remuneration from Life Insurance Business 217 1.74
i) Fee/ Remuneration from General Insurance Business 0.74 0.49
19. Break up of Provisions and Contingencies debited to Profit & Loss Account
(% in crore)

Particulars m 2011-12

i) Provision made towards NPAs / Write off/ Sacrifice for Restructured Advance /
Debt Relief as per RBI guidelines

a) For Advance 1214 10.07
b) For Investments - -

c) For Lease Assets _ i

i) Provisions towards Standard Advances 10.01 872
i) Provisions towards Income tax / Wealth tax 47.21 37.62
iv)  Provision towards deferred tax (net) 0.40 (7.18)
v) Provision for others 0.14 0.17
vi)  Provision for depreciation on investments 0.32 (0.30)
Total 64.22 49.10
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

20. Drawdown from Reserves

There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended March 31, 2013 (for previous year ending March 31, 2012
drawdown from reserves were NIL)

21. Floating Provisions

The Bank has not made any floating provisions.

22. Market risk in trading book
Quantitative Disclosure (Basel 1)

(%in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Capital requirements for:
a) Interest rate risk 203.85 57.21
b)  Equity position risk 26.72 22.24
c)  Foreign exchange risk 2.02 2.02
23. Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs
i)  Concentration of Deposits
% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Deposits of twenty largest depositors 2 967.96 1,480.93
Percentage of Deposits of twenty largest depositors to Total Deposits 35.58% 31.48%
ii) Concentration of Advances
(%in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 2 ,230.76 1,377.41
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total Advances 26.49% 33.13%
iii) Concentration of Exposures
(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 2 ,259.59 1,570.20
Percentage of Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total Exposure 22.38% 27.84%
of the Bank on borrowers / customers
iv) Concentration of NPA's
(Zin crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Exposure to top four NPA Accounts 16.59 20.48
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

v) Sector wise NPA

Particulars NPA % to Total Advances to
that sector

1 Agricultural & allied activities 0.21 0.34
2 Industry (Micro & Small, Medium and Large) 0.26 6.27
3 Services 0.72 2.26
4 Personal Loans 2.50 17.83

vi) Movement of NPA

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Gross NPAs as on April 1 (Opening Balance) 33.11 21.51
Additions (Fresh NPAs) during the year 41.74 18.13
Sub-total (A) 74.85 39.64
Less: (i) Up - gradations 0.00 0.16
(i) Recoveries (excluding recoveries made from up-graded accounts) 30.26 6.23
(iii) Write - offs 17.80 0.14
Sub-total (B) 48.06 6.53
Gross NPAs as on March 31 (closing balance) (A - B) 25.90 33.11
vii) Overseas Assets, NPAs and Revenue
in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Total Assets NIL NIL
Total NPAs NIL NIL
Total Revenue NIL NIL

viii) Off- Balance Sheet SPVs sponsored

Name of the SPV sponsored
Domestic Overseas
Nil Nil
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

24, Disclosure on Remuneration

Qualitative Disclosure

A.

Information relating to the composition and mandate
of the Remuneration Committee.

The Bank's Human Resources and Remuneration
Committee (HR&RC) comprises of the following
directors:

1. Mr. P. Sudhir Rao - Chairman of Committee
2. Mr.S. G. Kutte

3. Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja

4. Mr. Vimal Bhandari

5. Mr. Jairaj Purandare

Majority of the members of the HR&RC are independent
directors. Mr. P. Sudhir Rao and Mr. Vimal Bhandari are
also members of the Risk Management Committee of
the Board.

Following are the terms of Reference of Human
Resources and Remuneration Committee:

» Toassist and advise the MD & CEQ in planning for
senior management build-out of the Bank so as
to ensure appropriate leadership is in place for the
Bank’s transformation strategy.

» Toevaluate and approve HR policies of the Bank

» To evaluate and approve various Employee Staock
Ownership Schemes that may be required from
time to time to ensure that the Bank gets the
right talent and is able to retain high performing
employees etc.

» To award ESOPs to employees, whether in the
form of joining or performance. The Committee
may determine the level/grade of employees it
desires to review and award.

» To oversee the framing, review and
implementation of compensation policy of the
Bank on behalf of the Board.

» To work in close coordination with Risk
Management Committee of the Bank, in
order to achieve effective alignment between
remuneration and risks.

» Toensure that the cost/income ratio of the Bank
supports the remuneration package consistent
with maintenance of sound capital adequacy ratio.

»  Any other related aspect to the above.

B.

Information relating to the design and structure of
remuneration processes and the key features and
objectives of remuneration policy.

The remuneration is divided into following components:

Fixed Remuneration

Foremployees governed by Indian Banking Assaociation’s
employment and compensation rules (IBA rules),
their remuneration is based on the industry-wide
bi-partite wage settlement agreements signed with
the employees' unions. These rules provide for basic
salary, allowances and certain retirement benefits to
the employees which are uniformly applicable for the
employees covered under the IBA scale.

For the employees governed by the ‘Cost to Company
(CTQ)" remuneration structure (i.e. Non-IBA scale
employees), the CTC represents the total direct and
fixed cost incurred by the Bank across all components
of compensation including contributions paid by the
Bank towards retiral benefits, and loans at concessional
interest rates. It consists of Basic Salary, House Rent
Allowance, Personal Allowance / Special Allowances,
Medical & other Reimbursements, Leave Travel
Assistance and Retiral Benefits.

Employee Stock Options

In order to align the interest of the Bank, the senior
management, its shareholders and the employees,
there is an effort to create long term ownership and
commitment for the senior officers of the Bank. This
is also done with a view to recognize and compensate
senior officers for intellectual capital, the domain
expertise in terms of product and market
knowledge and the business relationships that they
bring along. Accordingly, the Bank has formulated
Employee Stock Option Program.

Further, to reward the performance and recognise the
contribution of employees, the Bank has also introduced
a Performance Employee Stock Option Program.

The underlying philosophy of Employee Stock Option
Plan is to enable the present and future employees to
share the value that they help to create for the Bank
over a period of time. Joining Employee Stock Options
(ESOPs) are granted based on the primacy of the role
to the Bank as well as experience, domain knowledge,
current ability, future potential and expertise of the
candidate. Performance ESOPs are given after periodic
evaluation of the employee againstindividualand overall
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performance of the Bank during the review period. The
Plan has been designed and implemented in such a way
that an equity component in the compensation goes
a long way in aligning the objectives of an individual
with those of the Bank. From FY12, the ESOP has been
broad based to include long serving employees of the
Bank to make them partners in the growth of the Bank.

These stock option programmes are administered by
the HR&RC.

Annual Performance Linked Variable Compensation
(APLVC)

APLVC is paid as a percentage of CTC as defined in the
Compensation Policy of the Bank.

APLVC is capped at 70% of CTC for Whole-time Directors
/ CEQ / Senior Executive Team and 40% for Risk
Management & Compliance Staff. Also, the APLVC could
be paid in a staggered manner based on the quantum
of APLVC as a percentage of the CTC. APLVC does not
include ESOPs.

Description of the ways in which current and future
risks are taken into account in the remuneration
processes.

Key determinant of the total variable pool is the overall
performance of the Bank in any given vear.

Further, the following principles apply:

a) Inorderforincentive-based remuneration to work,
the variable part of remuneration should be truly
and effectively variable and can even be reduced
to zero.

b)  Methodologies for adjusting remuneration to risk
and performance will be based on the general
risk management and corporate governance
framework adopted by the Bank.

c) Risks taken need to be estimated (ex ante), risk
outcomes observed (ex post) and both ex ante
estimates and ex post outcomes would have a
bearing on the payoffs.

d) Risk adjustments would take into account the
nature of the risks involved and the time horizons
over which they could emerge. The impact of
remuneration adjustments would be linked to
actions taken by employees and / or business
units, and their impact on the level of risk taken
on by the Bank.

SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

Both ESOP as well as APLVC provide long term
remuneration benefits to employees. The ESOP/PESOP
is equity settled where the employees will receive one
equity share per option. The stock options granted to
employees vest over a period of three years, generally,
in equal proportion each year. Similarly, APLVC could be
paid in a staggered manner based on the quantum of
APLVC as a percentage of the CTC. Further, the ESOP/
PESOP and APLVC are subject to suitable claw-back and
malus clauses to protect the Bank against misconduct,
sub-aoptimal performance or decisions or actions leading
to adverse financial consequence to the Bank.

Description of the ways in which the Bank seeks ta link
performance during a performance mesurement period
with levels of remuneration.

The Bank has a performance management system
in place. The Performance management system has
goals on four perspectives namely Financial, Customer,
Process and People. Employees are appraised against
the goals set at the beginning of the year. Employee
performance and competence assessment are both
considered for the performance rating. Performance
Rating has a direct correlation with the increments and
APLVC as well as PESOPs.

Adiscussion of the Bank's policy on deferral and vesting
of variable remuneration and a discussion of the Bank's
policy and criteria for adjusting deferred remuneration
before vesting and after vesting.

APLVC is capped at 70% of CTC for Whole-time Directors
/ CEO / Senior Executive Team and 40% for Risk
Management & Compliance Staff. Also, the APLVC could
be paid in a staggered manner based on the quantum
of APLVC as a percentage of the CTC. APLVC does not
include ESOPs/PESOPs.

Schedule for APLVC vesting and payout is as per pay
schedule defined in the Compensation Palicy of the Bank.

Deferred APLVC vests only in the year of payment.
Voluntary Cessation of employment by the employee
or termination with cause as defined in employment
contract will result in forfeiture of the remaining APLVC.
APLVC is subject to claw-back and malus clauses.

Description of the different forms of variable
remuneration (i.e. cash, shares, ESOPs and other forms)
that the Bank utilizes and the rationale for using these
different forms.
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

Various forms of variable remuneration used by the Bank are:

APLVC: APLVC provides cash bonus in short to medium term to employees. The Bank utilizes APLVC to reward superior
performance.

Employee stock option plan (ESOP): Employee stack option plan is a long term remuneration benefit. ESOP is equity settled
where the employees will receive one equity share per option after vesting. The stock options granted to employees vest
over a period of three years, generally, in equal proportion each year. ESOP is used to reward superior performance, aligning
employee interests with the Bank, create long term ownership and commitment.

Quantitative Disclosure

(The guantitative disclosure covers Whole Time Directors, Chief Executive Officer and Other Risk Takers)

(Zin crore)

Sr. No. Particulars m
(i) Number of meetings held by the Remuneration Committee during the financial year. 7
(i) Remuneration paid to its members during the financial year 0.03
2(i) Number of employees having received a variable remuneration award during the financial year. 21
2(ii) Number and total amount of sign-on awards made during the financial year. -
2(iii) Details of guaranteed bonus, if any, paid as joining / sign on bonus =
2(iv) Details of severance pay, in addition to accrued benefits, if any. -
3(i) Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration, split into cash, shares and share-linked =

instruments and other forms.
3(ii) Total amount of deferred remuneration paid out in the financial year. -
4 Breakdown of amount of remuneration awards for the financial year:

Fixed 14.63

Variable 1.18

Deferred =

Non-deferred 1.18
5(i) Total amount of outstanding deferred remuneration and retained remuneration exposed to ex -

post explicit and / or implicit adjustments.
5(ii) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to ex- post explicit adjustments. =
5(iii) Total amount of reductions during the financial year due to ex- post implicit adjustments =

25. Description of nature of contingent liabilities is set out below
i) Claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debts:
These represent claims filed against the Bank in the normal course of business relating to various legal cases currently in
progress.
i)  Liability for partly paid investments:

These represent contingent liability on account of possible claims for uncalled amount by the issuer of the securities held by
the Bank.
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SChed u leS forming part of the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2013

iii)

Liability on account of forward exchange contracts:

The Bank enters into foreign exchange contracts
currency options, forward rate agreements, currency
swaps with inter-bank participants on its own account
and for the customers. Forward exchange contracts
are commitments to buy or sell foreign currency at a
future date at the contracted rate. Currency swaps
are commitments to exchange cash flows by the way
of interest/principal in one currency against another,
based on pre-determined rates. Interest rate swaps are
commitments to exchange fixed and floating interest
rate cash flows.The amount recorded as contingent
liability with respect to these contracts represents the
underlying notional amounts of these contracts.

Guarantees given on behalf of Constituents,
Acceptances, Endorsement and other obligations:

As a part of its corporate banking activities, the Bank
issues documentary credit and guarantees on behalf of
its customers. Documentary credits such as letters of
credit enhance the credit standing of the customer of
the Bank. Guarantees generally represent irrevocable
assurances that the Bank will make the payment in
the event of the customer failing to fulfill its financial or
performance obligations.

Acceptances, endorsements and other obligations:

These include documentary credit issued by the Bank
on behalf of its customers and bills drawn by the Bank's
customers that are accepted or endorsed by the Bank.

vi)  Other contingent items:
These include:
a.  Commitments for settlement date accounting for
securities transactions;

b.  Amount of bills rediscounted by the Bank;

c.  Demands raised by income tax and other statutory
authorities and disputed by the Bank.

26. Bank has not issued any letter of comforts during the year.

27. Figures for the previous year have been regrouped /
rearranged wherever necessary.

For S. R. BATLIBOI & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Regn. No. 301003E

per Surekha Gracias
Partner
Membership No. 105488

Place : Mumbai
Date : June 19, 2013
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Basel Il Disclosures
for the year ended March 31, 2013

Scope of Application

The framework of disclosures applies to The Ratnakar
Bank Ltd (hereinafter referred to as the Bank); a scheduled
commercial bank, incorporated on August 6, 1943. The Bank
does not have any subsidiary nor does it have any interest in
any insurance entity.

Capital Structure

As per Reserve Bank of India (RBI) capital adequacy norms,
capital funds are classified into Tier-1 and Tier-2 capital. Tier-
1 capital of the Bank consists of paid-up share capital, share
premium, statutory reserves, revenue & other disclosed free
reserves. Tier-2 capital consists of revaluation reserves (at
a discount of 55%), investment reserve, general provisions &
loss reserves.

Equity Capital

The Bank has autharized share capital of ¥ 400.00 crore,
comprising of 400,000,000 equity shares of ¥ 10 each. As on
March 31, 2013, the Bank has subscribed and paid up capital
of ¥ 252.92 crore comprising of fully paid up 252,924,711
shares of ¥ 10 each. During the year 2012-13, the Bank raised
equity capital by around % 376 crore by way of preferential as
well as disposal of unsubscribed portion of previous rights
issue. The Bank also allotted equity shares against vested
and exercised options to employees under the Employee
Stock Option Plan (ESOP).

The Bank has a strong capital base with Core (Tier 1) capital
at 98.27% of total capital funds. As of March 31, 2013, there
is no Innovative Perpetual Debt Instruments (IPDI), Upper
Tier Il bonds, Lower Tier Il bonds or Subordinated debt issued
and outstanding.

Capital Funds -

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(@) Tier | Capital:
- Paid-up Share Capital 252.92 2,14.95
- Reserves
- Statutory Reserve 79.65 55.65
- Capital Reserve 10.25 8.20
- Share Premium 1,138.79 788.41
- Revenue Reserve 122.66 73.63
- Balance in Profit 0.22 0.06
- Innovative instruments = =
- Other capital instruments = =
- Less
- Intangible & Deferred Tax Assets 10.29 9.91
Total Tier -1 Capital 1,594.20 1,130.99
(b) The total amount of Tier Il capital (net of deductions from Tier Il capital) 28.02 18.03
- Revaluation Reserve 0.49 0.51
- Investment Reserve 1.17 1.17
- General Provision 26.36 16.35
(c) Debt Capital instruments eligible for inclusion in Upper Tier Il capital
- Total amount outstanding NIL NIL
- Of which amount raised during the current year NIL NIL
- Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds NIL NIL
(d) Subordinated debt eligible for inclusion in Lower Tier Il capital
- Total amount outstanding NIL NIL
- Of which amount raised during the current year NIL NIL
- Amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds NIL NIL
(e) Other deductions from capital, if any NIL NIL
(f) Total Eligible Capital 162222 1,149.02
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Capital Adequacy
Regulatory capital assessment

The Bank is subjected to Capital Adequacy guidelines
stipulated by RBI. As per capital adequacy guidelines under
Basel |, the Bank is required to maintain minimum Capital
Adequacy Ratio (CAR) of at least 9%, half of which is required
to be Tier | CAR. As per Basel Il guidelines, the Bank is required
to maintain minimum CAR of at least 9%, with minimum Tier |
CAR of 6%. As on March 31,2013, minimum capital for credit &
market risk should be higher of minimum capital requirement
as per Basel Il or 80% of the minimum capital required to be
maintained as per Basel |. As on March 31, 2013, total CAR of
the Bank stood at 17.11% and Tier I CAR at 16.82%, well above
regulatory minimum requirement of 9%.

Inline with RBIguidelines, the Bank has adopted Standardized
Approach for Credit Risk, Standardized Duration Approach for
Market Risk and Basic Indicator Approach for Operational
Risk while computing CAR as per Basel |I.

Assessment of adequacy of Capital to support current and
future activities

The Bank has a comprehensive Internal Capital Adequacy
Assessment Process (ICAAP) which is approved by the Board
of Directors (Board). Under ICAAP, the Bank determines
whether it has adequate level of capital to meet regulatory
norms, current and future business needs, including stress
scenarios. ICAAP evaluates and documents all risks and
substantiates appropriate capital allocation for not only risks
identified under Pillar 1 (i.e. Credit, Market and Operational
Risk) but for the ones identified under Pillar 2 as well.

ICAAP enables the Bank to ensure the adequacy of capital to
take care of the future business growth and various other
risks that the Bank is exposed to, so that the minimum
capital required is maintained on a continuous basis and also
at the times of changing economic conditions / economic
recession. The Bank takes into account both quantifiable and
non-quantifiable risks while assessing capital requirements.
The Bank considers the following risks as material and has
considered these while assessing its capital requirements:

«  (redit Risk
= Market Risk
»  Operational Risk

» Interest Rate Risk in banking Book
»  Liquidity Risk

»  Credit Concentration Risk

. Business Risk

»  Strategic Risk

»  Compliance Risk

»  Reputation Risk

»  Technology Risk

The Bank has also implemented a Board approved Stress
Testing framework. This involves the use of various
techniques to assess the Bank's vulnerability to plausible
but extreme stress events. The stress tests cover stresses
related to Credit Risk, Market Risk, Operational Risk, Liquidity
Risk as well as Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book.
Tolerance limits have also been defined for these stress
tests. The stress tests are performed at periodic intervals
and results are reported to the Board.

The Board of Directors of the Bank reviews capital adequacy
position of the Bank on a quarterly basis.

Basel Ill norms

In order to strengthen the resilience of the banking sector
to potential future shocks, together with ensuring adequate
liquidity in banking system, the Basel Committee on
Banking Supervision (BCBS) issued Basel Ill proposals in
December 2010. Reserve Bank of India (RBI) also came out
with guidelines on Basel Il capital regulations in May 2012
and Basel Il liquidity standards (draft) in Feb 2012. The
guidelines would become effective from April 1, 2013 in a
phased manner and will be fully implemented by March 31,
2018. At present the Bank has no any capital instruments
that are subject to deduction from capital as per Basel lll
framework.

The Bank believes that its current robust capital adequacy
position, adequate headroom currently available to raise
capital, demonstrated track record for raising capital and
adequate flexibility in its balance sheet structure and
business model, will enable it to comply with the Basel Ill
norms comfortably.
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Capital requirements for various risks -

A summary of Bank's capital requirement for credit, market and operational risk along with CAR as on March 31, 2013 is

presented below:

S No. Particulars

(a) Capital requirements for Credit risk:
- Portfolios subject to standardized approach
- Securitization exposures
(b) Capital requirements for Market risk:
Standardized duration approach
- Interest rate risk
- Foreign exchange risk (including gold)
- Equity risk
(c) Capital requirements for Operational risk:
- Basic indicator approach
(d) Total Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)
Tier-1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%)

(% in crore)

653.93 35214
= 9.02
134.92 4211
2.02 2.02
26.72 19.77
35.62 20.70
1711 % 23.20%
16.82 % 22.83%

Credit Risk- General Disclosures
Policy and Strategy for Credit Risk Management

Credit Risk is defined as the probability of losses associated
with reduction in credit quality of borrowers or counterparties
leading to non-payment of dues to the Bank. In the
Bank's portfolio, losses arise from default due to inability
or unwillingness of a customer or counterparty to meet
commitments in relation to lending, trading, settlements, or
any other financial transaction.

The Bank has put in place Commercial Credit Policy,
Investment Policy, Recovery Policy, Risk Management Policy,
Policy on Transfer of Asset through Securitization & Direct
Assignment of cash flows, Retail Assets Credit Policy duly
approved by the Board whereby credit risk can be identified,
quantified and managed within the framework that is
considered consistent with the scale, size of business and
risk appetite of the Bank. These policies prescribe various
methods for credit risk identification, measurement, grading,
monitoring, reporting, risk control / mitigation techniques
and management of problem loans / credit.

Credit Risk Management is ensured through following

initiatives:

» A rigorous control framework from which only
authorized departures are permitted;

. Clear, agreed roles and responsibilities;

»  Qualified, experienced and well-motivated personnel;

» A predetermined credit risk measurement and
monitoring methodology;

»  (onsistent reporting and relevant MIS;
»  Astatement of operating principles;

. Robust systems, applications and data warehousing
architecture.

Organizational Structure for Credit Risk Management
function

The organizational structure of the Bank for Credit Risk
Management function has the Board of Directors at
the apex level that maintains overall oversight on the
management of risks. The Risk Management Committee of
Board (RMCB) devises policy and strategy for integrated risk
management which includes credit risk. RMCB approves the
Bank's credit policies, prudential exposure limits, business
segments, credit assessment and approval system, margin
and collateral management, credit documentation, credit
pricing framework, credit administration and monitoring
system, non-performing assets management policy, credit
risk management system and exception management. At
operational level, Management Credit Committee (MCC)
is responsible for operationalizing the credit policy and
implementing credit framework.
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The roles and responsibilities of the key functions involved in
credit risk management are as detailed below:

»  (redit Risk Department (CRD) — The CRD has an
independent reporting to Chief Risk Officer (CRO) of
the Bank and has credit recommendation and approval
authorities at different levels. The CRD takes decisions
on all applications in accordance with policies applicable
to the specific proposal / product / scheme. To ensure
complete independence, and to avoid any conflict of
interest, the CRD is not assigned any business targets.

. Credit Administration Department (CAD) — The CAD at
Corporate / Regional level acts as the third eye after
business and CRD to ensure compliance with the Bank's
policies and prudent lending requirements.

»  Recoveries and Collections — The Recovery Department
monitors NPA's and manages restructuring of
advances after examining viability of the unit, follows
up for recoveries very closely and provides guidance
to the Relationship Manager(RM) / Branch Managers
responsible for collections and actively participates in
the recovery effort where warranted.

Credit risk measurement, mitigation, monitoring &
reporting systems

Credit Origination and Appraisal System

There are separate Credit Origination and Appraisal Processes
for Wholesale and Retail segments. Within the Wholesale
segment, Bank has adopted underwriting standards for
different client segments that is based, inter alia, on internal
risk ratings, availability of security and other risk parameters.
The credit sanctions are provided by experienced credit
professionals and / or credit committees with delegated
approval authorities as per Bank's Board approved credit
policy, basis detailed appraisal memorandum that takes
into account business and financial risks of the proposal.
The Retail segment, on the other hand, relies largely on
standardized product programs for credit risk assessment
and approvals.

Credit Rating Framework

The Bank has put in place an internal rating system for
Wholesale segment. The rating system uses various models,
depending upon size of company as well as specialized
models for Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC) and
Micro Finance Institutions (MFI). The internal rating system
is a step towards migration to Advanced Approach for Credit
Risk as per New Capital Adequacy Framewark (NCAF).

The rating system is based on a two dimensional rating
framework, Borrower Rating and Facility Rating. The
Borrower Rating is determined first, which is based on
assessment of Industry Risk, Business Risk, Management
Risk and Financial Risk along with Project Risk / Conduct of
Account (if applicable). This is calibrated to the Probability of
Default (PD). The Facility Rating is based on Borrower Rating,
and takes into account security structure, therefore is a
combination of PD and LGD (Loss Given Default).

Besides, the Bank continues to endeavor to have all facilities
above ¥ 5 crore to have external ratings.

Credit Documentation

The objective of credit documentation is to clearly establish
the debt obligation of borrower to the Bank. In most cases,
standardized set of documents are used as applicable,
depending upon the type of credit facilities and the borrower
entity.

Delegation of powers

The Bank has adopted 'Four Eyes' principle for credit approval.
The principle dictates that generally at least two people must
create, examine and approve any credit proposal. Most of
the loan praposals require Joint Signature Approvals (JSA).
This helps to avoid credit approval based on judgment of one
functionary alone, ensures compliance & reduces risk from
errors & prejudices. The Bank has also adopted Committee
Approach for sanctioning high value credit proposals. Board
Credit Committee (BCC), Management Credit Committee
(MCC) approves credit proposals as per authority matrix.

Post Sanction Monitoring

The Bank has evolved a process to ensure end-use of funds is
for the purpose for which credit limits are sanctioned. Further,
it is ensured that the security obtained from borrowers by
way of hypothecation, pledge, etc. are not tampered with in
any manner and are adequate.

Early Warning System (EWS)

The Bank follows EWS for early identification of problem
loans. EWS waorks on the basis of various pre-defined
symptoms. Such accounts are closely monitored by RM, CRD,
Special Mention Assets (SMA) Group and CAD.

Out of these, accounts which exhibit high degree of stress are
classified as "Watch List”accounts. Remedial action plans for
these accounts are developed. Such accounts are monitored
very closely by Senior Management as well as Board.
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Review / Renewal of Loans

After a credit facility is sanctioned and disbursed, follow-
up and reviews are conducted at periodic intervals. All
funded and non-funded facilities granted to a customer are
reviewed at least once a year or at more frequent intervals,
as warranted. In addition, mid-term reviews are stipulated
for Watch-Listed/ provisioned accounts.

Credit Pricing

Pricing of loans / advances / cash credit / overdraft or
any other financial accommodation granted / provided /
renewed or discounted usance bills is in accordance with the
directives on interest rates on advances issued by RBl as well
as internal policies of the Bank. The Bank has also adopted
Risk Based Pricing for different categories of customers.

Credit Portfolio Analysis

Credit portfolio analysis is carried out at periodic intervals to
review entire credit portfolio of the Bank to monitor growth,
distribution, concentration, quality, compliance with RBI
guidelines and policies of the Bank, accounts under Watch-
List category etc. The same is monitored / reviewed by Board
/ RMCB.

Loan Review Mechanism (LRM)

The Bank has implemented LRM framework in line with RBI
guidelines. The primary objective of LRM includes monitoring
effectiveness of loan administration, compliance with
internal policies of Bank and regulatory framework, monitor
portfolio quality, concentrations, post sanction follow-ups
and appraising top management with information pertaining
to the audit finding for further corrective actions.

Non-performing Assets (NPA)

An asset, including a leased asset, becomes non-performing
when it ceases to generate income for the Bank.

i) A non-perfaorming asset (NPA) is a loan or an advance
where: Interest and/ or installment of principal remain
overdue for a period of more than 90 days in respect of
a term loan. Any amount due to the Bank under any
credit facility is 'overdue’ if it is not paid on the due date
fixed by the Bank.

i) The bill remains averdue for a period of more than 90
days in the case of bills purchased and discounted;

i) Installment of principal or interest thereon remains
overdue for two crop seasons for short duration crops,
and one crop season for long duration crops;

vi)

vii)

viii)

Xi)

The account remains ‘out of order’ in respect of an
Overdraft / Cash Credit (OD/CC). An account is treated
as ‘out of order’if:

a. the outstanding balance remains continuously in
excess of the sanctioned limit / drawing power for
more than 90 days; or

b.  where outstanding balance in principal operating
account is less than sanctioned limit / drawing
power, but there are no credits continuously for 90
days as on the date of balance sheet or credits are
not enough to cover interest debited during the
same period;

Theregular / ad hoc credit limits have not been reviewed
/ renewed within 180 days from the due date / date of
ad-hoc sanction;

Drawings have been permitted in working capital
account for a continuous period of 90 days based
on drawing power computed on the basis of stock
statements that are more than 3 months old, even
though the unit may be working or the borrower's
financial position is satisfactory;

Bank Guarantees / Letters of Credits devolved on the
Bank which are not reimbursed by the customer within
90 days from the date of payment;

A loan for an infrastructure / non-infrastructure
project will be classified as NPA during any time before
commencement of commercial operations as per record
of recovery (90 days overdue), unless it is restructured
and becomes eligible for classification as 'standard
asset);

A loan for an infrastructure (/ non-infrastructure)
project will be classified as NPA if it fails to commence
commercial operations within 2 vyears (/ 6 months)
from original date of commencement of commercial
operations, even if it is regular as per record of recovery,
unless it is restructured and becomes eligible for
classification as 'standard asset’.

The amount of liquidity facility remains outstanding
for more than 90 days, in respect of a securitization
transaction undertaken in terms of RBI guidelines on
securitization;

In respect of derivative transactions, the overdue
receivables representing positive mark-to-market value
of a derivative contract, if these remain unpaid for a period
of 90 days from the specified due date for payment.
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Non-performing Investments (NPI)
NPlis one where:

i) Interest / installment (including maturity proceeds) is due and remains unpaid for more than 90 days;
i) The fixed dividend is not paid in case of preference shares;

i) Incase of equity shares, in the event investment in shares of any company is valued at Re.1 per company on account of non-
availability of latest balance sheet in accordance with RBI instructions;

iv) If any credit facility availed by the issuer is NPA in the books of the Bank, investment in any of the securities issued by the
same issuer would be treated as NPI and vice versa;

v)  The investments in debentures / bonds which are deemed to be in the nature of advance would also be subjected to NPI

norms as applicable to investments.

Quantitative Disclosures

(a) Total gross credit risk exposures*, Fund based and Non-fund** based separately

% in crore)
Category m 2011-12
Fund Based 9,160.71 5,337.57
Advances 6,395.23 4,156.99
Investment in Banking book 1,759.94 1,051.29
All other Assets 1,005.54 729.29
Non-Fund Based 2,026.48 439.66
Total 11,187.19 6377.23

* Represents book value as on March 31.

** Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, Acceptances, Endorsements & other Obligations and Liability on account of
outstanding forward exchange contracts (credit equivalent amount).

(b) Geographic distribution of exposure*, Fund based & Non-fund** based separately

(X in crore)
Category -
Fund Based 9,142.03 18.68 9,160.71 5,936.07 1.50 5,937.57
Non-Fund Based 2,026.09 0.39 2,026.48 438.66 1.20 439.66
Total 11,168.12 19.07 11187.19 6,374.53 2.70 6,377.23

* Represents book value as on March 31;

** Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, Acceptances, Endorsements & other Obligations and Liability on account of
outstanding forward exchange contracts (credit equivalent amount).
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(c) Industry type distribution of exposures*- Funded & Non-funded**
(Rin crore)
'“g:::"l Industry Name Fund Based Non-Fund
Based Based
1 A. Mining and Quarrying (A.1+A.2) = = = =
11 A1 Coal - - - -
12 A.2 Others - - - -
2 B. Food Processing (Sum of B.1 to B.5) 933.83 38.65 323.35 7.35
27 B.1 Sugar 200.12 1.12 150.35 1.00
22 B.2 Edible Oils and Vanaspati 197.75 34.95 101.05 0.18
23 B.3 Tea = = 0.05 =
24 B.4 Coffee 166.28 = = =
25 B.5 Others 369.68 2.58 71.90 6.17
3 C. Beverages (excluding Tea & Coffee) and - 0.05 - -
Tobacco (Sum of C.1 & C.2)
31 C.1 Tobacco and tobacco products = = = =
32 C.2 Others - 0.05 - -
4 D. Textiles (Sum of D.1 to D.6) 98.34 6.23 167.09 15.76
47 D.1 Cotton 3.92 = 471.05 1.03
42 D.2 Jute - - - -
43 D.3 Handicraft/ Khadi (Non Priority) - - - -
Lty D.4 Silk - - - _
45 D.5 Woolen - - - -
46 D.6 Others S4.42 6.23 126.04 14.73
47 Out of D (i.e. Total Textiles) to Spinning Mills = = = =
5 E. Leather and Leather Products = = = >
6 F. Wood and Wood products = = = =
7 G. Paper and Paper Products 145.92 5.23 £0.59 =
8 H. Petroleum (non-infra), Coal Products (non- - - - -
mining) and Nuclear Fuels
9 |. Chemicals and Chemical Products (Dyes, Paints 427.01 48.27 190.48 4.62
etc.) Sum of 1.1 to I.4)
91 .1 Fertilizers 16.63 7.32 = =
92 .2 Drugs and Pharmaceuticals 259.05 23.80 130.09 4.26
93 |.3 Petro-chemicals (excluding under 80.58 15.49 = =
Infrastructure)
S4 I.4 Others 70.75 1.65 60.39 0.36
10 J. Rubber, Plastic and their products 53.64 19.78 2574 =
11 K. Glass & Glassware - - - -
12 L. Cement and Cement Products 99.01 24.02 4L7.56 6.76
13 M. Basic Metal and Metal Products (M.1 & M.2) 211.33 123.95 157.61 0.14
131 M.1 Iron and Steel 109.35 117.07 108.89 014
132 M.2 Other Metal and Metal Products 101.98 6.89 4872 -
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(% in crore)
2012-13 2011-12
MUY Industry Name - Non-Fund
Code Fund Based Fund Based

Based Based

14 N. All Engineering (N.1 & N.2) 133.85 15.08 44,05 0.65
141 N.1 Electronics = = 1.40 =
142 N.2 Others 133.85 15.08 42.65 0.65
15 0. Vehicles, Vehicle Parts and Transport 23.15 7.72 20.83 =

Equipments
16 P. Gems and Jewellery = 36.66 17.94 26.00
17 Q. Construction 458,72 118.33 373.08 66.80
18 R. Infrastructure (Sum R.1 to R.4) 416.17 404.86 206.47 189.61
181 R.1 Transport( Sum of R.1.1 to R.1.5) 75.00 158.83 = =
1811 R.1.1. Railways = = = =
1812 R.1.2 Roadways 75.00 99.00 - =
1813 R.1.3 Airport = = = =
1814 R.1.4 Waterways = = = =
1815 R.1.5 Ports = 59.83 = =
182 R.2 Energy (Sum of R.2.1 to R.2.4) 233.36 56.20 187.89 58.40
1821 R.2.1 Electricity (generation-transportation and 233.36 56.20 163.06 58.40
distribution)

18211 R.2.1.1 State Electricity Boards = = = =
18212 R.2.1.2 Others = = 56.19 =
18213 R.2.3 Power Generation 199.32 56.20 106.87 58.40
18214 R.2.4 Power transmission / Distribution 34.04 = = =
1822 R.2.2 Qil (storage and pipeline) = = = =
1823 R.2.3 Gas/LNG (Storage and pipeline) - - 24.83 -
1824 R.2.4 Others = = = =
183 R.3 Telecommunication 25.00 189.83 0.02 119.80
184 R.4 Others 82.81 = 18.56 11.41
1841 R.4.1 Water sanitation - - 1 -
1842 R.4.2 Social & Commercial Infrastructure = = = =
1843 R.4.3 Others 82.81 = 18.56 11.41
19 S. NBFC 1,645.49 = 649.00 =
20 T. Traders 555.23 179.20 282.06 67.20
21 U. Other Services 1,121.94 177.77 @ @
22 V. Other Industries 538.40 12.45 571.85 23.86
23 All Industries (Sum of A to V) 6,862.03 1,218.26 3537.70 408.75
24 Residuary Other Category (to tally with gross) 1,305.19 808.22 1,088.10 30.91
Less Bills Re-discounted 97.53 = 49.11 =
Total 8,069.69 2,026.48 4,576.69 439.66
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As on March 31, the Bank's exposure to the industries stated below was more than 5% of the total exposure:

Sr. . Percentage of the total exposure
Industry classification

1. NBFC 16.30% 12.94%

2. Food Processing 9.63% 6.55%

3. Traders 7.27% 6.96%

4, Infrastructure 8.13% 7.90%

B) Construction 5.72% 8.77%

* Represents book value as on March 31, gross advances and investments through credit substitutes;

** Guarantees given on behalf of constituents, Acceptances, Endorsements & other Obligations and Liability on account of
outstanding forward exchange contracts (credit equivalent amount).

@ Part of Other Residuary category.

(d) Residual contractual maturity breakdown of assets
As on March 31,2013

(%in crore)
. Cash, balances with RBI Other assets includin
1 day 122.07 110.00 164.87 0.00
2 to 7 days 188.88 49,97 125.60 13.48
8to 14 days 16.33 0.00 59.27 8.64
15 to 28 days 146.68 24.86 197.87 0.00
29 days to 3 months 47.80 1,145.76 638.16 16.99
3 to 6 months 25.97 871.32 368.77 11.83
6 to 12 months 57.38 24214 685.60 32.34
1to 3 years 73.49 724.03 2,101.68 61.13
3to5years 4.85 824.76 1,322.44 13.58
Over 5 years 513 157858 711.95 169.25
Total 688.58 5571.42 6,376.21 327.24
As on March 31,2012
(Xin crore)
) Cash, balances with RBI Other assets including
Maturity bucket Investments Advances .
and other banks fixed assets
1 day 115.18 105.00 88.57 0.00
2 to 7 days 286.32 191.89 77.20 5.69
8to 14 days 3.20 19.94 95.91 2.81
15 to 28 days 9.88 24.83 11216 0.00
29 days to 3 months 15.91 536.65 558.28 7.13
3 to 6 months 25.62 87.24 263.10 4.94
6 to 12 months 4555 31.58 570.13 12.62
11to 3 years 78.65 227.71 1,260.58 24.31
3to5years 3.1 223.76 400.95 5.75
Over 5 years 2.70 885.24 705.39 89.86
Total 586.12 2,333.83 4,132.27 153.11
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(e) Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(a) Amount of NPAs (Gross) 25.90 33.11
- Substandard 4.43 16.38
- Doubtful 1 14.71 3.25
- Doubtful 2 3.78 5.00
- Doubtful 3 2.28 2.94
- Loss 0.69 5.54
(b) Net NPAs 6.88 8.39
(c) NPA ratios
- Gross NPAs to gross advances 0.40% 0.80%
- Net NPAs to Net advances 0.11% 0.20%
(dd Movement of NPAs (Gross)
- Opening balance 33.11 2157
- Additions 40.85 1813
- Reductions 48.06 6.53
- Closing balance 25.90 33.11
(e) Movement of provisions for NPAs
- Opening balance 24.72 14.62
- Provisions made during the period 10.35 12.08
- Write-off / Write-back of excess provisions during the vear (16.05) (1.98)
- Closing balance 19.02 24.72
(f) NPl and movement of provision for depreciation of NPIs
(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
(a) Amount of Non- Performing Investments = 2.29
(b) Amount of provisions held for Non- Performing Investments - 2.29
(c) Movement of provisions for Non - Performing & depreciation on investments
- Opening balance 2.29 2.59
- Provisions made during the period 5.50 5.24
- Write-off 2.29 =
- Write-back of excess provisions 5.29 5.54
- Closing balance 0.21 2.29
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Credit Risk: Disclosures for Portfolios Subject to the
Standardized Approach

Ratings used under Standardized Approach

As stipulated by RBI, the Bank makes use of ratings assigned
to domestic counterparties by following Eligible Credit
Assessment Institutions (ECAI's) namely:

- CRISIL Limited;
- CARE Limited

- India Ratings & Research Private Limited (earlier known
as Fitch India);

- ICRA Limited;
- Brickwork Ratings India Pvt. Ltd (Brickwork);
- SMERA.

The Bank reckons external ratings for risk weighting
purposes, if the external rating assessment complies with
the guidelines stipulated by RBI.

Types of exposures for which each agency is used:

The Bank has used the solicited ratings assigned by the above
approved credit rating agencies for all eligible exposures, both
on balance sheet and off balance sheet, whether short term
or long term, as prescribed in the RBI guidelines.

Process used for application of issue ratings to comparable
assets in banking book:

Key aspects of the Bank's external ratings application
framework are as follows:

1. The Bank uses only those ratings that have been
solicited by the counterparty;

2. Where the facility provided by the Bank possesses
rating assigned by approved ECAI, the risk weight of the
claim is based on this rating;

3. The Bank also reckons external rating at the borrower
(issuer) level as follows:

a.  Where the Bank invests in a particular issue that
has an issue specific rating, the risk weight of the
claim is based on this assessment;

b.  When a borrower is assigned a rating that maps to
a risk weight of 150%, then this rating is applied on
all unrated facilities of the borrower;

c.  Unrated short term claim on counterparty is
assigned a risk weight of at least one level higher
than the risk weight applicable to the rated short
term claim on that counterparty.

Vi.

Quantitative Disclosures

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the
standardized approach, amount of a Bank's exposure (rated
and unrated) in the following three major risk buckets as well
as those that are deducted:

(% in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
- Below 100% risk weight 4,054.16 3,330.31
- 100% risk weight 6,914.29 2994.44
- More than 100% risk weight 369.54 187.75
- Credit Risk Mitigants (CRM) 652.98 280.72

Deducted

Credit Risk Mitigation: Disclosures for Standardized
Approaches
Policies and processes

The Bank has in place Commercial Credit Policy, Retail Assets
Credit Policy duly approved by the Board. The policies lay
down the types of securities normally accepted by the
Bank for lending, and administration / monitoring of such
securities in order to safeguard / protect the interest of the
Bank so as to minimize the risk associated with it.

Credit Risk Mitigation

In line with RBI guidelines, the Bank uses comprehensive
approach for credit risk mitigation. Under this approach, the Bank
reduces its credit exposure to the counterparty when calculating
its capital requirements to the extent of risk mitigation provided
by the eligible financial collateral as specified.

Main types of collateral taken by Bank

Bank uses various collaterals financial as well as non-
financial, guarantees and credit insurance as credit risk
mitigants. The main collaterals include bank deposits,
National Saving Certificate (NSC) / Kisan Vikas Patra (KVP)
/ Life Insurance Palicies, plant and machinery, Book debts,
residential and commercial mortgages, vehicles and other
movable properties. All collaterals are not recognized as
credit risk mitigants under the standardized approach.
The following are the eligible financial collaterals which are
considered under standardized approach.

- Fixed Deposit receipts issued by the Bank;
- Securities issued by Central and State Governments;

- KVP and NSC provided no lock-in period is operational
and that can be encashed within the holding period;
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- Life Insurance Policies with declared surrender value, Quantitative Disclosures
issued by an insurance company regulated by the (Zin crore)
insurance sector regulator; S
" Particulars 2011-12
Main type of guarantor counterparties No.
Wherever required the Bank obtains personal or corporate 1. Total  Exposure  (on 652.98 280.72
guarantee as an additional comfort for mitigation of credit risk and off balance sheet)
which can be translated into a direct claim on the guarantor covered by eligible
which is unconditional and irrevocable. The creditworthiness financial collateral after
of the guarantor is normally not linked to or affected by the application of haircuts

b 's f | tion.
OIS L 2. Total Exposure  (on 93.44 24.50

and off balance sheet)
covered by guarantees /
credit derivatives

Concentration Risk in Credit Risk Mitigants

The credit risk mitigation taken is largely in the form of cash
deposit with the Bank and thus the concentration risk (credit
and market) of the mitigants is low.

VII. Securitisation Exposures: Disclosure For Standardized Approach

In respect of securitization transactions, the Bank's role is limited as an investor. The outstanding value of securitized expasure as
on March 31, 2013 was ¥ 406.84 crore.

Quantitative Disclosures

Banking Book

= Particulars m 2011-12
No.

1. Total amount of expasures securitized by the Bank NIL NIL

2. For exposures securitized, losses recognized by the Bank NIL NIL
during the current period

3. Amount of assets intended to be securitized within a year NIL NIL

4. Of (3), amount of assets originated within a vear before NIL NIL
securitization

5. Total amount of exposures securitized and unrecognized NIL NIL

gain or losses on sale by exposure type
6. Aggregate amount of:

- On balance sheet securitization exposures retained or NIL Securities (PTC) purchased with book value
purchased broken down by exposure type % 13201 crore backed by pool of micro-finance

loans.
- Off balance sheet securitization exposures NIL NIL
7. Aggregate amount of: % in crore)
- Securitization exposures retained or purchased and NIL Risk Exposure Capital Charge

the associated capital charges, broken down between Weight

expasures & different risk weight bands. Below 63.70 2.87

100%
100% 68.31 6.15
More than = =

100%
8. Exposures that have been deducted entirely from Tier | NIL NIL

capital, credit enhancing I/0s deducted from total capital,
and other exposures deducted from total capital (by
exposure type)
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Trading Book —
(% in crore)
No.
1. Aggregate amount of exposures securitized by the Bank for NIL NIL
which the Bank has retained some exposures and which is
subject to market risk approach, by exposure type
2. Aggregate amount of:

- On balance sheet securitization expaosures retained or  Securities (PTC) purchased Securities (PTC) purchased

purchased broken down by exposure type with market value ¥ 406.63  with market value ¥ 19.20
crore backed by pool of crore backed by pool of
micro-finance loans. micro-finance loans.

- Off balance sheet securitization exposures NIL NIL

3. Aggregate amount of securitization exposures retained or

purchased separately for:

- Securitization exposures retained or purchased subject to % 406.84 crare % 19.20 crore
Comprehensive Risk Measure for Specific Risk

- Securitization exposures subject to the securitization (% in crore) (% in crore)
framework for specific risk broken down into different risk [J-® Weight LNl Risk Weight Exposure
weight bands Below 100% 12453 Below 100% 19.20

100% 28231 100% =
More than - More than =
100% 100%

4, Aggregate amount of:

- Capital requirements for securitization exposures, subject (% in crore) (% in crore)
to the securitization framework broken down into different [ Weight (@10 Risk Weight Capital
risk weight bands Required Required

Below 100% 590 Below 100% 0.86
100% 26.87 100% =
More than - More than =
100% 100%

- Securitization exposures that are deducted entirely from NIL NIL

Tier | capital, credit enhancing I/0s deducted from total
capital, and other exposures deducted from total capital
(by exposure type)

VIIl. Market Risk in Trading Book
Policy and Strategy for Market Risk Management

Bank defines Market Risk as the risk of losses in trading book due to movements in market variables such as interest rates, credit
spreads, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices, equity prices etc. Bank's exposure to market risk arises from investment in
trading book (AFS & HFT category), the foreign exchange positions, and other derivative positions. Under market risk management,
liquidity risk, interest rate risk, equity price risk and foreign exchange risk are monitored and managed.

Market Risk is managed in accordance to the Board approved Investment Policy, Market Risk Management Palicy, Asset Liability
Management (ALM) Policy, Foreign Exchange Policy, Derivatives Policy. The policies lay down well-defined organization structure for
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market risk management functions and processes whereby
the market risks carried by the Bank are identified, measured,
monitored and controlled within the stipulated risk appetite
of the Bank.

Organization Structure for Market Risk Management
function

The organizational structure of the Bank for Market Risk
Management function has the Board of Directors at the
apex level that maintains overall oversight on management
of risks. The Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
devises policy and strategy for integrated risk management
whichincludes market risk. At operational level, Asset Liability
Management Committee (ALCO) monitors management of
market risk. The main functions of ALCO also include balance
sheet planning from a risk return perspective including the
strategic management of interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

The Market Risk Management process includes the following
key participants:

» The Market Risk Management Group, which is an
independent function, reports to Chief Risk Officer
(CRQ). This group is responsible for developing the palicy
framework for Market Risk management and day to day
oversight over the Market Risk exposures of the Bank.

»  TheTreasury Mid Office is responsible for monitoring all
Market Risk exposures in line with the policies of the
Bank and escalating excesses/ violations etc. in a timely
manner so that corrective action can be initiated.

= Treasury Investment Committee oversees and reviews
investments in Government Securities, bonds and
debentures, equity investments, and investments in
other approved securities and instruments.

Risk Reporting, Measurement, Mitigation and Monitoring
Systems

The Market Risk Management framework ensures that there
are sufficient processes and controls in place to ensure all
market risk exposures are monitored and are within the risk
appetite set by the Bank's Board.

Reporting and measurement systems —

The Bank has defined various risk metrics for different
products and investments. Risk limits are control measures
which seek to limit risk within or across the desks. The
objective of a limit is to ensure that the negative earnings

impact of price risks are within the risk taking appetite of the
Bank. The nature of limits includes position limits, gap limits,
tenor & duration limits, stop-loss trigger level, Value at Risk
(VaR) limits. These limits are appropriately selected for the
relevant portfolios. The risk limits are monitored across
different levels of the Bank on an ongoing basis.

Liquidity Risk Management
Liguidity Risk is managed in the following manner:

»  Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy of the Bank
specifically deals with liquidity and interest rate risk
management.

»  Asenvisaged in the ALM policy, liquidity risk is managed
through Traditional Gap Analysis based on the residual
maturity / behavioral pattern of assets and liabilities
as prescribed by RBI.

=  Monitoring of prudential (tolerance) limits set for
different residual maturity time buckets, large depasits,
loans, various liquidity ratios for efficient asset liability
management;

»  TheBankhasalso putin place mechanism of short term
dynamic liquidity and contingency plan for liquidity risk
management;

» (Contingency Funding Plan (CFP), approved by the
Board sets process to take care of crisis situation in
the event of liquidity crunch or a run on the Bank. A
comprehensive set of Early Warning Indicators has
been designed to forewarn of impending liquidity
stress. Crisis Management Team (CMT) provides
direction of follow up action for handling the crisis
situation.

Portfolios covered by Standardized Approach

The Bank has adopted Standardized Duration Approach
(SDA) as prescribed by RBI for computation of capital charge
for market risk for:

. Securities included under the Held for Trading (HFT)
category,

. Securities included under the Available for Sale (AFS)
category,

»  Open foreign exchange position limits, and

= Trading positions in derivatives.
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Capital requirement for:

(R in crore)
Particulars m 2011-12
Interest Rate Risk 134.92 4211
Equity Position Risk 26.72 19.77
Foreign Exchange Risk 2.02 2.02

IX. Operational Risk

Policy and Strategy for Operational Risk Management

Bank defines operational risk as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events. Operational risk includes legal risk
but excludes strategic and reputational risk. The Bank faces
Operational Risk due to its exposure to potential errors,
frauds, or unforeseen catastrophes resulting in unexpected
losses in the course of business activities.

The Operational Risk Management process of the Bank
is driven by a strong organizational culture and sound
operating procedures, involving corporate values, attitudes,
competencies, internal control culture, effective internal
reporting and contingency planning. Policies are put in place
for effective management of operational risk in the Bank.
These include Information Security Policy, Policy on Know
Your Customer and Anti Money Laundering Measures,
Outsourcing Policy, Vigilance Palicy, Frauds Management
Poalicy.

Organizational Structure for Operational Risk Management
function

The organizational structure of the Bank for Operational Risk
Management function has the Board of Directors at the apex
level that maintains overall oversight of management of risks.
The Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB) devises
policy and strategy for integrated risk management which
includes operational risk. At operational level, Operational Risk
Management Committee (ORMC) monitors management of
operational risk. The main functions of ORMC are to monitor
and ensure appropriateness of operational risk management
and recommend suitable control measures for mitigating
the same.

Risk Reporting, Measurement, Mitigation and Monitoring
Systems

The Bank has adopted best practices in mitigating operational
risk in transaction processing, adherence to defined policies
& laws, customer documentation and business continuity
through:

Well defined, documented and updated process manuals and
policies,

Centralized processing at National Operating Center (NOC),

Segregation of duties, maker checker concept, automated
processes,

Transaction monitoring and analysis,

Additional checks for high value transactions, control MIS for
various limits, periodic training, standardized documentation,
authorization matrix and Business Continuity / Disaster
Recovery testing,

Insurance — The Bank covers risk on account of natural
disasters, fidelity through appropriate insurance.

Approach for Operational Risk capital assessment

In accordance with RBI guidelines, the Bank has adopted
Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for computation of capital
charge for operational risk.

Interest Rate Risk In The Banking Book (IRRBB)
Policy and Strategy for Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk in banking book represents the Bank's
exposure to adverse movements in interest rates with regard
to its non-trading exposures. Interest rate risk is measured
by doing a gap analysis as well as factar sensitivity analysis.
Bank holds assets, liabilities with different maturity and
linked to different benchmark rates, thus creating exposure
to unexpected changes in the level of interest rates in such
markets.

Interest Rate Risk is managed in accordance to the Board
approved Asset Liability Management (ALM) Policy,
Investment Policy. The policies lay down well-defined
organization structure for interest rate risk management
functions and processes whereby the interest rate risks
carried by the Bank are identified, measured, monitored and
controlled.

Organization Structure for Interest Rate Risk Management
function

The organizational structure of the Bank for Interest Rate
Risk Management function has the Board of Directors at the
apex level that maintains overall oversight of management
of risks. The Risk Management Committee of Board (RMCB)
devises policy and strategy for integrated risk management
which includes interest rate risk. At operational level,
Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) monitors
management of interest rate risk. The main functions of
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ALCO include balance sheet planning from a risk return
perspective including the strategic management of interest
rates and liquidity risks.

Risk Reporting, Measurement, Mitigation & Monitoring
systems

» Interest rate risk is managed using Gap Analysis of Rate
Sensitive Assets (RSA) and Rate Sensitive Liabilities
(RSL) and monitoring of prudential (tolerance) limits
prescribed.

. Earnings perspective - Based on the gap report, Earnings
at Risk (EaR) approximates the impact of an interest
rate/ re-pricing shock for a given change in interest rate
on the net interest income (difference between total
interest income and total interest expense) over a one
year harizon.

»  Economic value perspective - As against the earnings
approach, interest rate risk is monitored based on the
present value of the Bank's expected cash flows. A
modified duration approach is used to ascertain the
impact on interest sensitive assets, liabilities and off-
balance sheet positions for a given change in interest
rates on Market Value of Equity (MVE).

= Monitoring—The Bank employs EaR and MVE measures
to assess the sensitivity to interest rate movements on
entire balance sheet. EaR and MVE thresholds have
been prescribed and the results are monitared on an
ongoing basis.

The findings of the risk measures for IRRBB are reviewed
by Board at quarterly intervals.

Nature of IRRBB and Key assumptions

. Interest rate risk is measured by using Earnings
Perspective and Economic Value Perspective method.

= Thedistribution into rate sensitive assets and liabilities
under Interest Rate Sensitivity Statement, Coupons,
Yields are as prescribed in ALM policy of the Bank.

. Non-maturity depasits (current and savings) are
classified into appropriate buckets according to the
study of behavioral pattern. In case of these depaosits,
volatile portion is classified into '1-28 Days' time bucket
and remaining core portion into “1-3 years' time bucket.

Quantitative Disclosures

Increase (decline) in earnings and economic value (or
relevant measure used by management) for upward and
downward rate shocks according to management's method
for measuring IRRBB.

Earnings Perspective —

(Zin crore)
Interest rate shock m 2011-12
1% change in interest rate for 19.13 3.53
1 year
Economic Value Perspective —
(%in crore)
Interest rate shock m 2011-12
200 basis point shock 112.31 76.52
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Tarabai Park, Kolhapur - 416 003 to transact the following business:

The Ratnakar Bank Limited

Registered Office: 1st Lane, Shahupuri, Kolhapur — 416 001

Mumbai Controlling Office: One Indiabulls Centre, Tower 2B, 6th Floor, 841, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (West), Mumbai 400 013

Notice

Notice is hereby given that the Seventieth Annual General Meeting of members of The Ratnakar Bank Limited (the Bank) will be held on
Friday, August 30, 2013 at 12 noon at Residency Club, C.T.S. No. E 2124, E Ward, Near Bawda Post Office, Opp. PWD Office, New Palace,

Ordinary Business:
1.

To receive, consider and adopt the audited Profit and Loss
Account for the financial year ended on March 31, 2013 and
the Balance Sheet as at that date together with the Reports of
the Directors' and Auditors thereon.

To declare dividend.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Narayan Ramachandran,
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for
reappointment.

To appoint a director in place of Mr. Kiran Patil, who retires by
rotation and being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 224
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956, the Banking Regulation Act, 1949 and subject to the
approval of Reserve Bank of India, S. R. Batliboi & Co. Limited
Liability Partnership, Chartered Accountants (registration
no. 301003E) or such other Auditors as may be approved by
Reserve Bank of India, be appointed as Statutory Auditors of
the Bank, to hold office from the conclusion of this meeting
until the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of
the Bank, on a remuneration {including terms of payment) to
be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Bank, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus service tax and
such other tax(es), as may be applicable and reimbursement of
all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit of the
accounts of the Bank for the year ending March 31, 2014."

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
madification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 228
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,
1956 and the Banking Regulation Act, 1949, the Board of

Directors of the Bank be and is hereby authorised to appoint
branch auditors, as and when required, in consultation with
the Statutory Auditors, to audit the accounts in respect
of the Bank's branches/offices and to fix their terms and
conditions of appointment and remuneration, based on the
recommendation of the Audit Committee, plus service tax and
such other tax(es), as may be applicable, and reimbursement
of all out-of-pocket expenses in connection with the audit
of the accounts of the branches/offices for the year ending
March 31, 2014."

Special Business:

7.

8.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT Mr. D. Sivanandhan who was appointed as
Additional Director of the Bank by the Board under Section
260 of the Companies Act, 1956 and provisions of Articles of
Association of the Bank and who holds office up to the date
of this Annual General Meeting and in respect of whom the
Bank has received Notice in writing, under Section 257 of the
Companies Act, 1956 from a member signifying his intention
to propose him as a candidate for the office of director of the
Bank, be and is hereby appointed as a director of the Bank who
shall be subject to retire by rotation.”

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 314 of the Companies
Act, 1956, Section 35B of the Banking Regulation Act, 1949,
the Articles of Association of the Bank and subject to the
approval of Reserve Bank of India consent of members of the
Bank be and is hereby accorded to Mr. S. G. Kutte, Director of
the Bank, holding and continuing to hold an office as a Part-
time Chairman for a period of one year with effect from June
30, 2013 on monthly remuneration of ¥ 126,500 or as may be
approved by Reserve Bank of India.”

104 | Building it right



Notice

9.

10.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 1956, Section 35B of the Banking Regulation
Act, 1949, the Articles of Association of the Bank and subject
to the approval of Reserve Bank of India, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded for the reappointment
of Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja as Managing Director & CEO of the
Bank far a period of three years, effective June 30, 2013, with
revision in his remuneration to ¥ 68 lakhs p.a. (earlier ¥ 59.4
lakhs p.a.) and such other terms and conditions as detailed
in the explanatory statement of the notice, subject to such
modification as may be approved by Reserve Bank of India and
agreed to by the Board of Directors and Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the reappointment of Mr. \lishwavir
Ahuja shall not be treated as break in the office of Managing
Director & CEO.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja shall not
be subject to retirement by rotation during his tenure as
Managing Director & CEO.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds and things including to
execute any agreement/document as may be required to give
effect to this Resolution.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without
modification(s), the following Resolution as a Special
Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 31 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 1956, the Banking
Regulation Act, 1949 and other applicable laws (including any
statutory amendments thereto or re-enactments thereof for
the time being in force and as may be enacted from time to
time) and the provisions of any rules/ regulations/ guidelines
issued/ framed by the Central Government, Reserve Bank
of India and any other appropriate authorities (hereinafter
collectively referred to as "the Appropriate Authorities”), subject
to the Bank obtaining all approvals from the Appropriate
Authorities; and subject to such conditions and modifications, as
may be prescribed by any one of them while granting any such
approval, consent, permission, and/ or sanction (hereinafter
referred to as “"the requisite approvals’), which may be agreed
to by the Board of Directors of the Bank (hereinafter called “the
Board" which term shall be deemed to include any Committee
which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute
to exercise its powers including the power conferred by this

Resolution), the Articles of Association of the Bank be and is
hereby amended in the manner set out below:

i.  The following new Article be inserted after Article 122, as
Article 122A:

"In addition to the Chairman and/or Managing Director &
CEQ, the Bank may also appoint one or more Wholetime
directors by whatever designation/name it may think fit.
The management of whole of the affairs of the Bank shall
be entrusted to the Chairman and/ or Managing Director &
CEO as the case may be; and the Wholetime director(s) so
appointed shall function under the supervision and control
of the Managing Director & CEO."

By order of the Board of Directors

Virta Jain
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date : July 26,2013

Notes —

1.

2.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED
TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND TO VOTE ON A
POLL, INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A
MEMBER OF THE BANK. Proxies, in order to be effective, must
be received at the Registered Office/ Administrative Office/
Controlling Office of the Bank, not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the
Bank will remain closed from Saturday, August 24, 2013 to
Friday, August 30, 2013 (both days inclusive). Dividend for the
year ended March 31, 2013, at the rate of % 0.60 per fully paid-
up equity share, if declared at the Meeting, will be paid on and
from Monday, September 2, 2013:

(i) tothose Members, holding shares in physical form, whose
names appear on the Register of Members of the Bank, at
the close of business hours on Saturday, August 24, 2013
after giving effect to all valid transfers in physical form
lodged on or before Friday, August 23, 2013 with the Bank
and/ or its Registrar and Transfer Agent; and

(i) in respect of shares held in electronic form, to all beneficial
owners as per the details furnished by National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services
(India) Limited (CDSL) at the close of business hours on
Friday, August 23, 2013,
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3. Pursuant tosection 205C of the Companies Act, 1956, the Bank
is statutorily required to transfer to the Investors Education &
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Central Government,
all unclaimed/ unpaid dividend for a period of seven years
from the date they became due for payment and once such
amount is transferred to IEPF, no claim of the members shall
lie against the Bank or the IEPF. Thus, the unclaimed and
unpaid dividend declared upto the financial year 2003-04 has
been already transferred to IEPF. The Members who have not
vet encashed their dividend warrants related to subsequent
financial years are requested to do so immediately.

4. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified copy
of the Board Resolution/Authorisation pursuant to Section 187
of the Companies Act, 1956, authorising their representative to
attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

5. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 173 of the
Companies Act, 1956 relating to the special business to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting is annexed.

6. Members/ Proxies are requested to bring their admission/
attendance slips along with copy of the Annual Report at the
Annual General Meeting.

7. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to
notify change in address, to update contact details such as
e-mail IDs, cell/ Telephone numbers to the Bank's Registrars

Link Intime India Limited, C-13 Pannalal Silk Mills Compound,
L.B.S. Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai-400 078, Tel. No.
022 25946970 Fax No.. 022 25946969 Email: rnt.helpdesk@
linkintime.co.in.The members holding shares in dematerialised
form are requested to notify the aforesaid to their DP's.

8. Members may avail nomination facility as provided under
Section 109A of the Companies Act, 1956.

9. The Bank has made available the facility of De-materialization
of shares of the Bank. De-materialization of shares will
facilitate easy and convenient holding of shares, Immediate,
hassle-free and safe transfer of shares, no stamp duty
on transfer of shares, reduced transaction cost etc. Thus,
members holding shares in physical form are requested to
make use of the facility for their convenience and safety.

10. Members desirous of getting any information about the
accounts and/ or other operations of the Bank are requested
to write to the Bank at least seven days before the date of the
meeting to enable the Bank to keep the information ready at
the meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

Virta Jain
Company Secretary
Place : Mumbai
Date: July 26,2013

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
pursuant to Section 173 of the Companies Act, 1956

Item No. 7

Mr. D. Sivanandhan is a post graduate in Economics from Madras
University and was an Asst. Prof. of Economics for three years at
Coimbatore before joining Indian Police Service in 1976 and has
had a distinguished career in the field. He has been decorated with
the prestigious President’s distinguished services medal and the
meritorious services medal and various other coveted medals and
recognition. After retiring as Director General of Palice (DGP) of the
Maharashtra State on February 28,2011, Mr. D. Sivanandhan has
been nominated on the PMO's Special Task Force for completely
revamping the internal security scenario of the country.
Mr. D. Sivanandhan is associated as Chairman of Securus First
India Pvt. Ltd. Mr. D. Sivanandhan is also part-time Security
Advisor to Reserve Bank of India and also advising on security
matters to The Royal Bank of Scotland.

Mr. D. Sivanandhan was appointed as Additional Director on the
Board of the Bank with effect from December 18, 2012.

The Board recommend passing of the Resolution in the interest
of the Bank.

No Director is in any way concerned or interested in the Resolution
except Mr. D. Sivanandhan.

Item No. 8

Mr. S. G. Kutte (Mr. Kutte) was appointed as Part-time Chairman
in accordance with approval of RBI for a period of three years
with effect from June 30, 2010 on a remuneration of ¥ 12 lakh
p.a, subsequently his remuneration was revised last year to
% 13.8 lakhs p.a. with effect from July 1, 2012 for the remainder
of the tenure of his office which was approved by members at its
meeting held on August 29, 2012.

Mr. Kutte has completed his term as Chairman on June 29, 2013.
It is observed that the good office of Mr. Kutte was of great use
to the Bank in retaining the immense goodwill that he enjoys
from all quarters of the society and his pragmatic approach which
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has helped to fetch credible support from these constituencies
in ensuring a smooth transition in management and business
strategy (while ensuring that the traditional franchise and
heritage of the Bank continues to be nurtured), thereby assisting
the Managing Director & CEO to take effective charge of his role
and responsibilities. Mr. Kutte has also guided the path of certain
strategic initiatives associated with enhancing the financial
inclusion footprint of the Bank in the Kolhapur region or even in
the broader serving area of the Bank.

In view of above, the Board was desirous of renewal of term as
Part-time Chairman of Mr. Kutte for a period of one year with
revised remuneration of ¥ 15.18 lakhs p.a. from the Bank (earlier
% 13.8 lakh p.a). Nomination Committee of Board and Human
Resource and Remuneration Committee of the Board has also
approved for the aforesaid renewal of term of Mr. Kutte with
revised remuneration.

The Members are requested to accord their approval to the
aforesaid by passing Special Resolution.

No director is in any way concerned or interested in the resolution
except Mr. S, G Kutte.

Item No. 9

Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja (Mr. Ahuja) was appointed as Managing
Director & CEO for a period of three years with effect from June
30, 2010 on terms & conditions as set out in the approval letter
received from Reserve Bank of India (RBI), with modest revision
in remuneration as proposed by the Board during 2011-12 and
2012-13, also approved by RBI and by the members at their
meetings held on August 30,2011 and August 29,2012 respectively.
The term of Mr. Ahuja as the Managing Director & CEQ ended on
June 29, 2013, and the Board of Directors has, at its meeting held
on April 30, 2013, unanimously approved the reappointment of
Mr. Ahuja, as the Managing Director & CEO for a further period of
3 years with effect from June 30, 2013, subject to the approvals of
RBI and the members of the Bank.

Significant progress has been made by the Bank under the
stewardship of Mr. Ahuja. Below are the few highlights of the
same practically on all facets of the functioning of the Bank during
the period 2010-13, under the leadership of Mr. Ahuja:

(i) Attracting talent having expertise in various facets of banking
operations.

(i) Putting in place an organizational structure that would be
capable of handling the projected business growth.

(iii) Putting in place systems and procedures whereby the quality
of business is improved. Actual growth in business in terms

of deposits, advances, investments which in percentage terms
were superior to that attained by the industry.

(iv) Business growth & profitability which grew significantly
during this period even as quality of the portfolio was further
enhanced.

More specifically, during the Financial Year ended on March 31,

2013.

1. Advances increased by 54.30% to reach ¥ 6,376.21 crore &
deposits increased by 75.99% to close at ¥ 8,340.52 crore.

2. Balance sheet has grown from % 7,205 crore as on March 31,
2012 to % 12,963 crore as on March 31, 2013.

3. Profit after tax (PAT) increased from ¥ 65.73 crore in FY12 to
3 92.47 crore in FY13.

4. Gross NPA declined from 0.80% to 0.40% as of March 31, 2013
and Net NPA was 0.11%.

5. There was corresponding improvement in all operating ratios
& parameters,

6. Highest Credit rating (A1+) from ICRA limited for CD programme
of the Bank. The Bank has more than ¥ 3,000 crore of credit
lines from various banks and financial institution, diversified
base of Corporate and Institutional depasits.

7. FX & Trade Finance business continue to show good growth.
Outstanding LC/BGs have grown from % 440 crore to
% 1,920 crore.

The Board observed that the consistent qualitative and
quantitative business growth of the Bank under stewardship of
Mr. Ahuja and the immense efforts putin by him to reinvent the
Bank making it capable in all aspects for a strong future is required
to be acknowledged.

In view of aforesaid, reappointment of Mr. Ahuja for a further
period of three years with effect from June 30, 2013 with a modest
revision is proposed.

The conditions relating to reappointment (including proposed
remuneration vis-a-vis existing remuneration) of Mr. Ahuja as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Bank is set out below:

Particulars :
1. Basic Salary: ¥ 68.3 Lac per annum (Existing- ¥ 59.4 lakh p.a.)

2. Freefurnished accommodation in South mid-town Mumbai

3. Medical benefits: As decided by the Board from time to time
—including reimbursement of medical bills up to ¥ 50,000 per
month
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4. Use of Bank's car: Free use of the Bank's car with driver for
official purpose and private use. Car should not be more that
2400 cc

5. Entertainment Allowance: Reimbursement of actual expenses
on production of bills, of which ¥ 500 per entertainment to
be reimbursed on the MD's own certificate. Entertainment
expenses will be inclusive of entrance fees / subscription of 2
clubs.

6. Other allowance:
i. Traveling & Halting Allowances: As per Bank's Policy;

ii. Provident Fund / Gratuity / Pension: As per Bank's Policy;
iii. Sitting Fees: Not eligible;

iv. Bonus: Performance related as approved by the Board and
after obtaining specific approval of RBI;

v. Insurance cover: For journey by road, rail or air for official
purpose;

vi. Leave fare concession: As per eligibility of other officers
of the Bank. The facility of encashment of privilege leave
(If allowed under the Bank's rule) can be availed of by the
Managing Director & CEO on his demitting office;

vii. Employees stock Option: As approved by the Board after
which specific approval of RBI be sought.

The Members are requested to accord their approval to the
aforesaid by passing Special Resolution.

No director is in any way concerned or interested in the resolution
except Mr. Ahuja.

Item No. 10

As part of the transformation journey over the past three years,
the Bank has achieved significant growth in size and scale across
all parameters. This has also brought the added dimension of
complexity, greater competitive & regulatory challenges and the
need for future planning to take the organisation to the next level.
To meet the new challenges and to sustain the growth
momentum of the Bank, appointment of Wholetime directors
is considered necessary. This would enhance the available
management in efficiently running the Bank's operations. Hence
the powers to appoint Wholetime Director is sought, as required
under the provisions of Section 31 and other applicable provision
of the Act, for amendment in Articles of Association of the Bank as
per the Special Resolution given in the Notice of AGM. The existing
Articles of Association empaowers such appointment. However, for
the purpose of clarity it is proposed to make this amendment.

A copy each of the existing Articles of Association and a new
set of Articles of Association after incorporating the proposed
alterations mentioned in the Special Resolution at Sr. no. 10 will
be available for inspection at the Registered / Administrative /
Controlling Office of the Bank on all working days till the date of
the 70th Annual General Meeting of the Bank to be held on August
30, 2013 between 11.00 a.m to 1.00 p.m

The Members are requested to accord their approval to the
aforesaid by passing Special Resolution.

No director is in any way concerned or interested in the resolution.

By order of the Board of Directors

Virta Jain
Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: July 26,2013
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List of Branch Offices

State Branch Name City Branch Address

Andhra Pradesh Hyderabad Hyderabad D No, 6-3-865, Ground Floor,My Home Jupally,0pp Green Park,Green Lands, Ameerpet Road, Hyderabad-500 016.
Andhra Pradesh Tirupati Tirupati Plot No. 87, Motor Workers Colony, Padmathipuram, Tirupati-Tiruchanur Road, Tirupati - 517 502.

Delhi Barakhamba Delhi Ground Floor, Dr. Gopal Das Bhawan,28, Barakhamba Road,New Delhi -110 001.

Delhi Karol Bagh Delhi 17 A/53, Ground Floor, W.E.A. Karol Bagh, Opp. Jessaram Hospital, Guradwar Road, New Delhi - 110 005.
Goa Mapusa Mapusa Shop No.51, Mapusa Trade Centre,Maroda,Mapusa.Goa - 403 507.

Goa Margoa Margoa Vasant Arcade, Behind Police Station, Comba, Margoa - 403 601.

Goa Panjim Panjim Shop No.G-10 & 11,Nizamar Centre,Ground Floor, Dr. Atmaram Road,Panaji, Goa - 403 001.

Goa Ponda Ponda Dr. Dada Vaidya Chowk,Main Road, Ponda, Goa - 403 401.

Gujarat Ahmedabad Ahmedabad Shop no. 89,10,13 & 14, Mallinath Complex, Opp. Sujata Flats, Shahibaug, Ahmedabad - 380 004.

Gujarat Bardoli Bardoli U01 & U02 Empire Plaza, Opp. Vamdoor Petrol Pump, Station Road, Bardoli, District Surat, Gujarat - 394 601.
Gujarat Deesa Deesa Shop No. 9-10, Kiran Complex, Near Gayatri Temple, Hihway Road, Deesa, Gujarat-385 535.

Gujarat Kadi Kadi Shop Nos. 9A,9B,10,10A & 10B, Diamond Plaza, Thol Road, Opp. Arts & Commercial College, Near Ankur Society, Kadi, Gujarat-382 715.
Gujarat Silvassa(U.t.) Silvassa (U.t.) Unit No.1,2 & 7, Roshan Avenue, Silvassa-Vapi Road, Silvassa - 396 230.

Gujarat Surat Surat Showroom No &, Ground Floor, Twin Tower A, Sahara Darwaja, Ring Road, Surat - 395 002.

Gujarat Vapi Vapi 9/10/11 Sahara Market, Ground Floor, Vapi-Silvassa Road, Vapi, Gujarat - 396 191.

Haryana Gurgaon Gurgaon ABW Tower, At IFFCO Chowk Village Sukhrauli,NH-8, ABW Tower,Gurgaon,Haryana-122 002.

Haryana Sohna Sohna Ground Floor, Aditya Building Killa No.230-8/2/1,Rakba 2, Ward No.5,Near Bikaner Sweet, Sohna, Haryana-122 103.
Karnataka Ankali Shitol(Belgaum) Ankali Shitol A/P Ankali, Taluka: Chikodi, Dist. Belgaum-591 213.

Karnataka Bagalkot Bagalkot T.P. No. 163A/2B, Near Lions School, Bagalkot, Kartakata-587 101.

Karnataka Belgaum Belgaum Ground & Second Floor, CTS No. 3939/1A, Club Road, Belgaum, Karnataka - 590 001.

Karnataka Bellad-Bagewadi Bellad-Bagewadi 395, A/P : Bellad Bagewadi,Taluka. : Hukeri, Dist. : Belgaum- 591 305.

Karnataka Bengaluru Bengaluru 197, 6Th Cross, Gandhinagar, Bengaluru - 560 009.

Karnataka Dod Ballarpur Bengaluru 6th Cross Sahajananda Nagar,D' Cross, (Near LIC office) Doddaballapur -561 203.

Karnataka Kormangala, Bengaluru Bengaluru Ground Floor, 631 3rd Block 3rd Cross, 100 feet road, Nr. BDA complex, Koramangala, Bengaluru - 560 034.
Karnataka Ramnagara Bengaluru Khata No.169/1789/1736, Ground Floor, GNR Complex, | stage, B M Road, Ramanagara-571511.

Karnataka Davangere Davangere 718/1, Subhash Road,Mandi Peth,Davangere - 577 001.

Karnataka Dharwad Dharwad Kabadi Mansion, Kosmos Club Road, Behind Court, Dharwad-580 001.

Karnataka Gokak Gokak C.S.T. No.3324 and 3325Khoja's Hotel, Anmol Plaza Building.Hospet Galli, Raviwar Peth,Gokak- 591 307.
Karnataka Harugeri Harugeri V/PC No.3096, Ground Floor, Sadalagi Building, Athani Road, Harugeri, Taluka Raibagh, District Belgaum-591 220.
Karnataka Hubli Hubli C.T.S. No.56/57, Ward No.2,Samarth Centre,New Mydar Oni,Hubli - 580 028.

Karnataka Manoli Manoli No. 2577/2512/1B, N C Yaligar Building, Panchaligershwar Temple Road, Manoli, Taluka: Saudatti, Dist. Belgaum-597 117.
Karnataka Nipani Nipani 228, Padmaraj Building, Sakharwadi,Pune-Bengaluru Road, Nipani.Dist. - Belgaum -591 237.

Karnataka Shamnewadi Shamnewadi Gramseva Sahakari Sangh Building. Shamnewadi,Taluka. Chikodi, Dist.: Belgaum-591 505.

Karnataka Shedbal Shedbal Bazar Peth, Shedbal Taluka : Athani Dist. Belgaum - 591 315.

Karnataka Shirguppi Shirguppi 379, A/P : Shirguppi Taluka : Athani Dist. : Belgaum - 591 242.

Madhya Pradesh Khurai Khurai Sai Centre Point, Nehru Ward, Station Road, Khurai, Mahya Pradesh - 470 117.

Madhya Pradesh Mandideep Mandideep Plot No. 1, Ward No. 12, Sector-A, Indiranagar, Tehsil Goharganj, Dist. Raisen, Mandideep, Madhya Pradesh-462 046.
Madhya Pradesh Pipariya Pipariya Ground Floor, Murli Tower, Cement Road, Pipariya, Madhya Pradesh - 461 775.

Maharashtra Ahmednagar Ahmednagar Sai Icon, Opp Mauli Sankul,Savedi Road, Ahmednagar - 414 003.

Maharashtra Aitawade Budruk Aitawade Budruk 529, Society Bldg. No.2,A/P - Aitawade Budruk. Taluka. - Walwa, Dist. : Sangli-415 401.

Maharashtra Akkiwat Akkiwat A/P - Akkiwat, Taluka: Shirol, Dist.: Kolhapur- 416 108.

Maharashtra Akluj Akluj R.S. No.2258/4A Mahaveer Path, Akluj.Taluka: Malshiras, Dist. Solapur— 413 101.

Maharashtra Ankali (Sangli) Ankali 178, A/P: Ankali.Taluka : Miraj, Dist. : Sangli-416 416.

Maharashtra Arjunwad Arjunwad A/P: Arjunwad.Taluka : Shirol, Dist. : Kolhapur— 416 120.

Maharashtra Aurangabad Aurangabad Ground Floor N-3, Plot no 303,Cidco Jalna Road, Aurangabad - 431 001.

Maharashtra Baramati Baramati Shantilal Shaha (Pandarkar) Building Mahavir Path, Baramati. Dist:Pune -413 102.

Maharashtra Bhadvan Bhadvan A/P:Bhadvan,Taluka : Ajara,Dist. : Kolhapur - 416 505.

Maharashtra Bhilwadi Bhilwadi Dakshin Bhag Bhilwadi Vikas Society Building,Bhilwadi. Taluka: Palus, Dist .: Sangli-416 303.

Maharashtra Bhose Bhose A/P:Bhose,Taluka : Miraj, Dist. : Sangli — 416 422.

Maharashtra Boisar Boisar Ameya Park Near Hotel, Boisar Navapur Road, Boisar. Thane- 401 501.

Maharashtra Borpadale Borpadale A/P: Borpadale.Taluka : Panhala, Dist. : Kolhapur-416 213.

Maharashtra Burli Burli A/P: Burli. Taluka : Palus, Dist. Sangli- 416 318.

Maharashtra Dudhagaon Dudhagaon 395/2 A/P:Dudhagaon.Taluka : Miraj, Dist. : Sangli- 416 315.

Maharashtra Ghotawade Ghotawade Bapu Dongale Building, Main Road, GHOTAWADE, Taluka : Radhanagari.Dist. : Kolhapur- 416 230.
Maharashtra Haladi Haladi Sarpanch Grampanchayat Premsies, A/P Haladi, Taluka Karv eer, Dist. Kolhapur -416 221.

Maharashtra Hingangaon Hingangaon 53, Grampanchayat Building, A/P : Hingangaon Taluka : Kavathe-Mahankal Dist. : Sangli - 416 405.
Maharashtra Hupari Hupari 923/4, Shelar Building,A/P Hupari.Taluka : Hatkanangale,Dist. : Kolhapur- 416203.

Maharashtra Ichalkaranji Ichalkaranji 7356, Main Road, Ichalkaranji. Taluka: Hatkanangale, Dist : Kolhapur - 416 115.

Maharashtra Inam Dhamani Inam Dhamani A/P:Inam Dhamani, Taluka : Miraj, Dist : Sangli- 416 416.

Maharashtra Ingali Ingali 446, A/P: Ingali .Taluka : Hatkanangale,Dist. : Kolhapur- 416 202.

Maharashtra Islampur Islampur H. N0.2127/28, Dr.Pardeshi Building. Islampur .Taluka : Walva, Dist. : Sangli- 415 409.

Maharashtra Jaysingpur Jaysingpur A.B.Patil Complex, Subhash Road, Jaysingpur-416 101

Maharashtra Kabnur Kabnur Grampanchayat Building, Kabnur Taluka : Hatkanangale Dist. : Kolhapur - 416 129.

Maharashtra Kagal Kagal Ameya Complex,C S No.3611,3612, 3613 Brahmapuri, Kagal. Dist : Kolhapur - 416 126.
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Maharashtra Karad Karad Shop No. 1,283, Janaki Palza, Near Kolhapur Naka, Behind Mahatma Gandhi Statue, Karad - 415 110.

Maharashtra Khupire Khupire C/0 Shri Balbhim VKS Vikas Seva Sanstha, Khupire, Taluka Karveer, Kolhapur-416 205.

Maharashtra Gandhinagar Kolhapur Main Road, Gandhinagar.Taluka: Karveer.Dist. : Kolhapur - 416 119.

Maharashtra Laxmipuri Kolhapur CTS No. 1414, Shop No. 1 to 5 Om Estate, C Ward, Laxmipuri Kolhapur - 416 002.

Maharashtra Market Yard(Tarabai Park) Kolhapur Shop No.6,7&8 Siddivinayak Apartment, CTS No 233 Plot No.12/13,Tarabai Park Kolhapur-416 003.

Maharashtra Rajarampuri Kolhapur Vitthal Complex, Sth Lane, Rajarampuri, Kolhapur - 416 008.

Maharashtra Sane Guruji Vasahat Kolhapur Kolhapur Plot No 9, RS No 1012, A Ward, Sadashiv Jadhav Housing Society, Radhanagari Road, Kolhapur - 416 012.

Maharashtra Shahupuri Kolhapur 1st Lane, Shahupuri, Kolhapur - 416 001.

Maharashtra Kurundwad Kurundwad 123, B, Bhau Smruti, Near Play Groud Kurundwad ,Taluka: Shirol, Dist Kolhapur- 416 106.

Maharashtra Madilage Madilge A/P: Madilage.Taluka : Ajara, Dist. : Kolhapur-416 505.

Maharashtra Malkapur Malkapur More Building, CTS No.215,B ward, Malkapur, Taluka : Shahuwadi,Dist : Kolhapur-415 101.

Maharashtra Mhaishal Mhaishal Ground Floor, CS No. 386, Parampujya Shati Sagar Muni Road, Near Vijapur-Miraj Highway, Mhaisal-416 409.

Maharashtra Miraj Miraj High School Road Jawahar Chowk, Shivraj Complex,Miraj — 416 410.

Maharashtra Airoli Mumbai Unit No. 1 To 6, Gr Floor, Ripplez Mall, Plot No 6A, Sector No 7, Airoli, Navi Mumbai - 400 708.

Maharashtra Badlapur Mumbai Nisarg Pratiksha Apartments, Old D P Road, Katrap,Badlapur East, Thane 421 503.

Maharashtra Boriwali Mumbai Shop No. 2 To 6, Shroff Arcade, Sodawala Lane, Near Thakare Hall, Boriwali (W), Mumbai - 400 092.

Maharashtra Dombivali (East) Mumbai 1st Floor, Jaykul Arcade, Manpada Road, Near Gaondevi Mandir, Dombivali (E) - 421 201.

Maharashtra Dombivali(West) Mumbai Atma Tara, Ground Floor, Subhash Road, Vishnunagar, Dombivali (W) - 421 202.

Maharashtra Fort Mumbai Unit No. 3 & 4, Gr Floor, 7 Rahimatullah House, Homiji Street, Harniman Circle Fort Mumbai - 400 001.

Maharashtra Kalbhadevi Mumbai Jewel World Building,Ground Floor, 175 Kalbadevi Road,Corner of Shaikh Memon Street,Mumbai- 400 002.

Maharashtra Kalyan Mumbai Bindu Tower, Shop N0.2,3,13 & 14, Opp.K.D.M.C. Veg. Market, Santoshi Mata Road, Kalyan (W) - 421 301.

Maharashtra Kandiwali Mumbai Shri Building, 295, Shantilal Modi Road, Near Mayur Takies, Kandiwali (W), Mumbai - 400 067.

Maharashtra Kharghar Mumbai Surya Koti Building, Surya Chs Ltd. Plot No.16, Sector 19, Kharghar, Navi Mumbai.Taluka: Panvel, Dist. Raigad-410 210

Maharashtra Lower Parel Mumbai One Indiabulls Centre, Tower 2, 3rd Floor, 841 Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013.

Maharashtra Nalsopara Mumbai Building No.1, Shree Ram Sankul, Shop No.1,2,3 4, Achole Road, Opp. Aakanksha Commercial Compelx, Nalasopara (E) - 401209.

Maharashtra Nerul Mumbai Millenium Park, Plot No.17, Sector-25, Nerul, Navi Mumbai - 400 706.

Maharashtra Panvel Mumbai Block No.102/103, Indraprashta Building, Tapal Naka, Uran Road, Panvel - 410 206.

Maharashtra Thane Mumbai Laxmi Market, Pokharan Road No 1, Vartak Nagar, Thane (W) - 400 606.

Maharashtra Thane (R Mall) Mumbai R Mall, Shop No. LG-2A, United Motors Ltd, Ghodhbunder Road, Near Runawal Estate, Thane (W) - 400 601.

Maharashtra Thane (West) Ram Maruti Mumbai Ground Floor, Shankeshwar Arcade, Ram Ganesh Gadkari Path, Ram Maruti Cross Road, Thane(W) - 400 602.

Maharashtra Vasai Mumbai Ground Floor, Shop No 2 & 3, Nikunj Signature , Ambadi Road, Vasai(W),Thane - 421 202.

Maharashtra Vashi, Navi Mumbai Mumbai Arti CHS Ltd. Plot No. 29, Sector 2, Vashi, Navi Mumbai 400 703.

Maharashtra Vlile Parle Mumbai 6, Ground Floor, Galaxy Arcade, 10 M.G.Road, Vileparle [E] - 400 067.

Maharashtra Virar(East) Mumbai Sumant Chaya, Purandarewadi, Next To Railway Stn, Near Talathi Office Bazarward, Virar (E) - 410 303.

Maharashtra Nandre Nandre 249, E Ward, Society Building, A/P: Nandre .Taluka : Miraj, Dist. : Sangli- 416 423.

Maharashtra Nasik Nasik Riddhi Park, Tilakwadi Corner, Sharanpur Road, Nasik - 422 002.

Maharashtra Nerle Nerle A/P : Nerle. Taluka : Walwa, Dist. : Sangli- 415 406.

Maharashtra Omerga Omerga Omerga Branch,Mane Hospital Building No 20/21,Ward No 13, Main Road,0merga Dist - Osmanabad-413 606.

Maharashtra Peth Vadgaon Peth Vadgaon RS No. 126, Bavadekar Complex, Near Bus Stand, Peth Vadgaon, Taluka. Hatkanangle, Dist: Kolhapur, Maharashtra-415 112.

Maharashtra Baner Pune Pune A'Wing, Anmol Pride, Survey No. 270, Hissa No. 1/16, Opp Bharat Petrol Pump, Baner, Pune - 411 045.

Maharashtra Chakan Pune Pune Ground Floor, Shop No.5 & 6 & Underground No.5 At Gat No.461, Tukaram Market, 'Mega Centre', Pune Nasik Road, Next To Surya
Hospital, Near Muktewadi & Medankarwadi, Chakan, Pune - 410 501.

Maharashtra Chinchwad Pune ‘Ashirwaad;, Plot No. 199/A, Old Pune-Mumbai Highway, Near Hans Electricals, Chinchwad Station Road, Pune - 411 019.

Maharashtra Icc Pune MCCIA Trade Tower Off International Conventinal Centre Show room No 5 Senapati Bhapat Road. Pune - 411 004.

Maharashtra Kalyaninagar Pune Shop No. 126 &127, Vitoria-|, Fortaleza, Central Avenue Road, Kalyaninagar, Pune - 411 006.

Maharashtra Singhgad Road Pune Pune CTS No 16/3 16/4 Anand Nagar,Shop No. 1 & 2,'C' Wing, Mohite Paradise, Sinhgad Road, Pune - 411 050.

Maharashtra Swargate Pune Showroom No 8\Vega Centre, Shankarshet Road, Pune 411 042.

Maharashtra Rangoli Rangoli A/P:Rangoli Taluka : Hatkanangale Dist. : Kolhapur-416 143.

Maharashtra Rukadi Rukadi Main Road A/P- Rukadi.Taluka ..Hatkangle, Dist:Kolhapur-416 115.

Maharashtra Samdoli Samdoli A/P:Samdoli .Taluka : Miraj. Dist. : Sangli- 416 427.

Maharashtra Gaon Bagh Sangli Sangli C.S.No. 966 & 967, Mehendale - Kulkarni Bhavan, Gaonbhag, Sangli - 416 416.

Maharashtra Market Yard (Sangli) Sangli Plot No.88, Bank Building, Market Yard, Sangli - 416 416.

Maharashtra Sangli Main Sangli Sukh-Shanti Heights, College Corner, Aamrai Road, Shivaji Nagar (North), Sangli - 416 416

Maharashtra Shirdi Shirdi Ground Floor, "The Executive INN", City Survey No. 961,Nagar-Manmad Highway, A/P -Shirdi, Taluka - Rahata, Dist: Ahmednagar - 423 109.

Maharashtra Solapur Solapur 125/A, Murarji Peth, Solapur - 413 001.

Maharashtra Tasgaon Tasgaon 1565-A, Siddheshwar Chowk, A/P : Tasgaon. Dist. Sangli-416 312.

Maharashtra Unchgaon Uchgaon Seema Pride, Plot No. 5,R S No. 350A, Village Unchagaon, Taluka: Karveer, Dist. Kolhapur — 416 005.

Maharashtra Vasagade VVasagade A/P Vasgade,Taluka : Karveer,Dist :Kolhapur -416 204.

Maharashtra Visapur Visapur A/P: Visapur.Taluka: Tasgaon, Dist. : Sangli- 416 314.

Rajasthan Bhiwadi ( Ex -Hero Honda) Bhiwadi A-4, Ground Floor, Bhagat Singh Colony, Alwar Bypass Road,Bhiwadi, Dist- Alwar, Rajasthan- 301 019.

Rajasthan Bhiwadi (Swagat Hotel ) Bhiwadi The Swagat Palace Hotel, B-294-295A, Near RIICO Chowk Industrial Area, Bhiwadi, Dist- Alwar, Rajasthan- 301 019.

Tamil Naidu Avinashi Avinashi Shop No. 5/215, Rajan Nagar, Opp. Weekly Market, K K Pudur Post, Avinashi Taluka, Tirupur District, Tamil Nadu-641 654.

Tamil Naidu Chennai Chennai Anand Business Centre/HMH Plaza, Old Door No. 105, New Door No. 56, G N Chetty Road, T Nagar, Chennai - 600 017.

Tamil Naidu Nellikuppam Nellikupum Door No. 117/1 K.S.A Road, Nellikuppam, Cuddalore District, Tamil Nadu - 607 105.

U.T.D.D Daman Daman Ground Floor, Shop No. 1,2,3, Plot No. 758/7 ad 758/8 at VillageDabhel, Somnath Temple Road, Daman - 396 210.

Uttar Pradesh Noida Noida P-7, Sector-18,Noida,P-7, Sector-18 Uttar Pradesh-201 301.

List as on July 26,2013
The above list is subject to change from time to time. Readers are kindly advised to refer to our website (www.ratnakarbank.co.in) for latest branch details
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The Ratnakar Bank Limited
Registered Office: 1st Lane, Shahupuri, Kolhapur - 416 001, Maharashtra, India.
Mumbai Controlling Office: One Indiabulls Center, Tower 2B, 6th Floor, 841, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W),
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.

PROXY FORM

Registered Folio No

70" Annual General Meeting - August 30, 2013

General Meeting of the Bank to be held on Friday, August 30, 2013 at 12 noon at Residency Club, C.T.S. No. E 2124, E Ward, Near Bawda
Post Office, Opp. PWD Office, New Palace, Tarabai Park, Kolhapur - 416 003 and at any adjournment thereof.

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the 70 Annual

Signed this . 2013.

1. Proxy need not be a member
2. Proxy form complete in all respects, should reach the Bank's Registered Office /
Administrative Office / Controlling Office not later than 48 hours before the scheduled

time of the meeting

Registered Office: 1st Lane, Shahupuri, Kolhapur - 416 001, Maharashtra, India. Affix 1

Administrative Office: 'Vahaveer', 179/E Ward, Shri Shahu Market Yard, Revenue
Kolhapur- 416 005 Maharashtra, India. Stamp

Mumbai Controlling Office: One Indiabulls Center, Tower 2B, 6th Floor, 8471, Signature

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W), Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.
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The Ratnakar Bank Limited

Scheduled Commercial Bank
Registered Office: 1st Lane, Shahupuri, Kolhapur - 416 001, Maharashtra, India.
% Mumbai Controlling Office: One Indiabulls Center, Tower 2B, 6th Floor, 841, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel (W),
Mumbai - 400 013, Maharashtra, India.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

| certify that I am a registered member / proxy for the registered member of the Bank.

| hereby record my presence at the 70" Annual General Meeting of the Bank held at Residency Club, C.T.S. No. E 2124, E Ward, Near Bawda
Post Office, Opp. PWD Office, New Palace, Tarabai Park, Kolhapur - 416 003

Member / Proxy's NamMe...........c.ooiiiiiiii e NO.OFShare .
(IN BLOCK LETTER)

MEMbBEr NO. Lo e

Member / Proxy's Signature
Please bring this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of hall
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Highlights 2012-13

Mrs. Vidya Murkumbi, Chairperson of Shree Renuka Sugars Ltd Indian cricketer Mr. Gautam Gambhir during the launch event of
inaugurating Ratnakar Bank's agri-centric branch at Manoli. Seen in Medicash Plus Card launched jointly by E-Meditek Global, Ratnakar
the picture are Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja, MD & CEO of Ratnakar Bank along Bank & Visa. Seen in the picture are Mr. Rajeev Ahuja, Head of Strategy,
with local dignitaries present at the launch. Ratnakar Bank along with Mr. Uttam Nayak, Group Country Manager

- India & South Asia, VISA and Mr. Gopal Verma, Managing Director at
E-Meditek Solutions Ltd

Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja addressing customers during the launch of Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja addressing the gathering during launch of
Ratnakar Bank's agri-centric branch at Manoli Ratnakar Bank's first branch in the city of Chennai. Also seen in the
picture are Dr. J Sadakkadulla, Regional Director for Tamil Nadu &
Pondicherry at RBI, Mr. Gopal Srinivasan, CMD at TVS Capital Funds
Ltd, Mr. Thyagarajan, Founder Chairman of Shriram Group, and
Mr. LakshmiNarayanan, Chairman of Cognizant Technologies Solutions

A photograph of a special customer event of Ratna Milap attended by Mr. Vishwavir Ahuja and Mr. Rajeev Ahuja addressing a press
several farmers / customers. conference during the launch of Ratnakar Bank's branch at Hyderabad
& Tirupati
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The Ratnakar Bank Limited

Administrative Office
'‘Mahaveer',

179/E Ward,

Shri Shahu Market Yard,
Kolhapur - 416 005
Maharashtra, India.

Phone: 0231 2650981 / 984
Fax: 0231 2657386

Mumbai Controlling Office
One Indiabulls Centre, Tower 2B,
6th Floor, 841,

Senapati Bapat Marg,

Lower Parel (W),

Mumbai - 400 013,
Maharashtra, India.

Phone: 022 43020600

Fax: 022 43020520
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